
 
 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

Regular Meeting of Council 

Tuesday, May 7, 2019 

6:00 P.M. 

City Hall Council Chambers – 325 Farr Drive 

Agenda 

1. Call to Order 

 

2. Roll Call 

 

3. Review of Revisions or Deletions to Agenda 

 

4. Approval of Agenda 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that City Council approves the agenda as printed/amended. 

 

5. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and General Nature 

 

6. Review and adoption of Council Minutes 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that City Council approves the following minutes as printed: 

a) Regular meeting of Council – April 16, 2019 

 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 7, 2019 Page 2 
 
 
7. Public Meetings pursuant to the Planning Act, Municipal Act and other 

Statutes 

7.1. Application to Clear Land – Dymond Industrial Park 

Owner: City of Temiskaming Shores 

Subject Land: Municipally owned lands within the Dymond Industrial Park 

Purpose: To consider an application to cut marketable trees within the 
Dymond Industrial Park. 

 

8. Question and Answer Period 

 

9. Presentations / Delegations 

a) Rob Keen & Scott Jackson – Forests Ontario / Forest Recovery Canada 

Re: It Takes a Forest presentation 

 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that Council acknowledges the presentation from Rob Keen and Scott 
Jackson in regards to “It Takes a Forest” presentation. 

 

10. Communications 

a) Annilene McRobb, Deputy Clerk – Town of Minto 

Re: Request for Support – Potential OMPF Funding reduction 

Reference: Received for Information 

 

b) Mathew Wilson, Senior Advisor – Association of Municipalities Ontario 

Re: AMO Update – Animal Cruelty Enforcement changes 

Reference: Received for information 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 7, 2019 Page 3 
 
 

c) Leticia Avanse - LandSquared 

Re: Public Notice – Proposed 70 m Self-Support Telecommunications 
Tower (Drive-In-Theatre Road) 

Reference: Received for information 

 

d) Alex Regele, Clerk-Treasurer – Township of Hilliard 

Re: Resolution – ETRAA and TRACC 

Reference: Received for information 

 

e) Brian Smith, President – Englehart & District Agricultural Society 

Re: Financial Support – 110th annual Fall Fair 

Reference: Received for information 

 

f) Karyne Labonté, Principal – Ecole catholique Ste-Croix 

Re: Financial Support – Graduation 

Reference: Received for information 

 

g) Carman Kidd, President – Earlton-Timiskaming Regional Airport Authority 

Re: Drag n Fly event 

Reference: Received for information 

 

h) Honourable Rod Phillips, Minister of the Environment, Conservation and Parks 

Re: Notice of Approval – City of Temiskaming Shores New Waste 
Management Capacity Environmental Assessment (N.L. Landfill) 

Reference: Referred to Technical & Environmental Compliance Coordinator 

 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 7, 2019 Page 4 
 
 

i) Derek Mundle, Reeve – Township of Evanturel 

Re: Ontario Northland Transportation Commission vs. Township of 
Evanturel 

Reference: Received for information 

 

j) The Honourable Steve Clark, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing 

Re: More Homes, More Choice Action Plan 

Reference: Received for information 

 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that City Council agrees to deal with Communication Items 10. a)  to 
10.  j) according to the Agenda references. 

 

11. Committees of Council – Community and Regional 

 

 

12. Committees of Council – Internal Departments 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that the following minutes be accepted for information: 

a) Minutes of the Recreation Services Committee meeting held on March 11, 
2019.  

 

13. Reports by Members of Council 

 

 

14. Notice of Motions 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 7, 2019 Page 5 
 
 
15. New Business 

 

a) Support – Hydro delivery Rates 

Draft Motion 

Whereas hydro is essential for all individuals and the cost to receive hydro 
should not be so excessive that individuals cannot afford it; and 

Whereas the cost for service delivery for hydro should be affordable to all 
individuals; and 

Whereas the Township of Tudor and Cashel has received invoicing with 46% 
to 56% of the total cost relating to the service delivery fee. 

Now therefore be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
hereby supports the Township of Tudor and Cashel and hereby petitions Hydro 
One and the Ontario Energy Board to review its plans regarding delivery 
service to ensure that the cost of service delivery is fair to everyone; and 

Furthermore, that a copy of this resolution be circulated to Hydro One, Ontario 
Energy Board, Premier Doug Ford and Timiskaming-Cochrane MPP, John 
Vanthof. 

  

b) Request for Proclamation – Victim Services of Temiskaming & District 

Draft Motion 

Whereas Temiskaming & District VCARS is a member of the Ontario Network 
of Victim Service Providers; and 

Whereas Victim Services provide a wide variety of services including 
immediate assistance to victims of violent crime to lessen the impact of the 
event and increase a victim’s safety; and 

Whereas the theme of the 2019 Victims and Survivors of Crime Awareness 
Week is The Power of Collaboration; and 

Whereas Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores recognizes not only the 
victims of crime but also the many individuals who are a part of the various 
organizations that assist the victims to deal with the aftermath and to rebuild 
their lives. 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 7, 2019 Page 6 
 
 

Now therefore be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming 
Shores hereby proclaims May 26th to June 1st, 2019 as “Victims and 
Survivors of Crime Awareness Week” in the City of Temiskaming Shores. 

 

c) Funding Cuts to Ontario Library Service North and the Southern Ontario 
Library Service 

Draft Motion 
 
Whereas public libraries provide safe, inclusive, and vibrant community spaces 
where everyone is welcome to learn, work, connect, and have fun; and 
 
Whereas the Temiskaming Shores Public Library actively partners with the 
community to deliver valued services and contribute to a culture of social good 
by sharing knowledge and resources; and 
 
Whereas the Temiskaming Shores Public Library continues to deliver services 
that support provincial initiatives such as lifelong learning and skill 
development, local economic development, health literacy, and provides 
equitable access to government websites and services; and  
 
Whereas the Temiskaming Shores Public Library continues to manage public 
resources with the utmost care and are committed to the sustainability of their 
services; and 
 
Whereas the Temiskaming Shores Public Library requests that the City of 
Temiskaming Shores Council urge the Province of Ontario to recognize the 
importance of services provided by Ontario Library Service - North and the 
Southern Ontario Library Service including the administration of bulk 
purchasing agreements, technology consultation, strategic planning and policy 
development consultation, the provincial Interlibrary Loan system, board and 
staff training opportunities, collection development support, support for First 
Nations libraries and the administration of the Joint Automation Server 
Initiative; and  
 
Whereas the Temiskaming Shores Public Library requests that the City of 
Temiskaming Shores Council urge the Province of Ontario to restore funding 
to Ontario Library Service - North in recognition of the unfair and 
disproportionate impact of these cuts on Northern Ontario public libraries.  
 
Now therefore be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
hereby supports the Temiskaming Shores Public Library’s request for the 
Government of Ontario to restore funding to Ontario Library Service-North; and 
 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 7, 2019 Page 7 
 
 

Be it further resolved that the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby petitions the 
Province of Ontario to support sustainable long-term funding for Ontario’s 
Public Libraries; and 
 
Further that a copy of this resolution be sent to the Office of the Premier; the 
Minister of Tourism, Culture, and Sport; the Minister of Municipal Affairs and 
Housing; John Vanthof, MPP for Timiskaming-Cochrane; the Association of 
Municipalities Ontario; the Ontario Library Association; and the Federation of 
Ontario Public Libraries. 

 

d) Memo No. 011-2019-RS – Request – Haileybury Heritage Museum - 
Auction 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
acknowledges receipt of Memo No. 011-2019-RS; and 

That Council hereby approves the donation of a one-year fitness membership 
from the Pool Fitness Centre to the Haileybury Heritage Museum for their June 
2, 2019 live auction as well as the use of 30 rectangular tables picked up and 
returned by the organizing committee. 

 

e) Administrative Report No. PW-010-2019 – Investing in Canada 
Infrastructure Program – Funding Application – Replacement of Roy’s 
Bridge (Uno Park Road) 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. PW-010-2019 regarding the 
reconstruction of the Uno Park Road Bridge (known locally as “Roy’s Bridge”); 

That Council acknowledges that road services and repairs of Uno Park Road 
is a shared responsibility with the Corporation of the Township of Harley 
through By-law No. 2015-120; 

That Council considers that, through the development of the Asset 
Management Plan, the existing structure located on Uno Park Road, being a 
boundary road between Temiskaming Shores and Harley Township, will be 
confirmed as a significant priority for the City of Temiskaming Shores; and 

That Council directs staff to work with the Township of Harley to finalize and 
submit an Application, complete with all applicable documentation, to the 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 7, 2019 Page 8 
 
 

Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program (ICIP); Rural and Northern 
Communities Funding Stream for the replacement of “Roy’s Bridge” prior to the 
May 14, 2019 deadline. 

 

f) Administrative Report No. PW-014-2019 – Supply and Application of 
Liquid Calcium Chloride 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. PW-014-2019; and 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law and agreement with 
Pollard Distribution Inc. for the 2019 Supply and Application of Liquid Calcium 
Chloride at a rate of $0.305/litre for consideration at the May 7, 2019 Regular 
Council meeting. 

 

g) Administrative Report No. PW-015-2019 – Engineering Services - Phase 2 
& 3 Dymond Water Linking Project 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. PW-015-2019, more 
specifically Appendix 01 – EXP Quotation Letter; 

That as outlined in By-law No. 2017-015, Procurement Policy, Section 10, 
Council hereby waives the tendering process based on Appendix 02 – Single 
Source Justification; and 

That Council directs Staff to issue a Purchase Order to EXP for engineering 
services related to the Design of Phase 2 & 3 of the Dymond Water Linking 
Project in the amount $ 56,431 plus applicable taxes. 

 

h) Administrative Report No. CS-017-2019 – New Liskeard Lions Club – 
Quonset Hut lease agreement 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. CS-017-2019; 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 7, 2019 Page 9 
 
 

That Council directs staff to repeal By-law No. 2014-036, lease agreement with 
the Bikers Reunion Committee for a portion of a Quonset Hut as well as By-law 
No. 2014-037, lease agreement with New Liskeard Lions Club for the remaining 
portion of the Quonset Hut; and 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into a five 
(5) year lease agreement with the New Liskeard Lions Club for the use of the 
entire storage space at the Quonset Hut located on May Street. 

 

i) Administrative Report No. CS-018-2019 – 2020 CIM Convention 

Draft Motion 

That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of 
Administrative Report No. CS-018-2019; and 

That Council directs staff to apply for funding support from Fed Nor to enable 
the City to lead the Northern Ontario Mining Showcase at the Canadian Institute 
of Mining, Metallurgy and Petroleum (CIM) Convention from May 3 – 6, 2020. 

 

j) 2018 Year-end Financial Report 

Presentation from the Treasurer 

 

16. By-laws 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that: 

 

By-law No. 2019-065 Being a by-law to enter into a three (3) year agreement with 
Grant Fuels Inc. for the supply of Petroleum Fuels for the 
City of Temiskaming Shores 

 

By-law No. 2019-071 Being a by-law to enter into a Purchase Agreement with 
Nortrax Canada Inc. (Stoney Creek) for the purchase of a 
used Grader 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 7, 2019 Page 10 
 
 

 

By-law No. 2019-072 Being a by-law to authorize certain new capital works of The 
Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores (the 
“municipality”); to authorize the submission of an 
application to Ontario Infrastructure and Lands Corporation 
(“OILC”) for financing such capital works; to authorize 
temporary borrowing from OILC to meet expenditures in 
connection with such works; and to authorize long term 
borrowing for such works through the issue of debentures 
to OILC 

 

By-law No. 2019-073 Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with Pollard 
Distribution Inc. for the Supply and Application of Liquid 
Dust Suppressant at various locations within the City of 
Temiskaming Shores 

 

By-law No. 2019-074 Being a by-law to enter into a Purchase Agreement with 
Winslow Gerolamy Motors for the purchase of a Plow Truck 

 

By-law No. 2019-075 Being a by-law to enter into a lease agreement with the New 
Liskeard Lion’s Club for cold storage space within Quonset 
Hut on May Street 

 

be hereby introduced and given first and second reading. 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that 

By-law No. 2019-065; 

By-law No. 2019-071; 

By-law No. 2019-072; 

By-law No. 2019-073; 

By-law No. 2019-074; and 

By-law No. 2019-075 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 7, 2019 Page 11 
 
 

be given third and final reading, be signed by the Mayor and Clerk and the corporate 
seal affixed thereto. 

 

17. Schedule of Council Meetings  

a) Special – Tuesday, May 14, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. 

b) Regular – Tuesday, May 21, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. 

c) Regular – Tuesday, June 4, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

18. Question and Answer Period 

 

 

19. Closed Session 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that Council agrees to convene in Closed Session at ______ p.m. to 
discuss the following matters: 

a) Under Section 239 (2) (b) of the Municipal Act, 2001 – Personal matter 
about an identifiable individual – Organizational Chart; 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that Council agrees to rise with report from Closed Session at ______ 
p.m. 

 

20. Confirming By-law 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that By-law No. 2019-077 being a by-law to confirm certain 
proceedings of Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores for its 
Regular meeting held on May 7, 2019 be hereby introduced and given first and 
second reading. 

 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – May 7, 2019 Page 12 
 
 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that By-law No. 2019-077 be given third and final reading, be signed 
by the Mayor and Clerk and the corporate seal affixed thereto. 

 

21. Adjournment 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that City Council adjourns at ________ p.m. 



 
 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

Regular Meeting of Council 

Tuesday, April 16, 2019 

6:00 P.M. 

City Hall Council Chambers – 325 Farr Drive 

Minutes  
 

1. Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Carman Kidd at 6:00 p.m. 

 

2. Roll Call 

Council:  Mayor Carman Kidd; Councillors Jesse Foley, Doug Jelly, Mike 
McArthur and Danny Whalen  

Present:  Christopher W. Oslund, City Manager  
 Doug Walsh, Director of Public Works  
 Tammie Caldwell, Director of Recreation  
 Shelly Zubyck, Director of Corporate Services  
 Tim Uttley, Fire Chief  
 Laura-Lee MacLeod, Treasurer  
   
Regrets:  Councillors Jeff Laferriere & Patricia Hewitt 

David B. Treen, Municipal Clerk  
 
Media:  Diane Johnston, Temiskaming Speaker  
 Bill Buchberger, CJTT 104.5 FM 
 
Members of the Public Present:  4 
 
 

3. Review of Revisions or Deletions to Agenda 

Deletions:  



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – April 16, 2019 Page 2 
 

 

Councillor Doug Jelly advised Council that the Protection to Persons and Property 
Committee received additional information regarding the Animal Control and Pound 
Services RFP. The Committee would like an opportunity to review the information 
prior to Council making a decision. He requested the following items be removed 
from the agenda and brought back for Council’s consideration at the May 7, 2019 
Regular Council meeting. 

Under Item 15 o) Administrative Report No. CS-016-2019 – Animal Control and 
Pound Services Contract 

Under Item 16 By-laws – By-law No. 2019-069 being a by-law to execute an 
Agreement between the City of Temiskaming Shores and Ms. Roxanne St. 
Germain (o/a Temiskaming Area Animal Services) for the provision of Animal 
Control and Pound Services. 

The City Manager advised Council that the City’s Pay Equity Consultant had an 
unexpected emergency and was not able to attend to present to Council in Closed 
Session. The following item was removed from the Agenda and deferred to the May 
7, 2019 Regular Council meeting. 

Under Item 19 b) – Closed Session – Labour Relations – Update by Pay Equity 
Consultant 

 

4. Approval of Agenda 

Resolution No. 2019-234 
Moved by:  Councillor Foley 
Seconded by:  Councillor McArthur 

Be it resolved that City Council approves the agenda as amended. 

Carried 

5. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and General Nature 

Councillor Jesse Foley declared a Conflict of Pecuniary Interest on Item 19 c) – 
Closed Session – Personal matter about an identifiable individual – 
Organizational Chart as both his father and sister are employees of the City of 
Temiskaming Shores. 

 

6. Review and adoption of Council Minutes 

Resolution No. 2019-235 
Moved by:  Councillor Whalen 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – April 16, 2019 Page 3 
 

 

Seconded by: Councillor Jelly 

Be it resolved that City Council approves the following minutes as printed: 

a) Regular meeting of Council – April 2, 2019 

Carried 

 

7. Public Meetings pursuant to the Planning Act, Municipal Act and other 
Statutes 

None 
 

8. Question and Answer Period 

None 
 

9. Presentations / Delegations 

a) Laura-Lee MacLeod, Treasurer 

Re: 2019 Municipal Budget By-law 

 
Resolution No. 2019-236 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 

Be it resolved that Council confirms the following changes to the Fleet Replacement 
Plan as discussed at the February 19, 2019 Regular Council meeting: 

1. Deferral of the Fire Rescue Vehicle for Station No. 2 to 2020; 

2. A reduction in the amount allocated for the replacement of the Fire Rescue 
Vehicle for Station No. 2 from $425,000 to $300,000;  

3. A reduction in the amount allocated for the replacement of a Grader for the Public 
Works Department from $500,000 to $300,000;  

4. To purchase small fleet items totaling $73,000 (i.e. pick-up trucks) within the 
approved Capital Budget envelope instead of financing. 

Carried  

 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – April 16, 2019 Page 4 
 

 

Resolution No. 2019-237 
Moved by:  Councillor Whalen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 

Be it resolved that Council acknowledges the 2019 Budget By-law presentation from 
the Treasurer and approves the changes outlined in the presentation for inclusion 
in the Final 2019 Budget By-law for consideration at the April 16, 2019 Regular 
Council meeting. 

Carried 

10. Communications 

a) Jean Marc Boileau, Mayor – Armstrong Township 

Re: Encourage ETRAA and TRACC to seek common ground – Airport Drag 
Races 

Reference: Received for Information 

 

b) Libby Clarke, Reeve – Township of Tudor and Cashel 

Re: Support – Hydro delivery Rates unaffordable 

Reference: Received for Information 
 
Councillor Doug Jelly requested that item 10 b) be brought back for 
Council’s consideration at the May 7, 2019 Regular Council meeting. 
 
 

Resolution No. 2019-238 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 

Be it resolved that City Council agrees to deal with Communication Items 10. a)  and 
10. b) according to the Agenda references. 

Carried 

11. Committees of Council – Community and Regional 

 
Resolution No. 2019-239 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor McArthur 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – April 16, 2019 Page 5 
 

 

Be it resolved that the following minutes and/or reports be accepted for information: 

a) Minutes of the District of Timiskaming Social Services Administration Board 
meeting held on January 23, 2019; 

b) Minutes of the District of Timiskaming Social Services Administration Board 
meeting held on February 6, 2019; and 

c) Minutes of the District of Timiskaming Social Services Administration Board 
meeting held on February 20, 2019. 

Carried 

12. Committees of Council – Internal Departments 

Resolution No. 2019-240 
Moved by:  Councillor Whalen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 

Be it resolved that the following minutes be accepted for information: 

a) Minutes of the Corporate Services Committee meeting held on March 21, 
2019;  

b) Minutes of the Protection to Persons and Property Committee meeting held 
on March 21, 2019;  

c) Minutes of the Building Maintenance Committee meeting held on March 21, 
2019;  

d) Minutes of the Public Works Committee meeting held on March 21, 2019;  

e) Minutes of the Corporate Services Committee meeting held on April 1, 2019;  

f) Minutes of the Protection to Persons and Property Committee meeting held 
on April 2, 2019; and 

g) Minutes of the Public Works Committee meeting held on April 4, 2019. 

Carried 

13. Reports by Members of Council 

Councillor Mike McArthur provided a verbal report on the Northeastern Ontario Fire 
Education Conference that he attended on March 27-30, 2019. 

 

14. Notice of Motions 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – April 16, 2019 Page 6 
 

 

None 

 

15. New Business 

a) Proclamation – May as Community Living Month  

Resolution No. 2019-241 
Moved by:  Councillor McArthur 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 

Whereas many towns and cities are home to individuals with intellectual 
disabilities who are cared for by a Community Living Agency; and 

Whereas Community Living Temiskaming South provides services to residents 
in the City of Temiskaming Shores; and 

Whereas Community Living is celebrated annually during the month of May 
with various events and activities including the flying the Community Living 
flag. 

Now therefore be it resolved that the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
proclaims the month May as “Community Living month” in the City of 
Temiskaming Shores and agrees to fly the Community Living flag at City during 
the month of May 2019. 

Carried 

b) Proclamation - Emergency Preparedness Week  

Resolution No. 2019-242 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Whalen 

Whereas Emergency Preparedness Week is an annual event that takes place 
each year during the first full week of May and is an opportunity to encourage 
all residents to take concrete actions to be better prepared to protect 
themselves and their families during emergencies; and  

Whereas the City of Temiskaming Shores through the Office of the Fire 
Marshal and Emergency Management and all our Emergency Management 
Partners, assists the City to identify community risks, mitigate those risks, 
prepare for, respond to, and recover from disasters and emergencies; and  

Whereas the City is doing everything it can to prepare for disasters, and 
realizes residents also have an important role to play in ensuring their own 
safety during an emergency; and 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – April 16, 2019 Page 7 
 

 

Whereas emergency preparedness is a shared responsibility and all 
individuals can reduce the risk we face by better understanding what could 
happen and learning how to better prepare ourselves, our families and our 
community; and 

Whereas each individual must understand the risks inherent to where we live 
and work and undertake actions that reduce those risks in an effort to limit the 
extent to which an emergency may affect us. 

Now therefore be it resolved that the Council for the City of Temiskaming 
Shores hereby proclaims the week of May 5th to 11th, 2019, to be “Emergency 
Preparedness Week” in the City of Temiskaming Shores, and encourages all 
citizens to participate in educational activities during Emergency Preparedness 
Week and throughout the year. 

Carried 

c) Memo No. 005-2019-PW – Amendment to By-law No. 2018-073 Sidewalk 
and Curb Repair – extension for 2019 

Resolution No. 2019-243 
Moved by:  Councillor Foley 
Seconded by:  Councillor Jelly 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
acknowledges receipt of Memo No. 005-2019-PW; and 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to amend By-law No. 
2018-073 to extend the terms of the agreement for Concrete Sidewalk and 
Curb Repair Services with Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. in 2019 for 
consideration at the April 16, 2019 Regular Council meeting. 

Carried 

d) Memo No. 006-2019-PW – Asset Management Policy 

Resolution No. 2019-244 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
acknowledges receipt of Memo No. 006-2019-PW; 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law for an Asset 
Management Policy for the City of Temiskaming Shores for consideration of 
provisional approval (1st and 2nd Reading) at the April 16, 2019 Regular Council 
meeting; and 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – April 16, 2019 Page 8 
 

 

That Council directs staff to consider any comments received on the provisional 
policy prior to third and final reading required prior to July 1, 2019. 

Carried 

e) Memo No. 007-2019-PW – Acceptance of Recycling Material from 
Municipal Waste and Recycling Consultants 

Resolution No. 2019-245 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
acknowledges receipt of Memo No. 007-2019-PW; 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into an 
agreement with Municipal Waste and Recycling Consultants for the acceptance 
of recyclable material at the Spoke Transfer Station for consideration at the 
April 16, 2019 Regular Council meeting. 

Carried 

f) Administrative Report No. PW-008-2019 – Supply and Delivery of Bulk 
Fuel 

Resolution No. 2019-246 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Whalen 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. PW-008-2019; and 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into a three 
(3) year agreement with Parkland Fuel Corporation for the supply and delivery 
of bulk fuel for consideration at the April 16, 2019 Regular Council meeting. 
 

Defeated 
 

Recorded Vote 

 For Motion Against Motion 

 Mayor Kidd Councillor Foley 

  Councillor Jelly 

  Councillor McArthur 

  Councillor Whalen 

   

  



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – April 16, 2019 Page 9 
 

 

Resolution No. 2019-247 
Moved by:  Councillor Whalen 
Seconded by:  Councillor McArthur 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores agrees to 
waive Section 38 of the City’s Procedural By-law (Notice of Motion) in order to 
allow Councillor Jelly’s alternative motion to the recommendation presented in 
Administrative Report PW-008-2019 (Supply and Delivery of Bulk Fuel). 

Carried 
 

Resolution No. 2019-248 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor McArthur 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. PW-008-2019; and 

That Council approves alternative No. 1 as outlined in the said report and 
directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into a three (3) year 
agreement with Grant Fuels Inc. for the Supply and Delivery of Bulk Fuel for 
consideration at the May 7, 2019 Regular Council meeting. 

Carried 

g) Administrative Report No. PW-009-2019 – Preparation of Tender 
Documents – Relocation of New Liskeard Branch Library 

Resolution No. 2019-249 
Moved by:  Councillor Whalen 
Seconded by:  Councillor McArthur 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. PW-009-2019; and 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law and agreement with 
Mitchell Jensen Architects Inc. for the preparation of Design Drawings and 
Tender Documents for the relocation of the New Liskeard Branch Library at an 
upset limit of $108,000 plus applicable taxes for consideration at the April 16, 
2019 Regular Council meeting. 

Carried 

h) Administrative Report No. PW-011-2019 – Haileybury Medical Centre - 
Renovations 

Resolution No. 2019-250 
Moved by:  Councillor Whalen 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – April 16, 2019 Page 10 
 

 

Seconded by:  Councillor Jelly 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. PW-011-2019; and 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into an 
agreement with G. Belanger Construction for renovations at the Haileybury 
Medical Centre as detailed in Request for Quotation PW-RFQ-002-2019 at an 
upset limit of $48,000 plus applicable taxes for consideration at the April 16, 
2019, Regular Council meeting. 

Carried 

i) Administrative Report No. PW-012-2019 – Equipment Purchase - Road 
Grader 

Resolution No. 2019-251 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. PW-012-2019; and 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into an 
agreement with Nortrax (Stoney Creek) for the purchase of a used Grader at 
an upset limit of $229,600 plus applicable taxes for consideration at the May 7, 
2019 Regular Council meeting. 

Carried 

j) Administrative Report No. PW-013-2019 – Equipment Purchase – Plow 
Truck 

Resolution No. 2019-252 
Moved by:  Councillor Whalen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. PW-013-2019; and 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law and agreement for 
the purchase of a stock Plow Truck from Winslow Gerolamy Motors at an upset 
limit of $244,569 plus applicable taxes as well as vehicle appurtenances at an 
upset limit of $15,000 plus applicable taxes for consideration at the May 7, 2019 
Regular Council meeting. 

Carried 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – April 16, 2019 Page 11 
 

 

k) Administrative Report No. RS-007-2019 – Five (5) year review of Municipal 
Alcohol Policy 

Resolution No. 2019-253 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. RS-007-2019; and 

That Council, in compliance with the requirement for a review within a five (5) 
year period, hereby directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to amend By-
law 2005-036 being a by-law to adopt a Municipal Alcohol Policy for 
consideration at the April 16, 2019 Regular Council meeting. 

Carried 

l) Administrative Report No. RS-008-2019 – Acquisition of a Zero-Turn 
Lawnmower 

Resolution No. 2019-254 
Moved by:  Councillor McArthur 
Seconded by:  Councillor Jelly 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. RS-008-2019; and 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary Purchase Order to acquire 
one (1) Zero-Turn Lawnmower from Optimum Agri. Inc. at an upset limit of 
$17,898 plus applicable taxes. 

Carried 

m) Administrative Report No. RS-009-2019 – Supply and Installation of a 
Glycol System at the Don Shepherdson Memorial Arena 

Resolution No. 2019-255 
Moved by:  Councillor Foley 
Seconded by:  Councillor Whalen 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. RS-009-2019; and 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary Purchase Order for the 
supply and installation of a Glycol System at the Don Shepherdson Memorial 
Arena to Cimco Refrigeration at an upset limit of $6,101.93 plus applicable 
taxes. 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – April 16, 2019 Page 12 
 

 

Carried 

n) Memo No. 007-2019-CS – City Hall Administrative Offices - Christmas 
Holiday Closure 

Resolution No. 2019-256 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
acknowledges receipt of Memo No. 007-2019-CS; and 

That Council approves the closure of City Hall Administrative Offices on 
Tuesday, December 24, 2019 and Friday December 27, 2019. 

Carried 

16. By-laws 

Resolution No. 2019-257 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 

Be it resolved that: 

By-law No. 2019-061 Being a by-law to adopt the 2019 Municipal Budget for the 
City of Temiskaming Shores 

 

By-law No. 2019-062 Being a by-law to amend By-law No. 2018-073 (Agreement 
with Pedersen Construction Inc. for the supply of labour, 
equipment and material for Concrete Sidewalk and Curb 
Repair Services – 2019) 

 

By-law No. 2019-063 Being a by-law to adopt an Asset Management Policy for 
the City of Temiskaming Shores 

 

By-law No. 2019-064 Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with Municipal 
Waste and Recycling Consultants for the acceptance of 
recyclable materials at the Municipal Spoke Transfer 
Station on Barr Drive 

 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – April 16, 2019 Page 13 
 

 

By-law No. 2019-066 Being a by-law to enter into an Agreement with Mitchell 
Jensen Architects Inc. for the preparation of Design 
Drawings and Tender Documents for the relocation of the 
New Liskeard Branch Library 

 

By-law No. 2019-067 Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with G. Belanger 
Construction for renovations at the Haileybury Medical 
Centre 

 

By-law No. 2019-068 Being a by-law to amend By-law No. 2005-036 (Municipal 
Alcohol Policy – Five year review) 

 

be hereby introduced and given first and second reading. 

Carried 

Resolution No. 2019-258 
Moved by:  Councillor Whalen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 
 

Be it resolved that 

By-law No. 2019-061; 

By-law No. 2019-062; 

By-law No. 2019-064; 

By-law No. 2019-066; 

By-law No. 2019-067; and 

By-law No. 2019-068. 

be given third and final reading, be signed by the Mayor and Clerk and the corporate 
seal affixed thereto. 

Carried 

17. Schedule of Council Meetings  

a) Regular – Tuesday, May 7, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. 

b) Regular – Tuesday, May 21, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – April 16, 2019 Page 14 
 

 

18. Question and Answer Period 

None 

19. Closed Session 

Resolution No. 2019-259 
Moved by:  Councillor Whalen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Jelly 

Be it resolved that Council agrees to convene in Closed Session at 7:20 p.m. to 
discuss the following matters: 

a) Adoption of the April 2, 2019 – Closed Session Minutes 

b) Under Section 239 (2) (b) of the Municipal Act, 2001 – Personal matter 
about an identifiable individual – Organizational Chart 

Carried 

Resolution No. 2019-260 
Moved by:  Councillor McArthur 
Seconded by:  Councillor Jelly 

Be it resolved that Council agrees to rise with report from Closed Session at 7:26 
p.m. 

Carried  

Matters from Closed Session: 

a) Adoption of the April 2, 2019 – Closed Session Minutes 

The Closed Session Minutes from the April 2, 2019 Regular Council meeting 
were not distributed to Council. This item will be deferred for Council’s 
consideration at the May 7, 2019 Regular Council meeting. 
 

b) Under Section 239 (2) (b) of the Municipal Act, 2001 – Personal matter 
about an identifiable individual – Organizational Chart 

Resolution No. 2019-261 
Moved by:   Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Whalen 
 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – April 16, 2019 Page 15 
 

 

Be it resolved that Council approves a revised Organizational Chart for the City 
of Temiskaming Shores and directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to 
adopt the New Organizational Chart for consideration at the May 7, 2019 Regular 
Council meeting.  
 

Carried 

20. Confirming By-law 

Resolution No. 2019-262 
Moved by:  Councillor Whalen 
Seconded by:  Councillor McArthur 

Be it resolved that By-law No. 2019-069 being a by-law to confirm certain 
proceedings of Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores for its 
Regular meeting held on April 16, 2019 be hereby introduced and given first and 
second reading. 

Carried 

Resolution No. 2019-263 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Whalen 

Be it resolved that By-law No. 2019-069 be given third and final reading, be signed 
by the Mayor and Clerk and the corporate seal affixed thereto. 

Carried 

21. Adjournment 

Resolution No. 2019-264 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor McArthur 

Be it resolved that City Council adjourns at 7:28 p.m. 

Carried 

 

__________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 

 
 
 
__________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



The Council of the Town of Minto met on April 16, 2019 to consider the above noted item 
and passed the following motion:  

Motion: COW 2019-069 

Moved by: Councillor Elliott 
Seconded by: Councillor Anderson 

Whereas the Provincial government announced it was conducting a review of the Ontario 
Municipal Partnership Fund (OMPF), which provides annual funding allotments to municipal 
governments to help offset operating and capital costs; and 

Whereas Municipalities were further advised that the overall spending envelope for the program 
would decrease having a significant impact on future budgets and how funds are raised by 
Municipalities as funding will be reduced by an unspecified amount; and 

Whereas if allocations to municipalities are reduced, Councils will need to compensate with 
property tax increases or local service reductions; and 

Whereas, the 2018 Town of Minto allocation was $1,630,700 which is equivalent to 33.96% of the 
Town’s municipal property tax revenue; and 

Whereas the Town of Minto prides itself on efficient and value for money practices every day; 

And Whereas, a 33.96% increase in the municipal property tax rate would increase the municipal 
component of property taxes paid for an average household by $403 per year; 

Now therefore be it resolved that although an interim payment has been received, Council of the 
Town of Minto expresses grave concern with the potential reduction and/or loss of the OMPF 
allotment in future years; 

And Further, Council petitions the Provincial government to complete the OMPF review in an 
expeditious manner as future financial consideration ensures municipal sustainability; 

And furthermore, that this resolution be circulated to the Premier, Ministers of Finance, Municipal 
Affairs and Housing, our local MPP and all Ontario municipalities for their endorsement and 
support. 

 
Annilene McRobb, Dipl. M.M., CMO 
Deputy Clerk 
Town of Minto 



 

Municipal budgets may be affected by animal cruelty 
enforcement changes 

A download risk is developing for municipal governments and police services regarding 
the enforcement of animal cruelty laws. 

AMO has been advised that the Ministry of the Solicitor General is canvassing all 
municipal CAOs and police services for information related to current practises. The 
Ministry is seeking input by April 24, 2019. A number of developments are driving the 
request for data to inform the redesign of Ontario’s animal cruelty enforcement system: 

• The Ontario Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals (OSPCA) 
announced that it has stopped enforcing animal cruelty legislation related to 
livestock and horses as of April 1, 2019. 

• The OSPCA has also advised that all other animal cruelty enforcement activities 
will cease on June 28, 2019. 

• A Superior Court of Justice ruling recently declared the OSPCA’s enforcement 
powers to be unconstitutional. The decision is under appeal and the ruling has 
been suspended for one year. 

Last week the Ministry of Community Safety and Correctional Services (now called the 
Ministry of the Solicitor General) wrote to all Chiefs of Police and the OPP advising that, 
“Police services may see an increase in calls for service related to these 
matters.”  Typically, police are not trained for specialized enforcement related to 
livestock and horses. Some fee-for-service resources will be available to support police 
to address the immediate enforcement gaps. 

The Ministry has not indicated whether the downloading of livestock and horse related 
enforcement to the police is permanent or temporary. This represents a new unfunded 
municipal mandate. Last year the OPSCA received 1,650 complaints related specifically 
to livestock and horses. In the long-term, AMO believes the Ministry of Agriculture, 
Food, and Rural Affairs should assume responsibility for livestock and horse cruelty 
enforcement. 

The AMO’s Board of Directors adopted a position with respect to this emerging issue. 
AMO encourages the Ontario government to: 

• Adopt a provincial service delivery model for animal cruelty enforcement that 
could be based on other provincial models or a hybrid of these models, and 



• Provide provincial funding to those municipal governments that might be willing 
to provide animal cruelty enforcement services. 

Animal cruelty investigations are based on complaints only. To give a sense of the 
workload, in 2017 the OSPCA investigated 15,519 complaints which resulted in 3,988 
animal care orders, 1,220 animals removed, 573 provincial charges, and 21 criminal 
charges. In 2017, the OSPCA’s activities (including enforcement) were supported by 
$5.6 million in provincial funding, $7 million in private donations, and $2.3 million worth 
of municipal contracts. The OSPCA has used 65 inspectors across the province. 

OPSCA enforcement activities have varied considerably across the province depending, 
in part, on whether a specific municipality offers animal services or standards of care. At 
present, municipal bylaw enforcement officers lack the necessary powers for animal 
cruelty investigations. In addition, police officers and bylaw enforcement officers do not 
have the training required to conduct this work. 

Municipal Councils seeking to inform the government’s decisions are encouraged to 

contact their MPP or write to the Solicitor General (sylvia.jones@ontario.ca), the 

Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing (minister.mah@ontario.ca), and the Minister of 

Agriculture, Food, and Rural Affairs (minister.omafra@ontario.ca).  The AMO President, 

Jamie McGarvey, would appreciate receiving copies of any correspondence at: 

amopresident@amo.on.ca 

 

Matthew Wilson 

Senior Advisor 

mailto:sylvia.jones@ontario.ca
mailto:minister.mah@ontario.ca
mailto:minister.omafra@ontario.ca
mailto:amopresident@amo.on.ca


PUBLIC NOTICE 
LANDSQUARED (ON BEHALF OF ROGERS COMMUNICATIONS INC.) 

PROPOSED 70m SELF-SUPPORT 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS STRUCTURE 

 

SUBJECT: 

Type: A 70m tall Self-Support 
telecommunications structure. 

Location: No municipal address – across from 
221 St. Josephs Crt, Temiskaming Shores, ON 

Legal Description: PART OF LOT 10 
CONCESSION 3 

Facility: The facility will include a proposed 
15m x 15m fenced compound. 

Site: The site will provide improved wireless 
voice and data for the surrounding area. 

Safety Code 6: All carriers placing their 
equipment on the tower must adhere Health 
Canada’s Safety Code 6 regarding 
radiofrequencies and maximum power input. 

 
APPLICANT CONTACT 
Further information may also be obtained 
through the following contact: 
LandSquared, Leticia Avanse  
10 Four Seasons Pl, Suite 1056  
Etobicoke, ON, M9B 0A6  
(647) 241-2788  
leticia@landsquared.com  
 
Innovation, Science and Economic 
Development Canada (ISEDC) is the 
governing body and can be contacted at: 
ISEDC - Eastern and Northern Ontario District 
Office  
2 Queen Street East, Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario, 
P6A 1Y3 
ic.spectrumenod-spectretdeno.ic@canada.ca 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

General information on wireless infrastructure: 
www.industrycanada.ca/antenna 
 
MUNICIPAL CONTACT 
City of Temiskaming Shores, Planning 
Jennifer Pye, MCIP, RPP 
705-672-3363 ext. 4105 
jpye@temiskamingshores.ca 
 
ANY PERSON may make a written submission 
to the individuals listed as applicant contact by 
close of day May 24, 2019 with respect to this 
matter. Please reference site C8008 in your 
correspondence.      

SITE LOCATION MAP 

	





En1.hart I District Arku1turat Socl.t
RO. Box 490

Et%5thart. Ontatlo
POJ 1.HO

RECEIVED

16 2019

Municipalities of the District of Temiskaming April 11, 2019

To Mayor and Counsillors:

The Englehart & District Agricultural Society will be hosting the 11 0th annual Fall Fair at
the Englehart Arena Complex and Fair Barns. The theme for this year is “New
Beginnings.” The dates of the fair are September 5, 6, & 7, 2019.

This year we are going back to a 3 day fair, we are hoping to expand children and adult
events, for example more inflatables, games, livestock displays and exhibits.

We are looking for any financial donations we can get toward sponsorship.

If your municipality is interested in putting in a booth as well, feel free to contact me at
hc11eatcUtti12O1’27outloOl.COn1 or leave a message at 705 672 1032.

Sincerely

Brian Smith
President

N



CSCDG9 CONSEIL SCOLAIRE
CATHOUQIJE
DE DISTRICT DES

GRADES
RIVIERES

École catholique Ste-Croix
Karyne Labonté, Directrice

Le 12 avril 2019

Ville de Temiskaming Shores
325 Prom. Farr
Haileybury, ON
P0J 1KO

Cher Monsieur Carman Kidd,

Consciente de votre intérêt et de votre implication auprès de Ia communauté en

général et de Ia jeunesse en particulier, consciente aussi de l’aide financière que vous

accordez régulièrement a des individus, a des groupes ou a des associations qui en font

Ia demande, je m’adresse a vous aujourd’hui pour m’enquérir des possibilités d’obtenir

un don de votre organisation pour notre journée de mérites a Ia fin juin.

Je vous remercie pour toute Ia consideration que vous accorderez a cette demande,

avec l’espoir de recevoir bientôt une réponse.

Salutations,

Karyne Labonté

304, avenue Rorke, C.P. 2040, Temiskaming Shores ON POJ IKO
Tél. : 705.672.3661 Téléc. : 705.672.3219



P0 BOX 99 AIRPORT ROAD 1LLFP1I0’,L 70D 563 2215
EARL I O\ O I ARIO FAX 705 563 2299
POT 110

SINCE 137:

Eariton-TimiskamingRegional Airport

April 24, 2019

The Corporation of the Township of Armstrong
P.O. Box 546
Earlton, ON POJ lEO

Dear Mr. Boileau,

In response to your letter dated March 29, 2019, I would like to respond on behalf of the
Board of Directors, of the Earlton-Timiskaming Regional Airport Authority, and as the
Mayor of Temiskaming Shores.

The ETRAA and my council recognize that the Drag n Fly event would provide
economic benefit to Earlton. Our board has received delegations and discussed this
matter at length, over the last couple of years.

With new direction received from Transport Canada, this past January, forcing us to
completely close the airport, if there is any obstructions on our runways or apron, this
would put at risk our ability to airlift our residents to emergency medical services, during
the period that the Drag n Fly event is being held. Providing this air ambulance service
on a 24/7 basis is the main reason for our 12 member municipalities, supporting this
regional airport. We are not willing to risk the lives of our friends and family, for the sake
of generating $5,000. revenue, to host a social event.

A lot of money has been invested in new fuel tanks and card-lock system, and
constructing new t-hangers, to better service our local private plane owners, who spend
a lot of money for landing fees and fuel, especially on weekends. We also generate a lot

XVebsite: E—mail: hcameron@timiskairport.com



of revenue from our air ambulance, search and rescue crews and commercial
customers, which would be forced to land at other airports, during the event.

Our board must also consider the damage to the runway, caused by installing and
removing the cement barricades, the rubber that remains on part of the runway, causing
breaking issues, and the damage to the grounds, especially during rain events. This
spring we are spending tens of thousands of dollars doing repairs to our main runway,
so any damage caused by this Drag n Fly event, would be counter-productive.

The decision to turn down the request to lease the airport for this event was not taken
lightly, and after much discussion, the board voted 11 to 1 against this venture. The
Board of Directors appreciate all the support from our member municipalities, and are
committed to managing the airport, with the intent of seeing it’s usage grow, and to
generate more and more revenue.

Sincerely,

Carman Kidd

ETRAA president! Mayor of Temiskaming Shores

cc; Township of Casey
Township of Chamberlin
Municipality of Charlton and Dack
Township of Coleman
Town of Englehart
Township of Evanturel
Township of Harley
Township of Hilliard
Township of Hudson
City of Temiskaming Shores
Village of Thorn be
Township of Kerns











































































Chris Oslund

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

La version francaise suit.

Minister Steve Clark <mah@ontario.ca>
Thursday, May 2, 2019 4:03 PM
Chris Oslund
More Homes, More Choice: Ontario’s Housing Supply Action Plan

Ministry of
Municipal Affairs
and Housing

Office of the Mirieter

777 Ba Street, 17 Floc
Tcxont ON MEG 2EE
Te’., 41 ESE-7000
F 4leEgE-e470

lnistère des
Affaires municipales
etdu Logement

Sixu u miriisVe

777, rue Bay, 17 étage
Tcrnto ON MEG E
Tél 41eE-BE-7000
Téléc 41e.EsE-e73

Ontario’s Government for the People is committed to building more housing and bringing downcosts for the people of Ontario. To help fulfill this commitment, we have developed a broad-basedaction plan to address the barriers getting in the way of new ownership and rental housing.

More Homes, More Choice (the action plan) outlines our government’s plan to tackle Ontario’shousing crisis, while encouraging our partners to do their part. We are taking steps to make itfaster and easier for municipalities, non-profits and private firms to build the right types of housingin the right places, to meet the needs of people in every part of Ontario.

As part of the action plan, we are proposing changes that would streamline the complexdevelopment approvals process to remove unnecessary duplication and barriers, while makingcosts and timelines more predictable. We are also proposing changes that would make it easier tobuild certain types of priority housing such as second units.

On May 2, 2019, the government introduced Bill 108 (the bill), the proposed More Homes, MoreChoice Act, 2019, in the Ontario Legislature. While the bill contains initiatives from variousministries, I would like to share some details regarding initiatives led by the Ministry of MunicipalAffairs and Housing.

P’anning Act

O,’r.irtc,

Dear Head of Council:

19-002850

1



Schedule 12 of the bill proposes changes to the Planning Act that would help make the planningsystem more efficient and effective, increase housing supply in Ontario, and streamline planningapprovals.

If passed, the proposed changes would:

• Streamline development approvals processes and facilitate faster decisions,• Increase the certainty and predictability of the planning system,
• Support a range and mix of housing options, and boost housing supply,• Make charges for community benefits more predictable, and
• Make other complementary amendments to implement the proposed reforms, including howthe proposed changes would affect planning matters that are in-process.

Amendments to the Planning Act are also proposed to address concerns about the land useplanning appeal system. Proposed changes would broaden the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal’sjurisdiction over major land use planning matters (e.g., official plan amendments and zoning by-lawamendments) and give the Tribunal the authority to make a final determination on appeals of thesematters. The Ministry of the Attorney General is also proposing changes to the Local PlanningAppeal Tribunal Act, 2017 to complement these changes (see Schedule 9 of the bill).

Development Charges Act

Schedule 3 of the bill proposes changes to the Development Charges Act that would make housingmore attainable by reducing costs to build certain types of housing and would increase thecertainty of costs to improve the likelihood of developers proceeding with cost sensitive projects,such as rental housing.

If passed, the proposed changes would:

• Make it easier for municipalities to recover costs for waste diversion,
• Increase the certainty of development costs in specific circumstances and for certain typesof developments,
• Make housing more attainable by reducing costs to build certain types of homes, and• Make other complementary amendments to implement the proposed reforms.

Further consultation on the Planning Act and Development Charges Act

We are interested in receiving any comments you may have on the proposed changes to thePlanning Act and the Development Charges Act. Comments on these proposed measures can bemade through the Environmental Registry of Ontario as follows:

• Planning Act: posting number 019-0016
• Development Charges Act: posting number 019-0017

The Environmental Registry postings provide additional details regarding the proposed changes.

A Place to Grow: Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe

2



A Place to Grow: Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe is an important part of the actionplan that addresses the needs of the growing population, the diversity of the region and its people,and the local priorities. With A Place to Grow, we will make it faster and easier to build housing sothat the growing number of people who live and work in the Greater Golden Horseshoe can find ahome.

We recognize that different parts of Ontario need different solutions, including Northern and ruralOntario. While the Growth Plan for Northern Ontario continues to guide long-term economic growthin the North, our government is taking steps right now to support this growth by reducing red tapeand burdens in Ontario’s Northern and rural communities with More Homes, More Choice.

Taken together, the actions outlined in More Homes, More Choice - including the proposedchanges detailed above - will make it easier to build the right types of housing in the right places,make housing more affordable and help taxpayers keep more of their hard-earneddollars. Building more housing will make the province more attractive for employers and investors,proving that Ontario is truly Open for Business.

This action plan is complemented by our recently announced Community Housing RenewalStrategy, which will help sustain, repair and grow our community housing system. Together thesetwo plans will ensure that all Ontarians can find a home that meets their needs.

At the same time, More Homes, More Choice underscores our commitment to maintain Ontario’svibrant agricultural sector and employment lands, protect sensitive areas like the Greenbelt, andpreserve cultural heritage. Our plan will ensure that every community can build in response tolocal interests and demand while accommodating diverse needs.

Our government recognizes the key role that municipalities will play in implementing the actionplan, and we know that you share our desire to bring more housing to the people of Ontario. I lookforward to working with you as we implement More Homes, More Choice.

Sincerely,

Steve Clark

Minister

C:

Chief Administrative Officer
Clerk

3



PRESENT: Mayor Carman Kidd; Councillor Mike McArthur; Chris Oslund,
City Manager; Tammie CaIdwell, Director of Recreation; Jeff
Thompson, Superintendent of Community Programs; Paul Allair,
Superintendent of Parks and Facilities; Chuck Durrant, Simone
Holzamer, Dan Lavigne,

REGRETS: Councillor Jesse Foley; Richard Beauchamp

3.0 REVIEW OF REVISIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA

Tammie CaIdwell requested that under Section 7. Delegations/Presentations Subsection
i) that a presentation from Alex Regele and Katherine Trudel re: Minor Ball Non-Resident
User Fees be added.

Councilor McArthur requested an addition to the agenda under Section 9. New Business
Subsection xii) James Patterson — Request for reduction in ice fees.

4.0 APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Recommendation RS-2018-014
Moved by: Chuck Durrant
Seconded by: Carman Kidd

Be it recommended that the Recreation Services Committee Agenda for the March 11,
2019 meeting be approved as amended.

CARRIED

5.ODISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST AND GENERAL NA TURE

There was no disclosure of pecuniary interest and general nature

6.0 REVIEWAND ADOPTION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES

Recommendation RS-2019-015
Moved by: Simone Holzamer
Seconded by: Chuck Durrant

That the minutes of the Recreation Services Committee of February 11, 2019 be adopted
as presented.

RECREATION SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTESiemIsamlng Monday March, 2019 6;30 pmShores New Liskeard Community Hall — 90 Whitewood Avenue

1.0 CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 6:33 p.m.

2.0 ROLL CALL

1



RECREATION SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTESemKsaming
Monday March, 2019 6:30 pmShores New Liskeard Community Hall — 90 Whitewood Avenue

CARRIED

7.0 DELEGATIONS IPUBLIC PRESENTATIONS

i) Alex Regele, Katherine Trudel — Minor Ball Non-Resident User Fees

The smaller communities in the Minor Ball League are having a difficult time
fielding teams as the number of children playing is decreasing. The
children/youth that would like to continue to play could register with the
Temiskaming Shores program and still use the fields and equipment of the
small township that they come from. Games are played half in Temiskaming
Shores and half out of town. In time, all of the smaller communities may have
to join up with Temiskaming Shores which would be beneficial to ensure that
all teams in the league are as equal as possible to ensure competitive games
and not stacked’. The request was to have the non-resident user fee waived
for the Minor Ball program.

Discussion took place in regard to the smaller townships covering the cost of
the Non-resident user fee as is done in other townships, and the appetite for
the smaller townships to pay a lump sum fee for year that would eliminate non
resident user fees for the individual.

Discussion also took place in regard to the availability of playing fields in
Temiskaming Shores and if playing at out of town facilities where a program is
not offered is required.

8.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS
• None

9.ONEW BUSINESS

i) City Manager — Conflict of Interest

This item was moved up in the agenda to follow Section 6.0 Review and
Adoption of Previous Minutes.

ii) Programming Update — Jeff Thompson

2



RECREATION SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTESemisaming Monday March, 2019 6:30 pm
Sh01’CS New Liskeard Community Hall — 90 Whitewood Avenue

Jeff was attending the Lions Club monthly meeting and joined the Recreation

Committee at 7:00 pm. He updated the Committee on the presentation to the
New Liskeard Lions Club in regard to the Tennis Court re-surfacing project and
Pickleball courts.

The Committee received the presentation for information purposes.

iii) Parks and Facilities Update — Paul Allair

The Committee received the presentation for information purposes

iv) Property Maintenance Update — Tammie Caldwell

The Committee received the presentation for information purposes

v) Director’s Update

The Committee received the presentation for information purposes.

vi) Ball Field Proposal

At the February 11th, 2019 meeting a presentation was made by Nolan

Dambrowski, Clint Bearisto and Ian Duval requesting the Temiskaming Shores
Baseball Diamond Improvements at Algonquin Beach Park be considered in

the 2020 budget and to consider allowing the project to move forward without
financial considerations at this time.

The Committee discussed the request and determined that it would be in the
best interest of the city and the presenters to defer the request to the completion
of the Recreation Master Plan which is budgeted to begin in 2019 and

completed in 2020.

Recommendation RS-2019-016
Moved by: Simone Holzamer
Seconded by: Chuck Durrant

That the Recreation Services Committee defer the request for the Algonquin Beach Park

Improvements to the Recreation Master Plan process and that Nolan Dambrowski, Clint

3



.rI1

p RECREATION SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTESemIsaming Monday March, 2019 6:30 pm
New Liskeard Community Hall — 90 Whitewood Avenue

Bearisto and Ian Duval be included in the public consultation process for the Recreation
Master Plan.

CARRIED

vii) Centre de Sante — Riverside Place — Request to Waive Rental Fee

The Committee discussed the request from the Centre de Sante to waive the
rental fee for Riverside Place for the annual community walk and lunch on May
9th 2019 and the annual senior’s lunch on June 5th, 2019

Recommendation RS-2019-O1 7
Moved by: Carman Kidd
Seconded by: Danny Lavigne

That the Recreation Services Committee approve the request from the Centre
de Sante to waive the rental fee for Riverside Place for the annual community
walk and lunch on May 9th, 2019 and the annual seniors lunch on June 5,
2019.

viii) AC 15 Hockey Tournament — Request for Use of Lobby

The Committee discussed the request form Linda St. Cyron behalf of the AC15
Organizing Committee requesting approval to once again host a licensed area
in the lobby of the Don Shepherdson Memorial Arena April 5th to 7th 2019.

The request was approved in 2018 as a pilot project and it was very well
managed and received. There were no issues identified with the licensed area
and the concession operators were very accommodating.

Recommendation RS-2019-018
Moved by: Carman Kidd
Seconded by: Danny Lavigne

That the Recreation Services Committee approve the request from Linda St.
Cyr requesting approval to once again host a licensed area in the lobby of the
Don Shepherdson Memorial Arena April 5th to 7th 2019.

CARRIED

ix) Ryan Soucie, Caribbean Goodwill Tour — Request to waive fee for Ball Fields

4



p “‘“
RECREATION SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTESemis.aming Monday March, 2019 6:30 pm

Shores New Liskeard Community Hall — 90 Whitewood Avenue

The Committee reviewed the request to waive the rental fee for the use of the

ball fields for the charity tournament to raise funds for the Caribbean Goodwill

Tour.

Recommendation RS-2019-019
Moved by: Carman Kidd
Seconded by: Chuck Durrant

That the Recreation Services Committee directs staff to inform Mr. Soucie that the rental
fee of $28.00 per game or $1 15.00 per day plus HST will apply.

CARRIED

x) Minor Ball Program — Non-Resident User Fee

The Committee discussed the request to waive the Non-Resident User Fee for

the Minor Ball Program and determined that the policy to charge the fee to

individuals not living within the boundaries of the City of Temiskaming Shores

would apply as it does for all Temiskaming Shores programs.

Recommendation RS-2019-020
Moved by: Simone Holzamer
Seconded by: Danny Lavigne

That the Recreation Services Committee directs staff to inform the Temiskaming Shores
Minor Ball Program that the Non-resident user fee will apply to the Minor Ball Program as
per By-Law No. 2012-039.

xi) Tn-Town Ski and Snowboard Village — Canada D’Eh Summerfest Concert

The Committee discussed the request from the Tn-Town Ski and Snowboard

Village for permission for the use of land, saddle tent, picnic tables, use of

transformers and electrical, use of arena for banking area, fencing, manpower

for set up and take down, the stage inside the NL Arena in case of rain and

promotional support.

Recommendation RS-2019-021
Moved by: Simone Holzamer
Seconded by: Chuck Durrant

That the Recreation Services Committee approve the request from the Tn-Town Ski and

Snowboard Village with the understanding that there is limited fencing available from the

5



i:J
p

‘“‘‘
RECREATION SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTESemi.saming Monday March, 2019 6:30 pmShores New Liskeard Community Hall — 90 Whitewood Avenue

municipality, city staff wifl set up the saddle tent, city staff will arrange the delivery and
pick up of fencing and picnic tables but will not guarantee manpower for set up and take
down. The request for promotional support will be forwarded to the Economic
Development Officer for the municipality.

CARRI ED

xii) James T. Patterson — Request for reduction in ice fees March 23 and 24 and
April11 to 14

The Committee discussed the request from James Paterson to have the ice
rental fee reduced for a girls tournament March 23 and 24 and the Bantam OHF
tournament April 11 to 14.

Recommendation RS-2018-022
Moved by: Chuck Durrant
Seconded by: Danny Lavigne

That the Recreation Services Committee direct staff to inform Mr. Paterson that the youth
hourly ice rental rate of $96.00 plus HST will be applied for the March 23 and 24th
tournament and the April 11 to 14, 2019 tournament.

CARRIED

10.0 SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 2019
• April 8

• May13

• June 10
• September 9
• October 14
• November18
• December 9

11.0 CLOSED SESSION

There was no closed session.

12.0 ADJOURNMENT

6



j RECREATION SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES1cmisftamlng Monday March, 2019 6:30 pm
Shores New Liskeard Community Hall — 90 Whitewood Avenue

Recommendation RS-2018-023
Moved by: Dan Lavigne

Be it resolved that the Recreation Services Committee meeting of Monday Febriary 11,
2019 be adjourned at 8:45 p.m. /

CARRIED

7 ,/ommittee Chair

Recorder

7



  Recreation Services 
011-2019-RS 

Memo 
To: Mayor and Council 

From: Tammie Caldwell, Director of Recreation 

Date:  May 7, 2019 

Subject: Haileybury Heritage Museum Request  

Attachments: Letter of Request 

Mayor and Council: 

The municipality received a letter of request from the Haileybury Heritage Museum on April 18th, 2019 
requesting donations for a large fundraising live auction they will be hosting on Sunday June 2nd, 
2019 to generate much needed funds for the community museum. 

The request included a one-year membership at the Waterfront Pool/Fitness Centre or a one-year 
boat slip rental and the use of 30 rectangular tables for the event (to be picked up and returned by 
the Organizing Committee). A number of years ago, the municipality determined that tables and 
chairs would not be rented out or loaned as the cost of replacement was significant. The museum 
plays a significant role in the preservation of the history of the municipality and works diligently as a 
not-for-profit organization to keeps the doors open to the public. 

Staff have reviewed the request and recommend the donation of a one-year fitness membership for 
the Waterfront Pool/Fitness Centre and the use of the tables for the event on a one time only basis 
and under the condition that they are picked up and returned by the Event Organizing Committee. 

Prepared by: Reviewed and submitted for 
 Council’s consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” “Original signed by” 
___________________ _______________________ 
Tammie Caldwell Christopher W. Oslund 
Director of Leisure Services City Manager 



HAILEYBURY HERITAGE MUSEUM
575 Main Street, P.O. Box 911,
Haileybury, Ontario
POJ 1KO

Tammie CaIdwell
Director of Recreation
City of Temiskaming Shores

Hello Tammie,

On Sunday, June 2, 2019, the Haileybury Heritage Museum will be holding a large fundraising live

auction at the Cobalt-Haileybury Curling Club. It is our hope that this event will generate much needed

funds in our efforts to continue our operation as a community museum.

While we are presently receiving many donations throughout the area, I would like you to consider

helping us host this auction by allowing us to borrow approximately 30 rectangular tables to be used to

display the auction items in the curling club. We are willing to provide museum volunteers to pick up

and return these tables.
On another note, we would like to also ask the city to consider providing a donation to this auction. A

couple of ideas that come to mind include a membership at the Pool & Fitness Centre or a one-year

boat-slip rental at one of our two marinas. If any donation could be provided, it would be greatly

appreciated.
In closing, I would like to thank you for your help and hope that you may join us on June 2 at the

auction. Thank you.

Brian Dobbs
Auction Organizer

Haileybury Heritage Museum
575 Main St.
Haileybury, Ontario
POJ 1KO
Ph. 705-672-1922
Email —

Phone: 705-672-1922 Fax: 705-672-2551

April 17, 2019

Email: hhmuseum@ hotmail.ca



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 
Public Works Page 1 
 

 

Subject: ICIP Funding Application - Replacement Report No.: PW-010-2019  

 of Roy’s Bridge (Uno Park Rd.) Agenda Date: May 7, 2019 

 

Appendix 01: Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program Funding Guidelines 

Appendix 02: 2016 OSIM Bridge Insp. Report – Uno Park Road Bridge (Roy’s Bridge)  

Appendix 03: Road Services and Repair Agreement with Harley Township 

Appendix 04: Resolution – Harley Township 

Recommendations 

It is recommended: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of 
Administrative Report No. PW-010-2019 regarding the reconstruction of the 
Uno Park Road Bridge (known locally as “Roy’s Bridge”); 

2. That Council acknowledges that road services and repairs of Uno Park Road is 
a shared responsibility with the Corporation of the Township of Harley through 
By-law No. 2015-120; 

3. That Council considers that, through the development of the Asset 
Management Plan, the existing structure located on Uno Park Road, being a 
boundary road between Temiskaming Shores and Harley Township, will be 
confirmed as a significant priority for the City of Temiskaming Shores; and  

4. That Council directs staff to work with the Township of Harley to finalize and 
submit an Application, complete with all applicable documentation, to the 
Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program (ICIP); Rural and Northern 
Communities Funding Stream for the replacement of “Roy’s Bridge” prior to the 
May 14, 2019 deadline.   

Background 

On March 18th, 2019 the Honourable Monte McNaughton, Minister of Infrastructure, 
announced that the Rural and Northern stream of the Investing in Canada 
Infrastructure Program (ICIP) was open to approximately 500 eligible Ontario 
communities with populations under 100,000 through the Grants Ontario website for 
an eight week period to nominate their road, bridge, air or marine infrastructure 
projects online. 

The application process will handle the application intake, review, nomination, 
reporting and transfer payment management processes - all in one place. 

Analysis 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 
Public Works Page 2 
 

 

Initially it was hoped that, given the fact that the former Ontario Community 
Infrastructure Fund (OCIF) had been cancelled and that notification had been 
received by the City that funding requested in the application submitted in August of 
2018 would not be forthcoming, perhaps the Albert Street Reconstruction Project 
would be an excellent candidate for the new funding stream.  However, upon further 
review of the program guidelines (attached as Appendix 01) it was determined that 
the replacement of buried infrastructure is not eligible for funding. In total, $250M of 
federal funding is available over the next ten (10) years with the province contributing 
up to 33.33% costs and the municipality or partners to contribute between 6.67 to 
16.67% of the eligible costs for the project. 

Assessment Criteria for the funding program is described as follows;  

Criterion 1: Criticality of health and/or safety risk 

Projects will be assessed according to critical health and safety aspects (primary 
project type only). The technical schedule will provide asset type specific questions for 
describing the health and safety risk. 

(1) Road project: Road infrastructure projects will be assessed for safety in terms of 
collisions and the reduction of collisions or collision severity associated with the project. 
This could be assessed through collision history, traffic volumes and Collision 
Modification Factor or Operational Performance Function depending on the project and 
information available. 

(2) Bridge projects: Bridge infrastructure projects will be assessed for safety in terms of 
the condition of the structure, which must be determined through an inspection carried 
out within the last two years in accordance with the Ontario Structure Inspection 
Manual (OSIM) or equivalent. 

Criterion 2: Technical merit of proposed project 

Projects will be assessed based on technical merit relative to industry standards. 
Projects must clearly demonstrate that the proposed project will address the noted 
critical health and safety risk, and how they meet the federal outcome of Improved 
and/or more reliable transportation (road, air and marine) infrastructure. The technical 
schedule will provide asset specific questions for describing the technical merit and 
reliability of the proposed project. 

Criterion 3: Funding need for the proposed project 

Projects will be assessed according to greater funding need, including the cost of the 
proposed project per household, median household income and weighted property 
assessment per household.  

Note: for Indigenous communities, proxy values may be applied. 

In general, applicants with greater funding need (i.e., higher project cost per household, 
lower median household income, lower weighted property assessment per household) 
will be more competitive in the evaluation process. However, applicants must still be 
able to fund all project costs and potential cost over-runs to be eligible for funding. 

Criterion 4: Efficiencies through joint projects 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 
Public Works Page 3 
 

 

Additional consideration will be given to joint projects for providing benefit to multiple 
communities and generating economies of scale. 

Given the above noted criteria, staff reviewed a number of potential projects as well 
as contacted potential neighbouring municipalities (partners) regarding projects of 
mutual benefit, that could qualify for nomination for ICIP funding. 

At the Public Works Committee Meeting held on April 4th, 2019, a recommendation 
that staff follow-up on earlier discussions in regards to partnering with the Township 
of Harley for submission of an application to the ICIP for the reconstruction of the 
Uno Park Road Bridge East (locally known as Roy Bridge) was discussed. Pending 
approval from both Councils, it was recommended that the project be nominated for 
consideration for funding in the Rural and Northern stream of the program.  

Relevant Policy / Legislation / City By-Law 

N/A 

Asset Management Plan Reference 

6.5.1 Priority Replacement Projects – 6.5.1.5 5 Bridges  

Consultation / Communication 

 Presentation to and discussion with Public Works Committee – March 21st & 
April 4th, 2019. 

 Consultation with Twp. Of Harley staff – April 1st, 4th & 11th  2019 

 Municipal Council advised of OCIF cancellation – April 2nd, 2019. 

 Administrative Report PW-010-2019 to Council, April 16th, 2019. 

Financial / Staffing Implications 

This item has been approved in the current budget: Yes   No   N/A  

This item is within the approved budget amount: Yes   No   N/A  

At this time staffing implications related to the preparation and submission of the 
Application for funding will be limited to normal administrative and operational 
functions and duties of existing municipal staff. If successful, the design and 
tendering of the bridge construction is anticipated in 2020 with the construction to be 
completed in 2021.  

Alternatives 

1. King Street Resurfacing - from Louise Street (Mileage 104) northward for an 
undetermined distance. 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 
Public Works Page 4 
 

 

2. King Street Resurfacing – from Groom Drive southward for an undetermined 
distance. 

3. Golf Course Road Bridge (East) Rehabilitation   

4. Mowat Landing Road Bridge and Approaches Rehabilitation 

5. Firstbrooke Line Road Bridge Replacement 

6. Uno Park Road Bridge (East) Replacement 

Submission 

Prepared by: Reviewed and submitted for 
 Council’s consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” “Original signed by”  
___________________ _______________________ 
G. Douglas Walsh, CET Christopher W. Oslund 
Director of Public Works City Manager 



Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program - Rural and Northern Communities Funding 
Stream Ontario Program Guidelines 

1 
 

 

INVESTING IN CANADA INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM: 

Rural and Northern Communities Funding Stream 

 

Program Guidelines – 2019 Intake 
March 2019 

  



Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program - Rural and Northern Communities Funding 
Stream Ontario Program Guidelines 

2 
 

Table of Contents 
1. Overview – Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program ............................................... 4 

2. Objectives – Rural and Northern Communities Stream ................................................. 4 

3. Applicant Eligibility ........................................................................................................... 4 

4. Project Eligibility and Conditions .................................................................................... 5 

4.1 Eligible Projects ........................................................................................................... 5 

4.2 Joint Projects ............................................................................................................... 6 

4.3 Project Conditions ........................................................................................................ 6 

4.4 Other Federal Requirements ........................................................................................ 7 

5. Project Submission Process ............................................................................................ 8 

5.1 Number of Project Submissions ................................................................................... 8 

5.2 Submissions and Funding Approval Steps ................................................................... 8 

6. Timelines ........................................................................................................................... 9 

7. Evaluation Process ........................................................................................................... 9 

7.1 Recipient Eligibility and Application Completeness ...................................................... 9 

7.2 Project Scope Review .................................................................................................. 9 

7.3 Alignment with Provincial Policies ...............................................................................10 

7.3.1 Land Use Planning ..................................................................................................10 

7.3.2 Asset Management Planning ...................................................................................10 

7.4 Assessment Criteria ....................................................................................................10 

8. Financial, Contractual and Reporting Requirements ....................................................11 

8.1 Maximum Project Costs ..............................................................................................11 

8.2 Cost Sharing ...............................................................................................................12 

8.3 Stacking of Funding ....................................................................................................12 

8.4 Eligible Costs ..............................................................................................................13 

8.5 Ineligible Costs ...........................................................................................................13 

8.6 Payments ....................................................................................................................14 

8.7 Contractual obligations ...............................................................................................15 

8.8 Reporting Requirements .............................................................................................15 

9. Consultations with Indigenous Peoples .........................................................................15 

Appendix A – Federal Program Parameters ..........................................................................16 

I. Eligible Recipients ..........................................................................................................16 

II. Procurement ...................................................................................................................16 

III. Climate Lens Assessment ...........................................................................................16 

IV. Community Employment Benefits ...............................................................................16 



Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program - Rural and Northern Communities Funding 
Stream Ontario Program Guidelines 

3 
 

V. Environmental Assessment ............................................................................................16 

VI. Aboriginal Consultation ...............................................................................................17 

Appendix B – Asset Management Regulation Phase-In Schedule [municipalities only] ...18 

 



Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program - Rural and Northern Communities Funding 
Stream Ontario Program Guidelines 

4 
 

1. Overview – Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program 
The Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program (ICIP) is a federal program designed to create 

long-term economic growth, build inclusive, sustainable and resilient communities and support a 

low-carbon economy. 

Through the ICIP, the federal government is providing $11.8 billion dollars in federal 

infrastructure funding to cost-share projects under the following four streams: 

• Public Transit 

• Green Infrastructure 

• Community, Culture and Recreation 

• Rural and Northern Communities 

The Province of Ontario is a cost sharing partner in these programs. Under this intake of the 

Rural and Northern Communities Funding Stream, Ontario is supporting transportation priorities 

of small, rural and northern communities. 

2. Objectives – Rural and Northern Communities Stream 
The Rural and Northern Communities Funding Stream supports projects that improve the quality 

of life in rural and northern communities by responding to rural and northern infrastructure 

priorities. Approximately $250 million in federal funding will be available over 10 years starting in 

2018-19.  The province will roll-out the funding through multiple intakes. 

The objective of the current intake is to: 

• Support improved and/or more reliable road assets 

• Support improved and/or more reliable bridge assets 

• Support improved and/or more reliable air infrastructure assets 

• Support improved and/or more reliable marine infrastructure assets 

The current intake targets near-term transportation improvement projects. Future intakes 

may prioritize other federal and provincial priorities, such as improved broadband connectivity. 

Note: Rural and Northern Communities Funding – 2019 Intake is a competitive process. 

Funding approval is not guaranteed. In addition, the province may contact an applicant 

to request additional information or for clarification on information provided in the 

application form or supporting documentation. 

3. Applicant Eligibility 
Eligible applicants under the Rural and Northern Communities Funding stream are: 

• Ontario municipalities with a population of 100,000 or less based on 2016 Statistics 

Canada Census data; and 

• Indigenous communities in Ontario, defined as band councils under the Indian Act (i.e. 

Indian Act Band Councils). For additional clarity, see federal language in the Appendix. 



Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program - Rural and Northern Communities Funding 
Stream Ontario Program Guidelines 

5 
 

Note: Joint projects between multiple eligible applicants are encouraged and additional 

consideration will be given to joint projects as part of the assessment. 

4. Project Eligibility and Conditions 

4.1 Eligible Projects 

(1) Eligible project stages: A project must include a capital component. A project may also 

include pre-construction planning and design work; however, planning and design work are 

not eligible as stand-alone projects. 

(2) Eligible asset type: 

• road; 

• bridge; 

• air; and 

• marine.  

(3) Eligible project types: 

• new construction;  

• rehabilitation; or 

• replacement work. 

(4) Other requirements: 

• Road/Bridge asset types: Highway or trade corridor infrastructure, except for portions 

that connect communities that do not already have year-round access, are not eligible. 

In addition, resource development infrastructure, notably industrial resource 

development access roads, are not eligible. 

• Air asset type: Projects are limited to ground-based infrastructure such as runways, 

aprons and taxiways, lighting systems, terminals, garages, and airside elements such as 

de-icing systems. Projects are limited to Regional/Local airports and must be compliant 

with Canadian Aviation Regulations and other Transport Canada regulations, including 

certification by Transport Canada. 

• Marine asset type: Projects are limited to marine vessels and docking infrastructure 

which support improved community access to transportation. Pleasure crafts and related 

infrastructure, including marinas, are not eligible. Projects must be compliant with the 

Canada Shipping Act and other Transport Canada regulations. 

• Bundling of eligible asset types: Applicants must select only one primary project asset 

type but may bundle more than one eligible project asset type. For example, a project 

may have both road and bridge components. If an applicant submits a bundled project, a 

majority of the total eligible project costs (at least 51%) must be for the primary project 

type and the applicant should only complete the technical schedule for that primary 

project type. Bundled projects must demonstrate that each component of the project is 

inter-related and meets eligibility requirements.  

• Bundling of ineligible asset types: Applicants may also undertake other capital works 

(i.e., water, wastewater and/or stormwater) for a project submitted for funding; however, 

costs associated with ineligible asset work will not be eligible for funding as it does not 



Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program - Rural and Northern Communities Funding 
Stream Ontario Program Guidelines 

6 
 

meet federal requirements. Costs for ineligible asset types should not be included in the 

total eligible project costs. 

• Physical Connectivity of Components: The entire project, and any bundled 

components, must be contiguous (i.e., the same geographic location and where all 

components of the project touch/intersect). For example, a road project must not have 

any breaks between work sections. 

• Location/Benefit: Projects must be situated within, and be for the direct benefit of, a 

rural and northern eligible applicant. 

• Asset ownership: Municipalities must attest to owning the infrastructure assets put 

forward for funding. Indigenous applicants must attest to having care and control over 

the infrastructure assets put forward for funding. Please note the exception for 

Air/Marine assets below. 

• Exceptions for Air/ Marine asset ownership: Air and/or marine projects do not need to 

be owned by the eligible applicant. Rather, the air or marine asset may be owned by a 

for-profit or non-for-profit entity. However, the eligible applicant and the asset owner 

must endorse the project. The eligible applicant must attach a Municipal Council 

Resolution or Band Council Resolution in support of the project as well the asset owner’s 

letter of support from a signing authority. In doing so, the project will be considered the 

applicant’s sole project submission. Municipalities or Indigenous communities who 

endorse an air or marine project cannot submit another project application. If you 

are considering this type of project, please first contact 1-877-424-1300 or 

ICIPRural@ontario.ca to verify eligibility before submission. 

4.2 Joint Projects 
Joint projects between eligible applicants are encouraged. Joint projects are those where each 

co-applicant contributes financially to the project. All applicants must meet the applicant 

eligibility criteria. 

Joint projects may be larger than projects submitted by a single applicant, as joint applicants 

may combine the grant funding they request. 

If a joint project is submitted, it counts as a project put forward for each individual applicant (i.e., 

a municipality or Indigenous community cannot submit a joint application in addition to a stand-

alone application). The lead applicant will be required to sign a transfer payment agreement with 

the province and also enter into a partnership agreement with the other eligible applicant(s) that 

will be contributing to the project. Funds will only be made available to the lead applicant, who is 

responsible for the financial management of the project and meeting provincial reporting 

requirements. 

4.3 Project Conditions 

Projects must comply with the following conditions to be considered eligible: 

(1) Contract Award Date: Contracts must be awarded after federal approval of funding. 

Contracts awarded before approval of funding are not eligible for reimbursement. 

mailto:ICIPRural@ontario.ca


Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program - Rural and Northern Communities Funding 
Stream Ontario Program Guidelines 

7 
 

(2) Energy standards: Projects must meet or exceed any applicable energy efficiency 

standards for buildings outlined in the Pan-Canadian Framework on Clean Growth and 

Climate Change.  

(3) Accessibility standards: Projects must meet or exceed the requirements of the highest 

published accessibility standard in a jurisdiction in addition to applicable provincial building 

codes and relevant municipal by-laws. 

(4) Asset management plans [municipalities only]: Projects should be informed by an 

applicant’s asset management plan. This means the proposed project was identified based 

on the plan’s prioritized lifecycle activities (e.g., construction, maintenance, renewal, 

rehabilitation, replacement, etc.) for the applicable asset category (e.g., roads or bridges). 

For example, if an applicant has identified road needs as a priority lifecycle activity within its 

asset management plan, then submission of a road project would be appropriate. Where not 

based on an asset management plan, a strong rationale must be provided in the application 

form. 

Note: project prioritization in an asset management plan does not apply in cases where the 

project assets are not owned by the municipality (i.e. air/marine assets). 

(5) Supporting documentation [Indigenous communities only]: Projects should be 

identified in, or supported by, a 5-Year Capital Plan; a Comprehensive Community Plan; a 

Strategic Community Plan; an Asset Conditions Reporting System report; a Feasibility Study 

or Detailed Design. Where not based on a supporting document, a strong rationale must be 

provided. The province may request an electronic copy of one supporting document during 

the project review stage. 

(6) Financial sustainability: Projects should have a financial plan in place to operate the 

assets and not seek senior level government support for operational funding. First Nations 

applicants may have operational funding arrangements with the federal government that 

satisfy this condition. 

4.4 Other Federal Requirements 
Additional federal governments requirements are below. For additional clarity, see federal 

language in the Appendix. 

• Applicants must complete a climate lens assessment for projects with total eligible costs 

of $10 million or more. Climate lens submission may be completed after provincial 

nomination. 

• Applicants may report on community employment benefits for projects with total eligible 

costs of $10 million or more. Applicants not reporting on community employment 

benefits should provide a rationale. 

• Applicants must adopt a value for money procurement approach. 

• Any requests for sole source procurement exemptions will be evaluated on a case-by-

case basis and requires pre-approval by the federal and provincial governments. Sole 

source procurement is not encouraged as approval is not guaranteed. 

https://www.canada.ca/en/services/environment/weather/climatechange/pan-canadian-framework.html
https://www.canada.ca/en/services/environment/weather/climatechange/pan-canadian-framework.html


Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program - Rural and Northern Communities Funding 
Stream Ontario Program Guidelines 

8 
 

5. Project Submission Process 

5.1 Number of Project Submissions 
Each eligible applicant can submit a maximum of one project submission. 

If an applicant is party to a joint project submission, then participation in the joint-project 

submission will be counted as their single project submission. 

If an applicant is acting as the nominating applicant for a project asset that is owned by a for-

profit or not-for-profit entity (air or marine infrastructure assets only), then participation in this 

form of ‘transferred nomination’ will be counted as their single project application. 

5.2 Submissions and Funding Approval Steps 
Step 1: Applicants must register or login online through the Province of Ontario’s online grant 

portal, Grants Ontario. Step by step support for working with the online grant portal are found 

here. For full functionality, the support tool link must be opened in Internet Explorer. 

Step 2: Applicants must fully complete one Rural and Northern Communities Funding Stream 

application form and the applicable technical schedule. Completion of only one technical 

schedule is required; the technical schedule must correspond to the primary project asset 

type. The application form and the associated technical schedule are available through 

the Grants Ontario online portal. Please follow the prompts in the application form and 

technical schedule to respond to each question. 

Step 3a [joint projects]: A joint project submitted by multiple applicants must provide 

supporting documentation by way of an individual partner-member municipal council resolution 

or a band council resolution, clearly stating the project name and recipient contribution to the 

project. Single applicants (i.e. non-joint projects) do not have to submit a council resolution at 

the application stage. 

Step 3b [transferred nomination projects]: A transferred nomination project, where the 

applicant is not the asset owner, must provide supporting documentation by way of an applicant 

municipal council resolutions or a band council resolution, and a letter of support from the asset 

owner agreeing to participate in the program. The province will provide additional support to 

coordinate this issue at the transfer payment agreement stage. 

Step 4: The application and required attachments (i.e., technical schedules, supporting 

documents, etc.) must be submitted through Grants Ontario by 11:59 p.m. EDT on May 14th, 

2019. A scanned application form will not be accepted. Failure to meet submission requirements 

will result in an incomplete submission and the submission may be considered ineligible. If you 

are unable to submit the application form through the Grants Ontario or have any 

additional questions, please contact: 1-877-424-1300 or ICIPRural@ontario.ca. 

Step 5: Once the completed application form has been submitted, an automated 

acknowledgement of receipt and a file number will be emailed to the applicant. 

http://www.grants.gov.on.ca/GrantsPortal/en/TransferPaymentCommonRegistration/index.htm
http://www.grants.gov.on.ca/GrantsPortal/en/OntarioGrants/HowtoApply/PRD11213170.html
mailto:ICIPRural@ontario.ca


Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program - Rural and Northern Communities Funding 
Stream Ontario Program Guidelines 

9 
 

Step 6: Projects will be assessed by the province and nominated for federal government review 

and approval. Provincial project nomination to the federal government does not guarantee 

funding approval. 

Step 7: Applicants will be notified of both successful and unsuccessful projects. Provincial staff 

will be available to provide feedback for unsuccessful projects, if requested. 

Step 8: The province may request applicants to provide assurance that the recipient share of 

funding to undertake and complete the project has been secured. 

Step 9: Successful applicants will be required to obtain a municipal by-law or band council 

resolution to execute the project level transfer payment agreement with the provincial 

government. 

Step 10: The transfer payment agreement will require procurement to be executed through a 

value-for-money process. Projects must undertake a competitive pricing or tendering process to 

demonstrate value-for-money. Applicants may be requested by the province to provide: 

• Copies of proposals or bids from three (3) bidders; 

• Statement indicating selected bidder; and 

• Written explanation if the lowest bid is not chosen. 

6. Timelines 
• Applications and all supporting documentations must be submitted through Grants 

Ontario by 11:59 p.m. EDT on May 14th, 2019.  

Note: that applications will not be accepted after this time. All supporting documentation 

must also be submitted by the deadline in order to be considered part of the application. 

Applicants cannot change the proposed project after the application deadline unless 

extraordinary circumstances arise (e.g., the collapse of a local bridge) and permission is 

granted by the province. 

• The province will notify applicants if their project has been selected for nomination to the 

federal government for review and approval in summer 2019 (estimated). 

• Applicants will be notified of the federal funding decision in the summer/fall of 2019 

(estimated). 

• Projects must be completed by October 31, 2026. 

7. Evaluation Process 

7.1 Recipient Eligibility and Application Completeness 
Recipients must meet program eligibility requirements. Additionally, all mandatory fields of the 

application form must be populated correctly for a submission to be considered validated and 

complete. 

7.2 Project Scope Review 



Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program - Rural and Northern Communities Funding 
Stream Ontario Program Guidelines 

10 
 

Projects must meet federal project eligibility requirements, be technically viable and be 

achievable within the program timelines. 

7.3 Alignment with Provincial Policies 

7.3.1 Land Use Planning 
Municipal projects must align and support the expected and required provincial priorities and 

outcomes, as set out in provincial land use policy, provincial land use plans, municipal official 

plans and supported by policy direction in the Provincial Policy Statement (PPS). 

7.3.2 Asset Management Planning 
The asset management planning regulation sets out new requirements for undertaking 

municipal asset management planning. The regulation is being phased in over a 6-year period, 

with progressive milestone requirements for municipalities. 

For clarity, at the time of application, the asset management plan used to inform the proposed 

project can be developed according to either the province’s 2012 Guide (Building together: 

guide for municipal asset management plans) or asset management planning regulation (O. 

Reg. 588/17 Asset Management Planning for Municipal Infrastructure). 

As part of project reporting requirements, and to remain eligible for funding, successful 

municipal applicants are required to submit their updated asset management plans in 

accordance with the regulation for the duration of the project. For example, municipalities that 

have an active project in 2021 will be required to submit asset management plans developed in 

accordance with the first phase of the regulation. Please refer to the Appendix which 

summarizes key regulation milestones in 2021, 2023 and 2024 for municipal asset management 

plans. 

For more information about asset management planning, as well as tools and supports available 

to help municipalities develop and improve their plans, please visit the 

http://www.ontario.ca/assetmanagement.  

7.4 Assessment Criteria 
The province will assess and prioritize projects for federal nomination and funding based on the 

following criteria: 

Criterion 1: Criticality of health and/or safety risk 

Projects will be assessed according to critical health and safety aspects (primary project type 

only). The technical schedule will provide asset type specific questions for describing the health 

and safety risk. 

(1) Road project: Road infrastructure projects will be assessed for safety in terms of collisions 

and the reduction of collisions or collision severity associated with the project. This could be 

assessed through collision history, traffic volumes and Collision Modification Factor or 

Operational Performance Function depending on the project and information available. 

(2) Bridge projects: Bridge infrastructure projects will be assessed for safety in terms of the 

condition of the structure, which must be determined through an inspection carried out within 

the last two years in accordance with the Ontario Structure Inspection Manual (OSIM) or 

https://www.ontario.ca/page/building-together-guide-municipal-asset-management-plans
https://www.ontario.ca/page/building-together-guide-municipal-asset-management-plans
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/170588
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/170588
http://www.ontario.ca/assetmanagement


Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program - Rural and Northern Communities Funding 
Stream Ontario Program Guidelines 

11 
 

equivalent. Submission of a Municipal Structure Inspection Form with adequate photos 

showing defect or deterioration is a requirement for all bridge projects. In addition, any 

critical structural features, such as hold down anchors that are not visible for inspection, 

drop-in spans etc. must be included in the assessment of the project. 

(3) Air projects: Air infrastructure projects will be assessed for safety in terms of improvements 

to ground-based infrastructure that improves passenger access to communities. Safety may 

also consider increased capacity to deliver health care and emergency services, which 

would otherwise be inaccessible. Projects in communities where air transportation is the 

primary reliable, year-round mode of transportation will be prioritized. 

(4) Marine projects: Marine infrastructure projects will be assessed for safety in terms of 

improvements to vessels (including machinery) and docking infrastructure that improve 

passenger and/or vehicular access to communities. Safety may also consider increased 

capacity to deliver health care and emergency services, which would otherwise be 

inaccessible. Projects in communities where marine transportation is the primary reliable 

mode of transportation will be prioritized.  

Criterion 2: Technical merit of proposed project 

Projects will be assessed based on technical merit relative to industry standards. Projects must 

clearly demonstrate that the proposed project will address the noted critical health and safety 

risk, and how they meet the federal outcome of Improved and/or more reliable transportation 

(road, air and marine) infrastructure. The technical schedule will provide asset specific 

questions for describing the technical merit and reliability of the proposed project. 

Criterion 3: Funding need for the proposed project 

Projects will be assessed according to greater funding need, including the cost of the proposed 

project per household, median household income and weighted property assessment per 

household. Note: for Indigenous communities, proxy values may be applied. 

In general, applicants with greater funding need (i.e., higher project cost per household, lower 

median household income, lower weighted property assessment per household) will be more 

competitive in the evaluation process. However, applicants must still be able to fund all 

project costs and potential cost over-runs to be eligible for funding. 

For projects where air and marine assets are owned by a third-party (i.e. not the municipality or 

Indigenous community), applicants should clearly note whether user fees are collected (i.e. 

landing fees/passenger fees). 

Criterion 4: Efficiencies through joint projects 

Additional consideration will be given to joint projects for providing benefit to multiple 

communities and generating economies of scale. 

8. Financial, Contractual and Reporting Requirements 

8.1 Maximum Project Costs 



Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program - Rural and Northern Communities Funding 
Stream Ontario Program Guidelines 

12 
 

The maximum total eligible cost per project for a single applicant is $5 million. 

For projects with multiple applicants (i.e., joint projects), each applicant can submit up to $5 

million of total eligible project costs. For example, a joint project with three eligible co-applicants 

can submit a project with a maximum total eligible project cost of $15 million. 

Note: Projects that have a total eligible cost of more than $10 million must complete a federal 

climate lens assessment and report on community employment benefits. See Appendix for more 

information. 

Note: Applicants must pay for all ineligible project costs as well as any cost over-runs 

experienced on a project. Cost over-runs reflect any costs that exceed the total project 

cost submitted at the time of application. 

8.2 Cost Sharing 
The following breakdown defines the maximum cost share percentages of the total eligible cost: 

Applicant Type Individual Applicant 

Population Size* 

Federal 

Cost Share 

(Max %) 

Provincial 

Cost Share 

(Max %) 

Applicant 

Cost Share 

(Min %) 

Municipality < 5,000 60% 33.33% 6.67% 

Municipality Between 5,000 and 

100,000 

50% 33.33% 16.67% 

Indigenous 

Community 

< 5,000 75% 18.33% 6.67% 

Indigenous 

Community 

Between 5,000 and 

100,000 

75% 8.33% 16.67% 

*Population size is based on 2016 Statistics Canada Census. 
Note: The cost-sharing breakdown assumes municipal or Indigenous applicants own the asset 
being nominated for funding and is subject to change (i.e., for air or marine projects where the 
asset owner is a for-profit or not-for-profit entity).  

For instance, this means that: 

• An eligible applicant with a population less than 5,000, may request funding of up to 

93.33% of a project’s total eligible cost (i.e. up to $4.66 million for a $5 million project).  

• An eligible applicant with a population of 5,000 and up to 100,000, may request funding 

of up to 83.33% of a project’s total eligible cost (i.e., up to $4.16 million for a $5 million 

project). Applicants are required to contribute the remainder of the funding. 

8.3 Stacking of Funding 
• General:  

o Applicants cannot combine funding received through the Rural and Northern 

Communities Funding Stream and funding from another project-based capital 

program including, but not limited to, Small Communities Fund and the Northern 

Ontario Heritage Fund Corporation program to support the same project. 



Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program - Rural and Northern Communities Funding 
Stream Ontario Program Guidelines 

13 
 

o Applicants can apply for a project at the same location as a project already 

receiving funding from another capital program, but the applicant must clearly 

scope out the component that is unique to the Rural and Northern Communities 

Funding Stream application. 

• Provincial funds: 

o Recipients of Ontario Community Infrastructure Fund (OCIF) formula-based 

funding are permitted to use this funding as part of their cost share to support a 

road or bridge project. 

• Federal funds: The maximum funding from all federal sources to a project will be: 

o up to 60% of total eligible project costs for municipalities with populations less 

than 5,000; 

o up to 50% of total eligible project costs for municipalities with populations 5,000 

and up to 100,000; and 

o up to 75% of total eligible project costs for Indigenous communities [note 

exception below].  

o Note: Subject to federal approval, Indigenous communities could access 

additional federal funding from other sources, beyond the Rural and Northern 

Communities Funding Stream, for the proposed project up to a maximum of 

100% of total eligible costs. 

Applicants that are not sure how to best combine funding are encouraged to contact 

ICIPRural@ontario.ca or 1-877-424-1300 before submitting an application. 

8.4 Eligible Costs 
Eligible project costs are third-party costs such as: 

• Environmental assessment costs 

• Design/engineering costs 

• Project management costs 

• Materials 

• Construction 

• Contingency costs (maximum 25%) 

Note: Project costs are eligible only if incurred after federal approval. 

Note: Contracts must be awarded after federal approval of funding. Contracts awarded before 

approval of funding are not eligible for reimbursement. 

Note: Capital costs are only eligible once the project receives notification that Canada is 

satisfied that the applicant has met its Duty to Consult and Environmental Assessment 

requirements. Before this notification is received, no site preparation, vegetation removal or 

construction may take place. 

8.5 Ineligible Costs 
Ineligible project costs are: 

mailto:ICIPRural@ontario.ca


Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program - Rural and Northern Communities Funding 
Stream Ontario Program Guidelines 

14 
 

• Costs incurred before federal project approval and all expenditures related to contracts 

signed prior to federal project approval, except for expenditures associated with 

completing climate lens assessments 

• Costs incurred for cancelled projects 

• Costs of relocating entire communities 

• Acquisition or leasing of land, buildings and other facilities 

• Leasing equipment other than equipment directly related to the construction of the 

project 

• Real estate fees and related costs 

• Financing charges 

• Legal fees 

• Loan interest payments including those related to easements (e.g. surveys) 

• Costs of completing the application 

• Taxes, regardless of rebate eligibility 

• Any goods and services costs which are received through donation or In-kind  

• Staff costs, unless pre-approved by the federal and provincial governments 

• Operating costs and regularly scheduled maintenance work 

• Costs related to furnishing and non-fixed assets which are not essential for the operation 

of the project 

• Costs that have not been claimed for reimbursement by March 31 of year following the 

year in which the costs were incurred (e.g., costs incurred between April 1, 2018 and 

March 31, 2019 must be submitted for reimbursement no later than March 31, 2020). 

• All capital costs, including site preparation and construction costs, until Canada has 

confirmed in writing that environmental assessment and Indigenous consultation 

obligations have been met and continue to be met. See Appendix for environmental 

assessment and Aboriginal consultation obligations. 

• All costs related to any component of the project other than the approved scope (e.g., 

including water, wastewater and/or stormwater capital work) given that it does not meet 

the federal outcome. 

A more detailed list of eligible and ineligible expenditure categories will be provided in individual 

project level contribution agreements. 

8.6 Payments 
Funding is claims based and will be reimbursed upon review and approval of eligible costs. 

Reimbursement of claims is based on the cost sharing percentage. The claims format will be 

outlined in individual contribution agreements. 

All costs must be incurred by December 31, 2026. Recipients are required to keep all 

receipts/invoices and claims as they are subject to audit by the province or the federal 

government. 

Note: A holdback of 10% may be applied to payments under the program. The holdback would 

be released upon successful completion of all reporting requirements following project 

completion. 



Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program - Rural and Northern Communities Funding 
Stream Ontario Program Guidelines 

15 
 

8.7 Contractual obligations 
Successful applicants will be required to sign a provincial contribution agreement containing 

clauses regarding such items as insurance, arm’s length requirements, communications 

(including project signage), obligations with respect to consultations with Indigenous groups and 

reporting. 

Successful applicants will be required to obtain a municipal council resolution or band council 

resolution to execute the project level contribution agreement with the province. Joint applicants 

will be required to enter into a joint partnership agreement. For cases where the applicant is not 

the asset owner, the province will provide additional support to coordinate the execution of the 

transfer payment agreement. 

Successful municipalities will also be required to complete an Asset Management Self-

Assessment prior to signing their contribution agreement. 

8.8 Reporting Requirements 
Specific reporting requirements will be outlined in individual transfer payment agreements. 

9. Consultations with Indigenous Peoples 
The Government of Canada, the Government of Ontario, municipalities and Indigenous 

communities may have a duty to consult and, where appropriate, accommodate Indigenous 

peoples (e.g., First Nation and Métis peoples) where an activity is contemplated that may 

adversely impact an Indigenous or treaty right. 

Before providing funding to a project, the Government of Ontario will assess whether its duty to 

consult obligations are engaged. The day-to-day, procedural aspects of consultation may be 

delegated to project proponents who may also have their own obligations. Ontario’s delegation 

to proponents of aspects of consultation is a routine practice and the procedural aspects of 

consultation will be delegated to project proponents. Therefore, it is important that all applicants 

recognize this process and appropriately plan for this work (e.g., resources, time, etc.) as part of 

their funding submission. 

Consultation requirements may vary depending on the size and location of the project in 

question. For successful applications, the province will provide further details in writing 

surrounding specific consultation requirements, including which communities require 

consultation. Applicants should ensure duty-to-consult requirements are met prior to 

commencing the construction process. 

  

https://www.ontario.ca/page/duty-consult-aboriginal-peoples-ontario


Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program - Rural and Northern Communities Funding 
Stream Ontario Program Guidelines 

16 
 

Appendix A – Federal Program Parameters 
In the event of any conflict, contradiction or inconsistency in interpretation, the federal language 

in the Appendix shall prevail over summaries provided in the body of the guidelines. 

I. Eligible Recipients 
Eligible recipients, subject to the terms and conditions of the Canada-Ontario ICIP Agreement, 

include: 

a) An Ontario municipal or regional government established by or under provincial statute; 

b) The following Indigenous Recipients in Ontario: 

a. A band council within the meaning of section 2 of the Indian Act;  

b. A First Nation, Inuit or Métis government or authority established pursuant to a 

self-government agreement or a comprehensive land claim agreement between 

Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Canada and an Indigenous people of Canada, 

that has been approved, given effect and declared valid by federal legislation; 

and 

c. a First Nation, Inuit or Métis government that is established by or under 

legislation whether federal or provincial that incorporates a governance structure.  

II. Procurement 
Successful applicants must award contracts in a way that is fair, transparent, competitive and 

consistent with value-for-money principles, or in a manner otherwise acceptable to Canada, and 

if applicable, in accordance with the Canadian Free Trade Agreement and international trade 

agreements. 

III. Climate Lens Assessment 
The climate lens assessment consists of two potential assessments for projects being brought 

forward for funding which include a greenhouse gas (GHG) mitigation assessment and a climate 

change resilience assessment. Applicants with projects that have a total eligible cost of $10 

million or more are required to complete a climate lens assessment using methodologies 

developed by the federal government. Visit the Climate Lens – General Guidance webpage for 

information on how to complete the assessment. 

IV. Community Employment Benefits 
Applicants with projects that have a total eligible cost of $10 million or more will report on 

community employment benefits provided to at least three federal target groups (apprentices - 

from traditionally disadvantaged communities, Indigenous peoples, women, persons with 

disabilities, veterans, youth, new Canadians, or small-medium-sized enterprises and social 

enterprises). 

V. Environmental Assessment 
No site preparation, vegetation removal or construction will occur for a Project and Canada has 

no obligation to pay any Eligible Expenditures that are capital costs, as determined by Canada, 

until Canada is satisfied that the federal requirements are met and continue to be met: 

• Requirements under the Canadian Environmental Assessment Act, 2012 (CEAA, 2012),  

https://www.infrastructure.gc.ca/pub/other-autre/cl-occ-eng.html


Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program - Rural and Northern Communities Funding 
Stream Ontario Program Guidelines 

17 
 

• other applicable federal environmental assessment legislation that is or may come into 

force during the term of this Agreement, and; 

• other applicable agreements between Canada and Aboriginal groups (also referred to 

as Indigenous Peoples). 

VI. Aboriginal Consultation 
No site preparation, vegetation removal or construction will occur for a Project and Canada has 

no obligation to pay any Eligible Expenditures that are capital costs, as determined by Canada, 

until Canada is satisfied that any legal duty to consult, and where appropriate, to accommodate 

Aboriginal groups (also referred to as Indigenous Peoples) or other federal consultation 

requirement has been met and continues to be met. If required, Canada must be satisfied that 

for each Project:   

a) Aboriginal groups have been notified and, if applicable, consulted;  

b) If applicable, a summary of consultation or engagement activities has been provided, 

including a list of Aboriginal groups consulted, concerns raised, and how each of the 

concerns have been addressed, or if not addressed, an explanation as to why not; 

c) Accommodation measures, where appropriate, are being carried out by Ontario or the 

Ultimate Recipient and these costs may be considered Eligible; and 

d) Any other information has been provided that Canada may deem appropriate. 

  



Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program - Rural and Northern Communities Funding 
Stream Ontario Program Guidelines 

18 
 

Appendix B – Asset Management Regulation Phase-In Schedule 

[municipalities only] 
Date Milestone 

July 1, 2019 

Date for municipalities to have a finalized strategic asset management 
policy that promotes best practices and links asset management planning 
with budgeting, operations, maintenance and other municipal planning 
activities. 

July 1, 2021 

Date for municipalities to have an approved asset management plan for 
core assets (roads, bridges and culverts, water, wastewater and 
stormwater management systems) that identifies current levels of service 
and the cost of maintaining those levels of service. 

July 1, 2023 

Date for municipalities to have an approved asset management plan for 
all municipal infrastructure assets that identifies current levels of service 
and the cost of maintaining those levels of service. 

July 1, 2024 

Date for municipalities to have an approved asset management plan for 
all municipal infrastructure assets that builds upon the requirements set 
out in 2023. This includes an identification of proposed levels of service, 
what activities will be required to meet proposed levels of service, and a 
strategy to fund these activities.  

 
 



Municipal Structure Inspection Form Structure #8

Uno Park Road I
I l.5kmWestofHighwayll I

43° 34 50.8” N Longitude

Heritage
City of Temiskarning Shores

Designation:

Northeastern

New Liskeard

I Temiskaming

Harley/Dyinond

Concrete/Timber Comp. Slab

I 7.0, 7.7, 7.25, 7.05. 7.3, 7.3, 7.4, 7.4, 6.85 I

I 79°43 13.6” W I

Inventory Data:

N/A On Il Under
Crossing

Type:
Navig. Water Zl Non-Navig. Water
Rail Road Ped. Other

Structure Name L Roy• s Bridge

Main Hwy/Road #

Road Name

Structure Location

Latitude

Owner(s)

MTO Region *

MTO District *

Old County *

Geographic Twp. *

Structure Type *

Total Deck Length L
Overall Str. Width [
Total Deck Area [
Roadway Width r
Span Lengths

Not Cons. Cons./not App. List/not Desig.
Desig./not List Desig. & List

65.9 1 (in)

8.25 I (m)

Road Class: Freeway - Arterial Collector Local IJ

Posted Speed I 80 J No. of Lanes 2

AADT I 100 % Trucks

Special Routes: Transit Truck School Bicycle

Detour Length Around Bridge 8 I (km)

Fill on Structure I N/A (in)

Skew Angle 0 (Degrees)

Direction of Structure West-East

No. of Spans 9

543.7 I (sq.in)

7.35 I (in)

Historical Data:

Year Built I Year of Last Major Rehab. I
Last OSIM Inspection 2014 Last Evaluation I
Last Enhanced OSIM Inspection I Current Load Limit I / / I (tonnes)

Enhanced Access Equipment
Load Limit By-Law #

(ladder, boat, lift, etc.)

_______________
_____________________

Last Underwater Inspection I I By-Law Expiry Date I I
Last Condition Survey I Mm. Vertical Clearance I I (in)

Rehab. History: (Date/description)

Page 1 \server’data\2O1 6\1 6-1OT\Correspondence\OSIM Forms\Struciure 8.docx



Municipal Structure Inspection Form Structure #8

Date of Inspection:

thspector:

Others in Party:

Field Inspection Information:

Access Equipment Used:

Weather:

Temperature:

Additional Investigations Required: Priority Estimated
None Normal Urgent Cost

Material Condition Survey
Detailed Deck Condition Survey:
Non-destructive Delaim Survey of Asphalt-Covered Deck:
Concrete Substructure Condition Survey:
Detailed Coating Condition Survey:
Detailed Timber frivestigation X $ 10,000
Post-Tensioned Strand Investigation

Underwater Investigation:
Fatigue Investigation:
Seismic Investigation:
Structure Evaluation: X $ 20,000
Monitoring (deformations, settlements, movements, crack widths)
Load Posting Estimated Load I Total Cost $ 30,000
Investigation Notes:
Conduct a detailed timber investigation and a structural evaluation to determine if the bridge capacity and
whether it requires posing due to the widespread fire damage across the structural elements.

Aug. 24, 2016 Type of Inspection: OSIM LI Enhanced OSIM

Allan Garnhain, P. Eng.

Darryl Schwartzentruber, C. Tech.

Tapes, Hammer, Chain, Ladder, Camera, Safety Equipment

Sunny

20°C

Suspected Performance Deficiencies

01 Load carrying capacity
02 Excessive deformations (deflections & rotations)
03 Continuing settlement
04 Continuing movements
05 Seized bearings

Maintenance Needs
01 Lift and Swing Bridge Maintenance
02 Bridge Cleaning
03 Bridge Handrail Maintenance
04 Painting Steel Bridge Structures
05 Bridge Deck Joint Repair
06 Bridge Bearing Maintenance

06 Bearing not uniformly loaded/unstable
07 Jammed expansion joint
08 Pedestrian/vehicular hazard
09 Rough riding surface
10 Surface ponding
11 Deck drainage

07 Repair to Structural Steel
08 Repair of Bridge Concrete
09 Repair of Bridge Timber
10 Bailey bridges - Maintenance
11 Animal/Pest Control
12 Bridge Surface Repair

12 Slippery surfaces
13 Flooding/channel blockage
14 undermining of foundation
is unstable embankments
16 Other

13 Erosion Control at Bridges
14 Concrete Sealing
15 Rout and Seal
16 Bridge Deck Drainage
17 Scating (Loose Concrete or ACR Steet)
18 Other

Overall Structure Notes:

Overall Comments: Complete structural assessment and evaluation to detennine bridge
capacity and if load posting is required.

Date of Next Inspection: 2018

Page 2 \server\data2O16\1 6-1O7\Correspondece\OSIM Ferms\Strcture 8.docx



Municipal Structure Inspection Form Structure #8
Element Data

Element Group:* Abutments Length: N/A
Element Name: * Abutment Walls Width: 7.00 rn
Location: West and East Height: 1.10 m
Material: * Wood Count: 2
Element Type: * Timber Piles and Lagging Total Quantity: 15.4 m2
Environment: Benign /oderaj/ Severe Limited Inspection
Protection System: * Creosote Perfonn.
Condition Units Exc. Good Fair Poor* Deficiencies

Data: Lrn9rn / each / % / all 7.7 7.7 --

Comments:

Fire damage at the East abutment.

Recommended Work: Rehab Replace Maintenance Needs: --

Urgent 1-5 years 6-10 years None Urgent 1 year 2 year

Element Group:* Piers Length: 0.30 rn
Element Name: * Pile Bents Width: 0.30 m
Location: 8 Piers Height: 2.20 in
Material: * Wood Count: 48
Element Type: * Timber Piles Total Quantity: 99.5 m
Environment: Benigr Moderate / Severe Limited Inspection
Protection System: * Creosote Perform.
Condition Units Exc. Good Fair Poor* Deficiencies

Data: drn9 rn / each / % / all 94.5 4.5 --

Comments:
Medium to severe fire damage noted at pier locations. Most piles are split. Splits have been repaired with steel collars at
various locations.

Recommended Work: Rehab Replace Maintenance Needs: --

Urgent 1-5 years 6-10 years None Urgent 1 year 2 year

Element Group:* Piers Length: 0.30 m
Element Name: * Caps Width: 7.00 m
Location: 8 Piers Height: 0.30 m
Material: * Wood Count: 8
Element Type: * Sawn Timber Total Quantity: 68.6 m2
Environment: Benign Moderate / Severe Limited Inspection
Protection System: * Creosote Perform.
Condition Units Exc. Good Fair Poor* Deficiencies

Data: m9in/each/ %/ all 65.0 3.6 --

Comments:

Medium to severe fire damage noted at pier locations.

Recommended Work: Rehab Replace Maintenance Needs: --

Urgent 1-5 years - 6-10 years None Urgent - 1 year 2 year

* A quantity must be estimated using the appropriate unit (e.g. in2). Percent should not be used.
Page Al



Municipal Structure Inspection Form
Element Data

Structure #8

Element Group:* Embankments & Streams Length: N/A
Element Name: * Streams and Waterways Width: N/A
Location: N/A Height: N/A
Material: * N/A Count: N/A
Element Type: * N/A Total Quantity: All
Environment: Benign I Moderate / Severe Limited Inspection Z
Protection System: * None Perform.

Condition Units Exc. Good Fair Poor* Deficiencies

Data: m2 / m / each I % (aiD All --

Comments:

Some debris lodged in pier bents at water line.

Recommended Work: Rehab Replace Maintenance Needs: --

Urgent 1-5 years 6-10 years None Urgent 1 year 2 year

Remove debris.

Element Group:* Embankments & Streams Length: N/A
Element Name: * Streams and Waterways Width: N/A
Location: NW, NE, SW, SE Height: N/A
Material: * N/A Count: 4
Element Type: * N/A Total Quantity: 4
Environment: Benign I Moderate / Severe Limited Inspection
Protection System: * None Perfonm
Condition Units Exc. Good Fair Poor* Deficiencies

Data: m2/rn/ac!/ %! all --

Comments:

Well vegetated and stable.

Recommended Work: Rehab Replace Maintenance Needs: j --

Urgent 1-5 years 6-10 years None Urgent 1 year 2 year

Element Group:* Decks Length: 66.0 m
Element Name: * Soffit Width: 1 .0 rn
Location: North & South Ends Height: N/A
Material: * Wood Count: 2
Element Type: * Longitudinal Laminated Timber Total Quantity: 1 32.0 m2
Environment: Benign IEModera/ Severe Limited Inspection
Protection System: * Creosote Perform.
Condition Units Exc. Good Fair Poor* Deficiencies

Data: dm9m / each! % / all 14.0 111.4 6.6 --

Comments:

Medium to severe fire damage noted throughout deck.

Recommended Work: Z Rehab Replace Maintenance Needs: --

Urgent Z 1-5 years 6-10 years 1 None Urgent 1 year 2 year

* A quantity must be estimated using the appropriate unit (e.g. m2). Percent should not be used.
Page A2



Municipal Structure Inspection Form
Element Data

* A quantity must be estimated using the appropriate unit (e.g. m2). Percent should not be used.
Page A3

Structure #8

Element Group:* Decks Length: 66.0 m

Element Name: * Soffit - Interior Width: 5.00 in
Location: Height: N/A
Material: * Wood Count: N/A
Element Type: * Longitudinal Laminated Timber Total Quantity: 330.0 m2
Environment: ign Moderate / Severe Limited Inspection
Protection System: * Creosote Perform.

Condition Units Exc. Good Fair Poor* Deficiencies

Data: / each / % / all 35.0 280.0 15.0 --
Comments:

Medium to severe fire damage noted throughout deck.

Recommended Work: Rehab Replace Maintenance Needs: --
Urgent 1-5 years 6-10 years ll None Urgent 1 year 2 year

Element Group:* Decks Length: 66.0 in
Element Name: * Deck Top Width: 7.35 ni
Location: Height: N/A
Material: * Cast-In-Place Concrete Count: N/A
Element Type: * Concrete-Wood Compjte Deck Total Quantity: 485.1 m2
Environment: Benign / ModerateQSever Limited Inspection
Protection System: * None Perform.
Condition Units Exc. Good Fair Poor* Deficiencies

Data: dm9 rn/each! %/ all 483.1 2

Comments:

Longitudinal and transverse cracks throughout. Two very severely scaled areas, 1 Din x 1Dm each

Recommended Work: Rehab Replace Maintenance Needs:
Urgent 1-5 years 6-10 years None Urgent l1 1 year 2 year

Install a concrete overlay. Clean deck annually.

Element Group:* Sidewalks / Curbs Length: 66.0 in

Element Name: * Curbs Width: 0.44 m
Location: North & South Height: 0.24 in
Material: * Cast-in-Place Concrete Count: 2
Element Type: * Total Quantity: 89.8 mn2
Environment: Benign / Moderate(Severe) Limited Inspection
Protection System: * None Perform.
Condition Units Exc. Good Fair Poor* Deficiencies

Data: (mrn/each/ %/ all 89.8 --
Comments:

Light scaling noted. Few transverse cracks.

Recommended Work: Rehab Replace Maintenance Needs: --
Urgent 1-5 years 6-10 years None Urgent 1 year 2 year



Municipal Structure Inspection Form Structure #8
Element Data

Element Group:* Barriers Length: 0.20 rn
Element Name: * Posts Width: 0.20 rn
Location: North & South Height: N/A
Material: * Wood Count: 70
Element Type: * Timber Posts Total Quantity: 70
Environment: Benign / Moderate(Severe) Limited Inspection I
Protection System: * Penetrant Applied Perfonn.

Condition Units Exc. Good Fair Poor* Deficiencies

Data: m2/m/ac %/ all 65 5 --

Comments:
Light to medium rotting of posts.
Railing system does not comply with current CHBDC specifications.

Recommended Work: Rehab Replace Maintenance Needs: --

Urgent ll 1-5 years 6-10 years None Urgent - 1 year 2 year
Replace barrier system.

Element Group:* Barriers Length: 18.9
Element Name: * Hand Railings Width:
Location: Height:
Material: * Steel Count: 2
Element Type: * Total Quantity: 37.8rn
Environment: Benign /odera/ Severe Limited Inspection
Protection System: * None Perform.
Condition Units Exc. Good Fair Poor* Deficiencies

Data: rnQmach / % / all 37.8 --

Comments:

Railing system does not comply with current CHBDC specifications.

Recommended Work: Rehab L1 Replace Maintenance Needs: 00
Urgent 1-5 years 6-10 years None Urgent 1 year 2 year

Replace balTier system.

Element Group:* Bracing Length: N/A
Element Name: * Bracing Width: 0.075 m
Location: Height: 0.200 m
Material: * Wood Count: 14
Element Type: * Dimensional Lumber Total Quantity: 14
Environment: Benig) Moderate / Severe Limited Inspection
Protection System: * Creosote Perform.
Condition Units Exc. Good Fair Poor* Deficiencies

Data: m2/m/ac/ %/ all 12 2 --

Comments:

Failed connection at the intersection of one of the timber cross bracing, south side at 4ih bent from east.

Recommended Work: Rehab Replace Maintenance Needs: --

I Urgent 1 1-5 years 6-10 years None Urgent 1 1 year 1 2 year

* A quantity must be estimated using the appropriate unit (e.g. m2). Percent should not be used.
Page A4



Municipal Structure Inspection Form Structure #8
Element Data

Element Group:* Decks Length: N/A
Element Name: * Drainage Width: 0.076 m
Location: North & South Height: 0.500 m
Material: * Steel Count: 36
Element Type: * Metal Drain Pipes Total Quantity: 36
Environment: Benig Moderate / Severe Limited Inspection
Protection System: * None Perfonn.

Condition Units Exc. Good Fair Poor* Deficiencies

Data: m2/rn/ac/ %/ all 36 --

Comments:

Severe rusting and corrosion underneath sotlit. Split tubes under deck.

Recommended Work: Rehab Replace Maintenance Needs: --

Urgent l 1-5 years 6-10 years None Urgent 1 year 2 year
Replace deck drains.

Element Group:* Approaches Length: 6.00 ni
Element Name: * Wearing Surface Width: 7.00 in
Location: West & East Approaches Height: N/A
Material: * Gravel Count: 2
Element Type: * Total Quantity: 84.0 in2
Environment: enig) Moderate / Severe Limited Inspection
Protection System: * None Perform.

Condition Units Exc. Good Fair Poor* Deficiencies

Data: C) in / each / % / all 84.0 --

Comments:

Recommended Work: Rehab Replace Maintenance Needs: --

Urgent 1-5 years 6-10 years None Urgent 1 year 2 year

* A quantity must be estimated using the appropriate unit (e.g. rn2). Percent should not be used.
Page A5



Municipal Structure Inspection Form Structure #8

Deck Place concrete overlay

Replace deck drains

x
x

Repair and Rehabilitation Required: Priority Estimated

Structural

Element’ Repair and Rehabilitation Required2 6 to 10 1 105 Within Urgent
Costyears years 1 year

Barrier Replace barrier X $ 30,000
Consider installing guide rails at X $ 20,000
approaches

Estimated Rehabilitated or Replacement Structure Dimensions3 Total Structural Cost $ 1 32,500
Total Deck Length (m) Overall Str. Width (rn)

Embankments Remove debris from watercourse

Indicate specific costs for structure replacement OR for rehabilitatiors under the given headings.
Give a very brief description of the rehabilitation work required.
Estimated structure dimensions after completion oCthe proposed work — if it is expected to change.

x

$ 75,000
$ 5,000

$ 2,500

Associated Work4: Comments Estimated Associated
Work Cost

Approaches5
Detours

Traffic Control
Utilities
Other

Total Associated Work Cost $ 0

Total Construction Cost I S 132,500 I
4 - Includes other construction costs associated with the structure. Engineering fees for reports, environmental studies, designs, project management and

contingencies are not included as associated work and should be specified on the Building Canada Fund — Communities Component (BCE-cc) Bridge
Technical Schedule.

5 - Approach cost is for work (fill, pavement, guide rail, etc.) immediately adjacent to the structure to adjust for mninorchanges in horizontal or vertical alignment
and for barrier end treatments at the structure. For BFC-CC applications, approaches longer than 30m (per end) require a separate Local Road Infrastructure
Technical Schedule to be completed for that portion of road.

7-

3-

Justification:

Page 3 5\server\datat2Ol 6\1 6-107\CorrespondencesQStM FomissStructure 8.docx



2016 City of Temiskaming Shores OSIM Inspections Structure 8

1. East Approach (looking west)

2. West Approach (looking east)

K Smart Associates Ltd.



2016 City of Temiskaming Shores OSIM Inspections Structure 8

3. North Elevation (looking south)

4. South Elevation (looking north)

K. SmartAssociates Ltd.



2016 City of Temiskaming Shores OSIM Inspections Structure 8

5. Deck - Transverse Cracks Throughout

6. Deck - Severe Scaling

K Smart Associates Ltd.



2016 City of Temiskaming Shores OSIM Inspections Structure 8

8. Soffit - Fire Damage

K Smart Associates Ltd.



2016 City of Temiskaming Shores OSIM Inspections Structure 8

9. Soffit - Fire Damage

10. Split - I-i..,. Pier from West, Second Pile from South

K. Smart Associates Ltd.



0 - -
I
.

0 3 C,
,

0 3 CD C
l) 0 -
‘ CD C,
, 0 C
l)

C,
,

V CD C
, 0 0

C,
,

> 8

.
:
.

•

—
—

—
-

•
.
‘

b
•

-

CD CD -
I

C’
)

-
‘ C) -
‘ 0 Co



201 6 City of Temiskaming Shores OSIM Inspections Structure 8

13. Debris at Watercourse

K Smart Associates Ltd.



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 
Public Works Page 1 
 

 

Subject: Supply and Application of  Report No.: PW-014-2019 

 Liquid Calcium Chloride  Agenda Date: May 7, 2019 

Attachments 

Appendix 01: 2019 Tender Results 

Appendix 02: Draft Agreement 

Recommendations 

It is recommended: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of 
Administrative Report No. PW-014-2019; and 

2. That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law and agreement with 
Pollard Distribution Inc. for the 2019 Supply and Application of Liquid Calcium 
Chloride at a rate of $0.305/litre for consideration at the May 7, 2019 Regular 
Council meeting. 

Background 

Each year the City of Temiskaming Shores, in conjunction with several South 
Temiskaming municipalities, co-operatively procures the services of qualified 
contractors for the supply and application of liquid dust suppressant at various locations 
within the City of Temiskaming Shores. 

The work shall consist generally of supplying and applying liquid calcium chloride or 
approved alternative for the purpose of suppressing dust on granular roadway surfaces, 
as directed by the Superintendent of Transportation or designate. 

In 2019 the Tender documents were prepared and PW-RFT-004-2019 was distributed 
to previous and known potential bidders with closing date at 2:00 p.m. on Tuesday April 
16th, 2019. Included in the Tender was an option for the City and successful contractor 
to enter into an extension for the following year at the same unit cost, if both parties 
were in agreement. Appendix 01 includes the original Tender Results. 

Analysis 

As indicated in Appendix 01, three (3) responses to the request were received by the 
closing date. 

Pollard and Da-Lee have successfully completed similar projects in Temiskaming 
Shores and had demonstrated the ability to successfully complete this work as 
intended. Miller Paving Ltd. had indicated that they currently supply, haul and place over 
1.0M litres of dust suppressant in north-eastern Ontario in association with the Ministry 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 
Public Works Page 2 
 

 

of Transportation, on rural gravel roadways, however have never supplied product the 
Temiskaming Shores. 

The tenders were analysed for errors and/or omissions and were found to be correct 
and complete. The process for obtaining competitive pricing was in keeping with the 
City’s Procurement Policy (By-Law 2017-015). As a result of the Tender process it is 
recommended that Pollard Distribution Inc. be awarded the tender for supply of dust 
suppressant.  

Relevant Policy / Legislation/City By-Law 

 2019 Public Works Operations Budget 

 By-Law No. 2017-015, Procurement Policy, Section 10.3 Request for Tenders 

Asset Management Plan Reference - N/A 

Consultation / Communication 

Administrative Report PW-014-2019, dated May 7th, 2019 

Financial / Staffing Implications 

This item has been approved in the current budget: Yes   No   N/A   

This item is within the approved budget amount: Yes   No   N/A   

The cost for the intended work in 2019 has increased modestly over previous years 
pricing and is considered to be reasonable and within the approved and allotted budget 
for roadway maintenance. 

Staffing implications related to this matter are limited to normal administrative functions 
and duties. 

Alternatives 

No alternatives were considered. 

Submission 

Prepared by: Reviewed and submitted for 
 Council’s consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” “Original signed by”  
___________________ _______________________ 
G. Douglas Walsh, CET Christopher W. Oslund 
Director of Public Works City Manager 



TèñuskJiing
Shores REQ I Tender

Submission Opening

Document Title: PWO-RFT-004-2019 Liquid Calcium Chloride

Closing Date: Tuesday, April 16, 2019 Closing Time: 2:00 p.m.
Department: Public Works Opening Time: cZ2 D

Bidder: j (JTt o) ±J C Bidder: YY)j ie i\1i A r

Location Unit Price Total w HST

Harley (78,000): 3
Evanturel (26,000): 3 c .5

Kerns (78,000): ;;3
Chamberlain (52,000):

Hudson (78,000):

Brethour (52,000):

Casey (28,000):

Armstrong (78,000):

Dack (52,000):

Harris (26,000):

Temagami (78,000): ‘

Bidder: D P — L iEF

Location Unit Price Total w HST

Harley (78,000): 3 — (i,_
Evanturel (26,000): I’

Kerns (78,000):

Chamberlain (52,000): I’

Hudson (78,000): , I

Brethour (52,000): /

Casey (28,000): / /

Armstrong (78,000): II

Dack (52,000): I”

Harris (26,000): I 1

Temagami (78,000):

Location Unit Price Total w HST

Harley (78,000):

Evanturel (26,000):

Kerns (78,000): ii

Chamberlain (52,000):

Hudson (78,000): / /

Brethour (52,000): / /

Casey (28,000):

Armstrong (78,000):

Dack (52,000): 1 /

Harris (26,000):

Temagami (78,000): I

Bidder:

Location Unit Price Total w HST

Harley (78,000):

Evanturel (26,000):

Kerns (78,000):

Chamberlain (52,000):

Hudson (78,000):

Brethour (52,000):

Casey (28,000):

Armstrong (78,000):

Dack (52,000):

Harris (26,000):

Temagami (78,000):

Note: All offered prices are offers only and subject to scrutiny. Submissions will be reviewed for errors, omissions and
accuracy by municipal staff prior to any awarding. All proponents whether successful or not will be notified of results, in
writing at a later date.

Attendees:

Print Name

-%z.//

Jrs ILird

Representing

I I



Appendix 02 
PW-014-2019 

May 7, 2019 The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2019-000 

Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with Pollard 
Distribution Inc. for the Supply and Application of 

Liquid Dust Suppressant at various locations within the 
City of Temiskaming Shores 

  
Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, the powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to 
govern its affairs as it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s 
ability to responds to municipal issues; 
 
And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a 
natural person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other 
Act; 
 
And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, 
as amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public;  
 
And whereas Council considered Administrative Report No. PW-014-2019 at the 
May 7th, 2019 Regular Council meeting and directed staff to prepare the 
necessary by-law to enter into an agreement with Pollard Distribution Inc. for the 
Supply and Application of Liquid Dust Suppressant for consideration at the May 
7th, 2019 Regular Council meeting; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming 
Shores hereby enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That Council authorizes the entering into an agreement with Pollard 
Distribution Inc. for the Supply and Application of Liquid Dust Suppressant at 
various locations in the City of Temiskaming Shores, at a unit cost of $0.305 
plus applicable taxes per litre, a copy of which is attached hereto as 
Schedule “A” and forming part of this by-law; 

2. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to 
make minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical 
nature to the by-law and schedule, after the passage of this by-law, where 
such modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law or its 
associated schedule. 

Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 7th day of May, 
2019. 

 
________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 

 
 
________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



 

 
 

Schedule “A” to 

By-law 2019-000 

Agreement between  

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

and 

Pollard Distribution Inc. 

for the Supply and Application of Liquid Dust Suppressant 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Liquid Calcium – Pollard By-law 2019-000 

 

 

This agreement made in duplicate this 7th day of May 2019. 

Between: 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
(hereinafter called “the Owner”) 

 

And: 

Pollard Distribution Inc. 
(hereinafter called “the Contractor”) 

Witnesseth: 

That the Owner and the Contractor shall undertake and agree as follows: 

Article I: 

The Contractor will: 

a) Provide all material and perform all work described in the Contract Documents 
entitled: 

Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
Supply and Application of Liquid Dust Suppressant 

Tender No. PWO-RFT-004-2019 

b) Do and fulfill everything indicated by this Agreement and in the Form of 
Agreement, attached hereto as Appendix 01; 

c) Complete, as certified by the Director of Public Works, all the work by September 
30th, 2019. 

Article II: 

The Owner will: 

a) Pay the Contractor in lawful money of Canada for the material and services 
aforesaid Zero Dollars and Thirty and One-Half Cents ($0.305) plus applicable 
taxes per litre, subject to additions and deductions as provided in the Contract 
Documents. 

b) Make payment on account thereof upon delivery and completion of the said work 
and receipt of invoice, in accordance with the City of Temiskaming Shores 
Purchasing Policy, and with terms of Net 30 days after receiving such invoice. 

 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Liquid Calcium – Pollard By-law 2019-000 

 

 

Article III: 

All communications in writing between the parties, or between them and the Engineer 
shall be deemed to have been received by the addressee if delivered to the individual or 
to a member of the firm or to an officer of the Owner for whom they are intended or if 
sent by hand, Canada Post, courier, facsimile or by another electronic communication 
where, during or after the transmission of the communication, no indication or notice of a 
failure or suspension of transmission has been communicated to the sender. For 
deliveries by courier or by hand, delivery shall be deemed to have been received on the 
date of delivery; by Canada Post, 5 days after the date on which it was mailed. A 
communication sent by facsimile or by electronic communication with no indication of 
failure or suspension of delivery, shall be deemed to have been received at the opening 
of business on the next day, unless the next day is not a working day for the recipient, in 
which case it shall be deemed to have been received on the next working day of the 
recipient at the opening of business. 

The Contractor: The Owner: 

Pollard Distribution Inc. City of Temiskaming Shores 
P.O. Box 280 P.O. Box 2050 / 325 Farr Drive 
Harrow, Ontario Haileybury, Ontario 
N0R 1G0 P0J 1K0 
 

Remainder of page left blank intentionally 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Liquid Calcium – Pollard By-law 2019-000 

 

 

In witness whereof the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first 
above written. 

Signed and Sealed in ) Pollard Distribution Inc. 
the presence of ) 
 ) 
Contractor / Tenant / ) __________________________________ 
Consultant’s Seal ) President – Kevin Pollard 

(if applicable) )  
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Witness - Signature 

 ) Print Name:  ______________________ 

 ) Title: __________________________ 

 ) 
Municipal Seal ) Corporation of the City of  
 ) Temiskaming Shores 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Clerk – David B. Treen 

 



 

 

 

 

Appendix 01 to 

Schedule “A” to 

By-law No. 2019-000 

Form of Agreement 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores Liquid Calcium Chloride
PWO-RFT-004-2019

Form of Tender

Each FORM OF TENDER should contain the legal name under which the Bidder carries on business,

telephone number and fax number, as well the name or names of appropriate contact personnel

which the City may consult regarding the Tender.

I/We, the undersigned, have carefully examined the attached documents and conditions of the

Tender. I/We understand and accept those specifications, conditions, and details as described herein,

and, for these rates/prices offer to furnish all equipment, labour, apparatus and documentation as are

required to satisfy this Tender.

NOTE: All portions of “Form of Tender” must be accurately and completely filled out.

Section 1

Location Quantity Unit Price Sub Total H.S.T. Total, $
L

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to
78,000 3Q5 O

•various locations Township of Harley

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to

various locations Township of 26,000 3O 3O

Evanturel

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to 478,000 3 0
various locations Township of Kerns 3 7O

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to
;

various locations, Township of 52,000 ‘jç’ X(o. i9i

Chamberlain

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to .0
.5

various locations, Township of 78,000 39’tO. ¶3O’c.

Hudson

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to ‘1

various locations City of 156,000 ZSD 5.3 -(&

Temiskaming Shores

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to
. 90

S ¶.7ct3c %?D. 9%O.various locations, Township of 26,000

Hilliard

Page 1 of 6 to be submitted

‘0

0

City of Temiskaming Shores// PWO-RFT-004-2019 // PAGE 27



City of Temiskaming Shores Liquid Calcium Chloride
PWO-R FT-004-2019

Location Quantity Unit Price Sub Total H.S.T. Total, $
L

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to c
52,000 3t! j9O. cOCD1various locations, Brethour Twp.

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to
28,000

$J)
various locations Township of Casey

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to
31Ovarious locations Township of 78,000

Armstrong

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to

various locations Township of 52,000 s /I3. X4I. ? 2I.
Chariton — Dack

F.O.B. Delivered and Applied to ct,t
26,000

various locations Township of Harris

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to

various locations within the 378,000
boundaries of the Township of

Temagami

Page 2 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores// PWORFT-OO4-2O19 /1 PAGE 28



City of Temiskaming Shores Liquid Calcium Chloride
PWO-RFT-004-2019

lme )C. offer to supply the requirements stated within.

lIWe hold the prices valid for 30 (thirty) days from submission date.

The specifications have been read over and agreed to this 5 day of

Page 3 of 6 to be submitted

2019

(‘04?

Company Name Contact name (please print)

,çrTio

Mailing Address Title

8O

o )rA 1 0 C3t N7

I

Postal Code Authorizing signature

‘t) I &T 0 CJ
I have the authority to bind the

com pa ny/corporation/partnership.”

Telephone Fax

I- 7-3- ‘:-i 38 -2(

Cell Phone if possible Email

cc1/L( )(p0poc(J4I

City of Temiskaming Shores/I PWO-RFT-004-2019 I/PAGE 29



City of Temiskaming Shores Liquid Calcium Chloride
PWO-RFT-004-2019

City of Temiskaming Shores

PWO-RFT-004-2019

Liquid Calcium Chloride

Non Collusion Affidavit

I/We fC the undersigned, am fully informed respecting

the preparation and contents of the attached Tender and of all pertinent circumstances respecting

such Bid.

Such Bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham Bid.

Neither the Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees or

parties of interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed

directly or indirectly with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collective or sham Bid in

connection with the work for which the attached Bid has been submitted nor has it in any manner,

directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communication or conference with any

other Bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached Bid or of any other Bidder, or to

fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the Bid price or the price of any Bidder, or to secure

through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement any advantage against the City

of Temiskaming Shores or any person interested in the proposed Bid.

The price or prices quoted in the attached Bid are fair and proper and not tainted by any collusion,

conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents,

representatives, owners, employees, or parties in interest, including this affiant.

The Bid, Tender or Proposal of any person, company, corporation or organization that does attempt to

influence the outcome of any City purchasing or disposal process will be disqualified, and the person,

company, corporation or organization may be subject to exclusion or suspension.
n 7(f

Dated at ?74s0 this day of

_____________________,

2019

Signed

___________________________________________

Company Name

__________________________________

Title 7

Page 4 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores II PWO-RFT-004-2019 // PAGE 30



City of Temiskaming Shores Liquid Calcium Chloride
PWO-RFT-004-2019

City of Temiskaming Shores
PWO-RFT-004-2019

Liquid Calcium Chloride

Conflict of Interest Declaration

I/we hereby confirm that there is not nor was there any actual or perceived conflict of interest

in our quotation submission or performing/providing the Goods/Services required by the

Agreement.

fl The following is a list of situations, each of which may be a conflict of interest, or appears as

potentially a conflict of interest in our Company’s quotation submission or the contractual

obligations under the Agreement.

List Situations:

In making this quotation submission, our Company has / has no (strike out inapplicable portion)
knowledge of or the ability to avail ourselves of confidential information of the City (other than

confidential information which may have been disclosed by the City in the normal course of the

quotation process) and the confidential information was relevant to the Work/Services, their pricing

or quotation evaluation process.
1tq

this of tq ‘-‘ L
, 2019.

Ic.

L41

R2c

Signature

Page 5 of 6 to be submitted

Please check appropriate response:

V

Dated at

________________

Firm Name

Bidder’s Authorization Official

Title

City of Temiskaming Shores// PW0RFT-OO4-2O19 // PAGE 31



City of Temiskaming Shores Liquid Calcium Chloride
PWO-RFT-004-2019

City of Temiskaming Shores
PWO-RFT-004-2019

Liquid Calcium Chloride

Schedule “A”- Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005 Compliance
Agreement

I/We, by our signature below, certify that we are in full compliance with Section 6 of Ontario
Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service made under the Accessibilityfor
Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005. If requested, we are able to provide written proof that all
employees have been trained as required under the act.

This regulation establishes accessibility standards for customer service as it applies to every
designated public sector organization and to every person or organization that provides goods or
services to members of the public or other third parties and that have at least one employee in
Ontario.

Name Eompany Name

Phone Number Address

I, r / VLtJDr/2
, declare that I, or my company, are in full compliance with

Section 6 of Ontario Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service under the

Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005.

I,

_______________________________

, declare that I, or my company, are not in full compliance

with Section 6 of Ontario Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service under the
Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005, yet fully agree to meet the required compliance
training standards on or before the delivery of the required goods and/or services. In an effort to assist
non-compliant vendors, a link to a free e-learning course module called Serve-Ability, Transforming
Ontario’s Customer Service is available at www.gov.on .ca/mcss/serveability/splash.htm I.

Date: W&(L

Page 6 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores // PWO-RFT-004-2019 // PAGE 32



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 
Public Works Page 1 
 

 

Subject: Engineering Services – Phase 2 & 3 Report No.: PW-015-2019 

 Dymond Water Linking Project  Agenda Date: May 7, 2019 

 
Attachments 

Appendix 01: Quotation Letter - EXP 

Appendix 02: Single Source Justification 

Recommendations 

It is recommended: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of 
Administrative Report No. PW-015-2019, more specifically Appendix 01 – EXP 
Quotation Letter; 

2. That as outlined in By-law No. 2017-015, Procurement Policy, Section 10, Council 
hereby waives the tendering process based on Appendix 02 – Single Source 
Justification; and  

3. That Council directs Staff to issue a Purchase Order to EXP for engineering 
services related to the Design of Phase 2 & 3 of the Dymond Water Linking Project 
in the amount $ 56,431 plus applicable taxes. 

Background 

In May of 2014, Council approved entering into a contractual agreement with EXP for 
the design of Phase 1 of the New Liskeard and Dymond Water Distribution Linking 
Project. As Council may recall, the linking of the two systems was based on Ministry 
requirements to address bacterial issues found within the raw water in Dymond. 
Throughout the design process it was identified within the water model that a sight 
reduction in water volume/pressure would occur, however the design would still meet 
Ministry regulations. At that time, a need for future phases (phase 2 & 3) to the project 
were identified to address water volume/pressure. The additional phases would consist 
of the installation of a dedicated feeder main along Raymond Street in Dymond along 
with strategically placed pressure reducing valves within the distribution system. 

In 2015, the City was successful in receiving funding through the Ontario Community 
Infrastructure Fund resulting in Council entering into a contractual agreement with 
Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. for the construction of Phase 1. This phase of the 
project was completed in January of 2016. Since the completion of Phase 1, staff have 
worked closely with EXP and the Ontario Clean Water Agency addressing residential 
water volume/pressure concerns as well as “tweaking” operations associated with the 
water distribution system in Dymond. 

 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 
Public Works Page 2 
 

 

Analysis 

As a result of two major development proposals in Dymond, the need to move forward 
with Phase 2 and 3 is necessary based on the size of the development proposals and 
the water volume and pressure requirements. Staff, in turn, contacted EXP who 
confirmed the need to move forward with Phase 2 and 3 of the linking project and 
requested a quotation for the engineering and construction required to complete the 
phases. The quotation was received in the amount of $ 1,729,057.44 plus HST. After 
further conversation with EXP, a revised cost for engineering was received in the 
amount of $ 56,431.00 plus HST, as outlined in Appendix 01. As mentioned above, the 
additional phases would consist of the installation of a dedicated feeder main along 
Raymond Street in Dymond along with strategically placed pressure reducing valves 
within the distribution system. 

As a result of EXP being the consultant for the design/contract administration of Phase 
1 of the project and the work that has been done to date relating to water modelling, it is 
Staff’s recommendation that it would be in the City’s best interest to award the 
engineering of Phase 2 & 3 to EXP in the amount of $ 56,431.00 plus HST. 

As outlined in the Procurement Policy By-law No. 2017-015, Section 10.10 (ii) 
Single/Sole Source, consultation with the City Manager shall take place to consider the 
grounds that the single/sole source will be in the best interest of the City. This 
consultation took place on April 29th, 2019 resulting in the development of this report 
and the submission of the required justification form which is attached as Appendix 02.  

Relevant Policy / Legislation/City By-Law 

 2019 Public Works Capital Budget 

 By-Law No. 2017-015, Procurement Policy, Section 10. 10 (ii) Single/Sole Source 

Asset Management Plan Reference 

Section 4.2 – Water Distribution System 

Consultation / Communication 

 Administrative Report PW-016-2019, dated May 7th, 2019 

 Consultation with City Manager, April 29th, 2019 

Financial / Staffing Implications 

This item has been approved in the current budget: Yes   No   N/A   

This item is within the approved budget amount: Yes   No   N/A   



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 
Public Works Page 3 
 

 

Through the 2019 Capital Budget Deliberations, Council approved $ 70,000.00 for the 
design and approvals portion of this multi-year capital project. 

Alternatives 

No alternatives were considered. 

Submission 

Prepared by: Reviewed by: Reviewed and submitted for 
  Council’s consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” “Original signed by” “Original signed by” 
___________________ ___________________ _______________________ 
Steve Burnett G. Douglas Walsh, CET Christopher W. Oslund 
Technical & Environmental Director of Public Works City Manager 
Compliance Coordinator 
 



:exp.
April 30th 2019.

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores,
P.O. Box 2050,
Haileybury, ON
POJ 1KO

Attention: Mr. Steve Burnett, Technical & Environmental
Compliance Coordinator

Dear Sir:

RE: Amendment to Proposal 999-00062475-PP
Dymond Infrastructure Upgrades, Phase 3

Following our discussions, we would be agreeable to reducing our engineering fees
from the original amount stated in our proposal of $61,431.00 to $56,431.00 for the
Dymond Infrastructure Upgrades Phase 3 project.

We thank you for this opportunity and look forward to working with the City on this
project.

Respectfully submitted,

EXP Services Inc.,

Nolan Dombroski, P.Eng.,
Infrastructure Manager.

310 Whhewood Ave West, P.O. Box 1208, New Liskeard, ON POJ 1PO, canada
T: +1.705.647.4311 • w.exp.com



on

gc

3

C



Tern‘skdiciing
Shores

Single / sole Source Justification

Attach this completed from to requisitions when competitive bids are not solicited.

Requested Single/Sole Source Supplier:

Company Name: EXP

Contact Name: Nolan Dornbrowski

Address: 310 Whitewood Ave. West

City: New Liskeard Prov: ON Postal Code: P0J 1PO

Phone Number: 905-647-4311 E-mail: Nolan Dornbroski<nolan.dornbroski@exp. corn>

LI Sole Source X Single Source LI No Substitute
(No other known source or the only source (Only the designated Supplier is acceptable, (Specified item is required due to uniqueness,
meeting specification requirements) others may exist) research continuity, etc.)

Description of
To supp)y engineering services related to Phase 2 & 3 of the New

Product or Service: .Liskeard/Dymond Water Linking Project

Estimated Cost: $ 56,431.00 + HST (Quotation)

Complete the following checklist:

A specific contractor is the only source of the required item because (check all that apply):

LI The required items are proprietary to the Contractor

LI A specific item is needed:

LI To be compatible or interchangeable with existing hardware;

LI As spare or replacement hardware;

LI For the repair or modification of existing hardware, or

LI For technical evaluation or test.

X There is a substantial technical risk in contracting with any other contractor (e.g. only

one contractor has been successful to date in implementing a difficult manufacturing

process.)

X For support services effort, there is no reasonable expectation that a meaningful cost

or other improvement could be realized over the incumbent contractor’s performance (e.g.

the chances of another firm winning a competition are clearly remote).



Explain why the recommended company is the only company that can meet the requirement.

Address the following: Are there any other companies who can do this job? What condition

exists so that the recommended company has a significant advantage over any other company

who can do this job?

It is important to sufficiently address the key reason for awarding an order without soliciting

competitive bids. The rational must be clear and convincing, avoiding generalities and

unsupported conclusions.

Requested by:

Reviewed by: -

Endorsed by: —

Department Head

City Manager

11
Date

An1
Date

In 2014, Council entered into a contractual agreement with EXP for phase 1 of the New

Liskeard/Dymond Water Distribution Linking Project. Phase 1 of the project was related to

connecting the two systems and decommissioning the Dymond wells to address bacterial issues

within the raw water in Dymond. It was understood at that time that additional phases would

be required in the future to address water volume/pressure.

As a result of EXP being the consultant for Phase 1 of the project and the work that has been

done to date relating to water modelling, it is Staff’s recommendation that it would be in the

City’s best interest to award the engineering of Phase 2 & 3 to EXP.

Council Date



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 
Corporate Services Page 1 
 

 

Subject: New Liskeard Lions Club – Quonset Hut Report No.: CS-017-2019 

 Lease Agreement Agenda Date: May 7, 2019 

 

Attachments 

Appendix 01: Draft Lease Agreement with the New Liskeard Lions Club 

Recommendations 

It is recommended: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of 
Administrative Report No. CS-017-2019;  

2. That Council directs staff to repeal By-law No. 2014-036, lease agreement with the 
Bikers Reunion Committee for a portion of a Quonset Hut as well as By-law No. 
2014-037, lease agreement with New Liskeard Lions Club for the remaining portion 
of the Quonset Hut; and 

3. That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into a five (5) 
year lease agreement with the New Liskeard Lions Club for the use of the entire 
storage space at the Quonset Hut located on May Street. 

Background 

Currently the City rents the Quonset Hut on May Street to the New Liskeard Lions Club 
(By-law No. 2014-037) and the Bikers Reunion Committee (By-law No. 2014-036).  

Analysis 

The two current agreements expire in 2024, however, the Biker’s Reunion Committee has 
provided notice in accordance with the agreement that they no longer require the use of 
the space. 

As such, the New Liskeard Lions Club would like the use of the entire Quonset Hut for 
the purpose of storage. It is recommended that both lease agreements be repealed, and 
a new lease agreement be entered into with the Lions Club. The draft lease agreement 
is attached as Appendix 01. 

Financial / Staffing Implications 

This item has been approved in the current budget: Yes   No   N/A   

This item is within the approved budget amount: Yes   No   N/A   



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 
Corporate Services Page 2 
 

 

The City would collect a total of $1,500 per year from the New Liskeard Lions Club for the 
use of the Quonset Hut. 

The estimated annual costs associated with the Quonset Hut are as follows: 

Ammortization: $   800 
Hydro: $   400 
Insurance: $   100 
Total $1,300 
 
Currently, the property is exempt from taxation as a municipal facility. There is a clause 
in the agreement which states if the property becomes assessable the Lions Club would 
be responsible for the property and education taxes. 

Alternatives 

No alternatives were considered.  

Submission 

Prepared by: Reviewed and submitted for 
 Council’s consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” “Original signed by”  
___________________ _______________________ 
Shelly Zubyck Christopher W. Oslund 
Director of Corporate Services City Manager 



Appendix 01 
CS-017-2019 
May 7, 2019 The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2019-000 

Being a by-law to enter into a lease agreement with the 
New Liskeard Lion’s Club for cold storage space within 

Quonset Hut on May Street 
  
Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, the powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to 
govern its affairs as it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s 
ability to responds to municipal issues; 
 
And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural 
person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; 
 
And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public;  
 
And whereas the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
considered Administrative Report No. CS-017-2019 at the May 7, 2019 Regular 
Council meeting and directed staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into a 
five (5) year lease agreement with the New Liskeard Lion’s Club for cold storage 
space within the Quonset Hut located on May Street for consideration at the May 
7, 2019 Regular Council meeting; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
hereby enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That Council authorizes the entering into a five (5) year lease agreement with 
the New Liskeard Lion’s Club for cold storage space within the Quonset Hut 
located on May Street at an annual rate of $1,500, a copy of which is attached 
hereto as Schedule “A” and forming part of this by-law. 

2. That By-law No. 2014-036 being a lease agreement with the Biker’s Reunion 
Committee be hereby repealed effective June 1, 2019. 

3. That By-law No. 2014-037 being a lease agreement with the New Liskeard 
Lions Club be hereby repealed effective June 1, 2019. 

4. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to make 
minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical nature to 
the by-law and schedule, after the passage of this by-law, where such 
modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law or its associated 
schedule. 



Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 7th day of May, 2019. 
 

 
__________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 

 
__________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



 
 

Schedule “A” to 

By-law 2019-000 

Lease Agreement between 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

and 

The New Liskeard Lions Club 

For cold storage space within Quonset Hut 
Located on May Street 

 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Quonset Hut Lease - Lions Club By-law No. 2019-000 

 

This agreement made in duplicate this 7th day of May 2019. 

Between: 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
(hereinafter called “the City”) 

And: 

New Liskeard Lion’s Club 
(hereinafter called “the Tenant”) 

 
Witnesses that in consideration of the covenants and provisos herein 
contained, the City hereby permits the tenant to occupy and use a portion of 
certain lands known as the Quonset Hut located at 21 May Street south, in the 
City of Temiskaming Shores, District of Timiskaming, for a term commencing 

on the 1st day of June, 2019 and ending on the 31st day of May, 2024. 
 

Whereas the City is the owner of the property located at, 21 May Street South; 
 
And whereas the New Liskeard Lion’s Club is a not for profit organization of 
persons dedicated to serving our community; 

 
Now therefore, in consideration of the sum of $1,500/year plus applicable taxes 
(prorated in 2019) due on the 1st of November, and other good and valuable 
consideration paid by the New Liskeard Lion’s Club to the City, the parties hereto 
do hereby agree as follows: 

 

Section One – New Liskeard Lion’s Club Covenants: 

The New Liskeard Lion’s Club covenants with the City as follows: 

1. Improvements – The tenant shall be entitled to improve the facility from 
time to time provided such improvements are set out in detail to the City 
prior to commencement of construction of same, and approval of 
Council is obtained prior to commencement of construction. All proposals 
to the City for improvements shall set out the costs to be incurred and the 
means by which the tenant shall pay for same.  All improvements once 
installed or constructed at the facility shall become the property of the 
City. 

2. Equipment - The equipment and fixtures, which are owned by the City and 
which are situated at, 21 May Street South shall not be removed without 
the prior written consent of the City. 

3. Cleanliness - The Tenant shall maintain the facility in a clean and orderly 
condition. 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Quonset Hut Lease - Lions Club By-law No. 2019-000 

 

4. Use of Building – not to permit the space at 21 May Street south to be 
used for any purpose other than dry storage for the tenant.  The Tenant will 
not permit the storage of any flammable items.  

5. Insurance – The Tenant shall provide the City proof of insurance, and identify 
the City as an additional insured. 

6. Taxes – In the event the property at 21 May Street becomes assessable the 
Tenant acknowledges and agrees that it shall be responsible for the payment 
of any property and education tax levied. 

7. Right of Renewal – The tenant shall be required to give written notice 
of its intention to renew the agreement at least (90) days prior to the 
termination of this agreement. 

Section Two – City’s Covenants 

The City covenants with the New Liskeard Lion’s Club as follows: 

1. Utilities - The City shall provide hydro to the said facility; there will be no 
heat provided in the winter months; 

2. Fire Safety/Protection – The City shall be responsible for the development 
and maintenance of the Fire Safety Plan for the building, and for the 
provision and maintenance of all fire protection equipment as outlined in the 
building’s Fire Safety Plan. The Tenant will be responsible to ensure a copy 
of the Fire Safety Plan is posted at all times, and to ensure all members of 
the Tenant are made familiar with the Fire Safety Plan and its requirements. 

Section Three – Notices 

1. Notice to Terminate – either party may withdraw or terminate from this 
agreement by providing at least 90 days notice in the appropriate form. 

2. General – All notices given pursuant to this agreement are sufficiently 
given if mailed, prepaid and registered, in the case of the City, addressed 
as follows: 

City of Temiskaming Shores 
P.O. Box 2050  
Haileybury, Ontario 
P0J 1K0  

and in the case of the New Liskeard Lion’s Club addressed as follows: 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Quonset Hut Lease - Lions Club By-law No. 2019-000 

 

 

New Liskeard Lion’s Club 
P.O. Box 308 
New Liskeard, Ontario 
P0J 1P0 

unless either party gives notice to the other of a change of address by 
registered mail. The date of receipt of any notice is deemed to be seven days 
after mailing. 

Default - In the event that either party believes that the other is in default of its obligation 
under the terms of this agreement, it shall be obliged to give to the other party 30 days 
notice of the alleged default. The defaulting party shall have the said 30 days to remedy 
the default, failing which, this agreement shall be null and void and the parties’ obligations 
hereunder terminated. 

Remainder of Page left Blank Intentionally



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Quonset Hut Lease - Lions Club By-law No. 2019-000 

 

 

In witness whereof the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first above 
written. 
 
Signed and Sealed in ) New Liskeard Lions Club 
the presence of ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Signature 

 ) Name: ______________________ 

 ) Title: ______________________ 

 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Witness - Signature 

 ) Name:  __________________________ 

 ) Title: __________________________ 

 ) 
Municipal Seal ) Corporation of the City of  
 ) Temiskaming Shores 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Clerk – David B. Treen 

 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 
Community Growth & Planning Page 1 

 

Subject: CIM 2020 Report No.: CS-018-2019 

  Agenda Date: May 7, 2019 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of Administrative 
Report No. CS-018-2019; and 

2. That Council directs staff to apply for funding support from Fed Nor to enable the City to 
lead the Northern Ontario Mining Showcase at the Canadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy 
and Petroleum (CIM) Convention from May 3 – 6, 2020. 

Background 

The City has led the very successful Northern Ontario Mining Showcase at the PDAC conference 
for the past 6 years.  Due to its success and the ongoing requests from many businesses to look 
at other similar conferences, the City was asked to lead a small delegation to the Canadian 
Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and Petroleum (CIM) Convention in Montreal, this past week. 

Fed Nor once again provided a small amount of funding to enable a group of seven businesses 
to attend the event by offsetting the cost of space and booth rental.  Most of the businesses are 
confident that the results will be similar to those received at PDAC, and in some cases, better 
results are anticipated.  All stated that the event was worthwhile attending. 

Analysis 

While at the event, the CIM organizers advised that if we wished to reserve a larger space at the 
event in 2020, we needed to book immediately as space was booking up fast and by the end of 
the second day, was 70% sold out.  For this reason, staff reserved 2,700 square feet of space 
which could be used for the purpose of the Northern Ontario Mining Showcase at CIM 2020.  The 
space can be released if our application to Fed Nor is unsuccessful. 

Staff visited all of the existing Northern Ontario suppliers who were exhibiting at the event to see 
if they would be interested in participating at next year’s CIM convention in Vancouver.  Some 
suggested that this market would not be successful to them due to shipping distances, but many 
felt that it would be a great opportunity for them to explore a new market at a reasonable cost. 

During conversations with Fed Nor staff it was determined that funding support would be limited 
due to the exploratory nature of the project, so registration will be limited to approximately 25 
businesses.  During our discussions with the businesses on site at this year’s CIM event, there 
are already 25 who wish to participate in a Northern Ontario Mining Showcase event at CIM next 
year if we are successful in attracting Fed Nor’s support of the project. 

Financial / Staffing Implications 

This item has been approved in the current budget: Yes   No   N/A   

This item is within the approved budget amount: Yes   No   N/A   



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 
Community Growth & Planning Page 2 

 

Fed Nor staff and City staff sat with the event organizers and our current booth designer to create 
an estimate of costs for the event.  It is estimated that the cost to bring the 25 businesses to the 
event in Vancouver will be $190,000 of which the private sector partners will invest $12,500 and 
Fed Nor will be asked to provide $177,500 in support. 

The City will not provide any cash support to the project, however the City is being asked by Fed 
Nor to coordinate the event without the support of a paid event coordinator, therefore there will 
be some staff time required to coordinate the 2020 event.  This is expected to be a one year only 
request due to the smaller scale of the 2020 event.  If Fed Nor wishes to return to Montreal with 
a Northern Ontario Mining Showcase in 2021, there will likely be 50+ businesses at which point, 
we will need to hire an independent coordinator again. For the 2020 event the Economic 
Development Officer and the Economic Development Intern will help coordinate the event, 
however, if this were to continue on an ongoing basis it could consume upwards of 25% of staff’s 
time working on both the PDAC and CIM projects combined.  The City must realize that if we 
agree to take on the lead role in these activities, it does provide great visibility for the community, 
however it will mean that other parts of the strategic plan will suffer. 
 

Alternatives 

The alternative is for the City to decline to lead the Northern Ontario Mining Showcase at CIM 2020 and 
let another community take the lead.   

Submission 

Prepared by: Reviewed by: Reviewed and submitted for 
  Council’s consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” “Original Signed by” “Original signed by” 
___________________ ___________________________ _______________________ 
James Franks Shelly Zubyck Christopher W. Oslund 
Economic Development Director of Corporate Services City Manager 
Officer  



 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2019-065 

Being a by-law to enter into a three (3) year agreement with 
Grant Fuels Inc. for the supply of Petroleum Fuels for the City 

of Temiskaming Shores 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as amended, 
the powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to govern its affairs 
as it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s ability to respond to 
municipal issues;  

And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural 
person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; 

And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public;  

And whereas Council considered Administrative Report No. PW-008-2019 at the April 
16, 2019 Regular Council meeting and directed staff to prepare the necessary by-law to 
enter into a three (3) year agreement with Grant Fuels Inc. for the supply of Petroleum 
Fuels for consideration at the May 7, 2019 Regular Council meeting; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
hereby enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That the Mayor and Clerk be authorized to execute an agreement with Grant Fuels 
Inc. for the supply of Petroleum Fuels, a copy of which is attached hereto as 
Schedule “A” and forms part of this by-law. 

2. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to make 
any minor modifications or corrections of an administrative, numerical, 
grammatical, semantically or descriptive nature or kind to the by-law and schedule 
as may be deemed necessary after the passage of this by-law, where such 
modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law. 

Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 7th, day of April, 2019. 

 
___________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 

 
 
___________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



 

 

 
 

Schedule “A” to 

By-law No. 2019-065 

Agreement between 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

and 

Grant Fuels Inc. 

for the supply of Petroleum Fuels



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Petroleum Fuels - Grant By-law No. 2019-065 

 

 

This agreement, made this 7th day of May, 2019. 

Between: 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
(Hereinafter referred to as the “the City”) 

And: 

Grant Fuels Inc. 
88 Lakeshore Road North / New Liskeard, Ontario / P0J 1P0 

(Hereinafter referred to as “the Supplier”) 

Whereas the City released Tender No. PW-RFQ-001-2019 for the supply of various 
Petroleum Fuels for the use by the City of Temiskaming Shores; 

And whereas the Supplier was the successful proponent of PW-RFQ-001-2019; 

Now therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises herein 
contained, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Term 

The Supplier shall supply Petroleum Products to the City for a term commencing on the 
1st day of April, 2019 and ending on the 31st day of March, 2022. 

2. Petroleum Rates 

The Supplier shall supply Petroleum Products at the following rates/litre: 

Dyed Diesel Clear Diesel Unleaded Fuel Premium Delivery Time 

$0.8445 $0.9875 $0.9080 $1.0680 4 Hrs. 

Unit prices shall include all labour, materials, delivery, overhead, taxes, profit and all 
relative charges of the Supplier and represent the actual cost to the City. 

The Product pricing may only fluctuate with the increase and/or decrease of the “rack 
price” or government tax rates as provided in writing from the Supplier on a monthly 
basis with the following “rack price” as the benchmark for pricing fluctuation: 

Dyed Diesel Clear Diesel Furnace Fuel Unleaded Gasoline 

$0.7645 $0.7645 $0.6210 $0.7210 

3. Deliveries 

Time shall be the essence of the contract. Goods must be delivered within the time 
promised, failing which the City reserves the right to cancel the order or unshipped 
portion thereof without penalty or prejudice.  



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Petroleum Fuels - Grant By-law No. 2019-065 

 

 

The Supplier shall develop a routine delivery schedule to ensure fuel is readily available 
at all times. The fuel delivered and dispensed to City tanks shall be metered and the 
meters shall be certified correct within normal tolerances approved by the Ministry of 
Consumer and Commercial Relations. 

The Supplier hereby understands that not every location is manned and original 
signature for receipt may not be available at time of delivery.  When such circumstance 
arises, the Provider shall ensure that delivery slips are forwarded to the City`s 
accounting office by mail, (P.O. Box 2050, Haileybury, ON P0J 1K0) fax (705-672-2911)  
or email finance@temiskamingshores.ca at first opportunity in order to be reconciled 
with invoices without delay.  

The fuel delivered and dispensed to City tanks shall be metered and the meters shall be 
certified correct within normal tolerances approved by the Ministry of Consumer and 
Commercial Relations. 

4. Emergency Delivery Response 

The City shall require fuel delivery to the Emergency Operations Centres (EOC’s) and 
also to the sanitary pumping stations when requested. In the event of a community 
emergency. i.e., fire, widespread power failure, severe weather, severe flooding, etc., 
the Providers first priority shall be to mobilize fuel deliveries to the EOC’s and pumping 
stations on short notice, and to connect with the City Representative in order to 
strategize/ minimize the impact of the emergency to the public. The critical emergency 
sites shall be required to be continuously operational. 

5. Contract Extension 

The term of this contract may be extended for an additional one year period with all 
terms and conditions remaining the same provided that both the City and the Supplier 
agree to such extension in writing. 

6. Safety  

While delivering on City property, The Provider’s attention is drawn to the provisions of 
the Occupational Health & Safety Act 2010. The Supplier shall be considered the 
“Constructor” under the terms and conditions of this agreement. Certificates of good 
standing from the Workplace Safety & Insurance Board will be required before 
commencement of work and before final payment is made. 

If at any time during the duration of the contract either the equipment or personnel are 
operating in an unsafe manner, the City`s Director or his designate shall have the right 
to suspend the operation and have the equipment and the operator removed from the 
delivery site. 

The Supplier shall report promptly to the City’s Transportation Supervisor, giving full 
details in writing of all accidents in connection with the performance of the work, which 

mailto:finance@temiskamingshores.ca


City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Petroleum Fuels - Grant By-law No. 2019-065 

 

 

results in property damage, death or injury. 

7. Insurance 

While delivering on City property, the Supplier shall carry motor vehicle liability 
insurance having limits of not less than $5,000,000 inclusive per occurrence for bodily 
injury, death and damage to property. The Provider shall provide proof of general 
liability insurance having limits of not less than $5,000.000 inclusive per occurrence for 
bodily injury, death and damage to property and including the City as an additional 
insured and containing a cross liability clause. 

8. Quantities/ Locations 

The Municipality makes no guarantee as to exact locations nor litres and therefore 
reserves the right to revise locations and actual litres as the situation warrants and 
payment will be made for actual litres delivered.   

9. Specifications 

All goods supplied to the City must be appropriately identified as approved by the 
Canadian Standards Association (CSA) and/or the Underwriters Laboratories (UL), 
standards for safety. 

10. Special Provisions  

The fuel products shall meet and/or exceed these and /or the latest revisions to 
Canadian regulations. 

➢ Regular Unleaded Gasoline - CAN/CGSB-3.5-99; 

➢ Regular Ethanol Gas - Canadian Environmental Protection Act Standard ECP-16-
90, Section 8 (1) (b); 

➢ Low Sulphur Clear Diesel - CAN/CGSB 3.6-2000, Sulphur max 0.05 wt %; 

➢ Regular Coloured Diesel - CAN2-3.2-M89 Type 2, known as No. 2 Diesel Fuel.  

All fuels shall meet all Federal and Provincial Regulations including sulphur reductions, 
sulphur in gasoline not to exceed 150 P.P.M. as at December 31, 2004 and further 
reduced to 30 P.P.M. thereafter, AND sulphur in diesel not to exceed 500 P.P.M. and 
further reduced to 15 P.P.M. by June 2006. The City reserves the right to have 
materials tested on an intermittent and/or ongoing basis to ensure adherence to 
specifications. 

Remainder of this page left blank intentionally 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Petroleum Fuels - Grant By-law No. 2019-065 

 

 

In witness whereof the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first 
above written. 
 
Signed and Sealed in ) Grant Fuels Inc. 
the presence of ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) President – Gord Grant 

 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Signature - Witness 

 ) Name: _______________________ 

 ) Title: _______________________ 

 ) 
Municipal Seal ) Corporation of the City of  
 ) Temiskaming Shores 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Clerk – David B. Treen 

 



 

 

 

 

Appendix 01 to 

Schedule “A” to 

By-law No. 2019-065 

Form of Agreement 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores Gasoline and Diesel Fuel
PW-R FQ-00 1-2019

City of Temiskaming Shores
PW-RFQ-00 1-2019

Gasoline and Diesel Fuel

Form of Quotation

Each Quotation should contain the legal name under which the Bidder carries on business,
telephone number and fax number, as well the name or names of appropriate contact personnel
which the City may consult regarding the Quotation.

I/We, the undersigned, understand and accept those specifications, conditions, and details as
described herein, and, for these rates/prices offer to furnish all equipment, labor, apparatus and
documentation as are required to satisfy this Quotation.

NOTE; All portions of Form of Quotation” must be accurately and completely filled out.

All prices are FOB. each City location as described within. Product pricing may on fluctuate with
increases and/or decreases when rack price “Toronto” as listed in the oil buyer’s guide and/or
government taxes change. The City of Temiskaming Shores shall be supplied with written proof of
rack price changes or government tax changes when a change in pricing occurs (Monthly
adjustments as minimum requirement). Written notification must be provided in the form of an e
mail to amisenertemiskaminqshores.ca

The litres listed herein are for estimating purposes only and the City makes no guarantee as to exact

locations / quantities estimated or used and therefore reserves the right to revise locations and/or

material quantities as the situation warrants.

Section 1

I/We fr S offer to suppler the requirements stated

within at the corresponding totals.

The rack prices as of Tuesday, March 5, 2019 are declared as follows: Please provide and

enclose proof thereof.

Item I

Dyed Diesel Clear Diesel Reg. Unleaded Gas Premium High Octane
Unleaded Gas

(7(5i(fb O1b210 O7Z1O

This page 1 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores// P\NRFQOOi-2O]9 I/PAGE 8



City of Temiskaming Shores

Item 2

Gasoline and Diesel Fuel
PW-RFQ-001-2019

Estimated Unit Price Margin Gas Tax Excise Tax Total
Description Usage (per litre)

Dyed Diesel 92, 411 L
. -ô o, üqoo o

ClearDiesel 73,777L
.

Reg. Unleaded 69, 015 L
•

o. o’—ioc’ o. t000 0.Gasoline

Premium High 9, 000 L

Octane Unleaded Q 1000 910 OIOO I obO
Gasoline

Sub-Total:

H.S.T.:

Total:

$

$

$

nok
&;

1v -1-cJY -k-k
1-.

eed

This page 2 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores// PW-RFQ-OO1-2019 I/PAGE 9



ii
CaC

t
C5
O

C
t

C0C-)

-oG
)

C”U
)

U
)

CG
)

D0a)>
,

aa-U
,

00

I

0

—ci)

:5
U11)

:5:5

-oPC)0-c11•)

CEC
CEci)

F—‘4
-

0>
-

4
-,

U

CL)
4
-
,

H

,
-

CcT
h

QJ

0
)

CN0-c:5

:1r
i

2
2

2
°
’

4
-

C
t

>
C00C

t
c

C’)
Cr-)
—

C
0

C’)
4

-
Cl)

-o>
C

t
U

)
-

a)
C

C’)
C

t
C—

‘
4

-

0
C

)
-

a)

C’)

a
)

—
H

:5u
J0002C-’0-cCC-C
CCCC)

4
-0>
-

U

C
)

.3-

cj

•0C
)

E.0zU
)C’)

.004
-
,

C
D

9
-0C
.,

C
)

0
)

C
u

0
.

U
)

I-

—

-
I
:
-
-
-
)

0

C’)

C
-

ci)Co
ci)

i:
C

o_
0

U
)

U
)

ci,
a=-Q

D
0

0C
t

C0C-)
><C”

U
-

C”Ew



City of Temiskaming Shores Gasoline and Diesel Fuel
PW-RFQ-OO1-2019

City of Temiskaming Shores
PW-RFQ-001 -2019

Gasoline and Diesel Fuel

Non-Collusion Affidavit

I! We the undersigned am fully informed

respecting the preparation and contents of the attached quotation and of all pertinent

circumstances respecting such bid.

Such bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham bid.

Neither the bidder nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees or

parties of interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed

directly or indirectly with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collective or sham bid in

connection with the work for which the attached bid has been submitted nor has it in any manner,

directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communication or conference with any

other bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached bid or of any other Bidder, or

to fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the bid price or the price of any bidder, or to secure

through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement any advantage against the

City of Temiskaming Shores or any person interested in the proposed bid.

The price or prices quoted in the attached bid are fair and proper and not tainted by any collusion,

conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents,

representatives, owners, employees, or parties in interest, including this affiant.

The bid, quotation or proposal of any person, company, corporation or organization that does

attempt to influence the outcome of any City purchasing or disposal process will be disqualified,

and the person, company, corporation or organization may be subject to exclusion or suspension.

Dated at ay of 2019.

Signed

_______________________________

Company Name a1y\J ‘T(/

Title

_________________

This page 4 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores// PWRFO.OO12O19 II PAGE 11



City of Temiskaming Shores Gasoline and Diesel Fuel

PW- R FQ-00 1-2019

Conflict of Interest Declaration

Plea1e check appropriate response:

liWe hereby confirm that there is not nor was there any actual perceived conflict of
interest in our quotation submission or performing/providing the Goods/Services
required by the Agreement.

LI The following is a list of situations, each of which may be a conflict of interest, or
appears as potentially a conflict of interest in our Company’s quotation submission
or the contractual obligations under the Agreement.

List Situations:

In making this quotation submission, our Company has I has no (strike out inapplicable portion)

knowledge of or the ability to avail ourselves of confidential information of the City (other
than confidential information which may have been disclosed by the City in the normal

course of the quotation process) and the confidential information was relevant to the
Work/Services, their pricing or quotation evaluation process.

Dated at N/IA) L dthiS Jayof (( 2019.

::ny Name

_______

Bidder’s Authorization Official I-i “rt-.J ‘T
Title 7f.;;; c

This page 5 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores/I PWRl:QOOi2O19 i/PAGE 12



City of Temiskaming Shores Gasoline and Diesel Fuel
PW-RFQ-OO1-2019

Schedule “A”

Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005 Compliance Agreement

IA’Ve, by our signature below, certify that we are in full compliance with Section 6 of
Ontario Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service made under the
Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005. If requested, we are able to provide
written proof that all employees have been trained as required under the act.

This regulation establishes accessibility standards for customer service as it applies to
every designated public sector organization and to every person or organization that
provides goods or services to members of the public or other third parties and that have at
least one employee in Ontario.

Name ompany Name

Phone Number 7Q- L/7 6 Address

I,

_____________________,

declare that I, or my company, are in full compliance with
Section 6 of Ontario Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service
under

This page 6 of 6 to be submifted

City of Terniskaming Shores/I P\.J-RFC).-OOi-O19 // PAGE 13



City of Temiskaming Shores Gasoline and Diesel Fuel
P W-R F 0-00 1-20 19

Schedule B — Locations

Location Premium Dyed diesel Clear diesel Regular
high octane unleaded
gasoline gasoline

Public Works Dept. 200 4500 litre Tank 18,100 Litre 18,100 Litre
Lakeshore Rd. (New Liskeard) Outside Tank Outside Tank

Outside

Public Works Dept. 500 18100 litre Tank
Broadway Ave. (Haileybury) Outside

Harbourfront Marina Farr Dr. 4,500 litre
(Haileybury) outside tank

for watercraft

Gray St. sewage lift station 1,000 litre outdoor tank
(New Liskeard) for generator

Raymond St. Water pumping 2 x 1000 litre indoor
station. (Dymond Twp.) tanks

Brown ing St. water treatment 1 850 litre outdoor tank
plant (Haileybury) for generator

View St. Waste Water 1,110 litre outdoor tank
Treatment Plant (Haileybury) for generator

Niven St. South Water 1,801 litre outdoor tank
Reservoir (Haileybury) for generator

Station St. Lift Station (North 454 litre indoor tank for
Cobalt) generator

North Cobalt Lagoon Proctor’s 1,1 10 litre indoor tank
Road (North Cobalt) for generator

Montgomery St. Lift Station 1 000 litre outdoor tank
(New Liskeard) for generator

Shepherdson Rd. Reservoir 2,500 litre outdoor tank
(New Liskeard) for generator

Niven St. North Waste Water 1 000 litre outdoor tank
Lift Station (New Liskeard) for generator

Whitewood Ave Lift Station ( 1, 000 litre outdoor
New Liskeard) tank for generator

McCamus Ave Water Treatment 1,1 10 litre indoor tank
Plant (New Liskeard) for generator

Goodman St. Pumping Station 1,000 litre outdoor tank
(New Liskeard) for generator

New Liskeard Lagoon Bedard 1,000 litre outdoor tank
Road (New Liskeard) for generator

City of Temiskaming Shores/I P\V-RFQ-OO1-2010 // PAGE 14



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2019-071 

Being a by-law to enter into a Purchase Agreement with 
Nortrax Canada Inc. (Stoney Creek) for the purchase of a 

used Grader 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, the powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to 
govern its affairs as it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s 
ability to responds to municipal issues; 

And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a 
natural person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other 
Act; 

And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, 
as amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public;  

And whereas Council considered Administrative Report No. PW-012-2019 at the 
April 16, 2019 Regular Council meeting and directed staff to prepare the 
necessary by-law to enter into an agreement with Nortrax Canada Inc. (Stoney 
Creek) for the purchase of a used Grader at an upset limit of $229,600 plus 
applicable taxes for consideration at the May 7, 2019 Regular Council meeting; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming 
Shores hereby enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That Council authorizes the entering into a purchase agreement with 
Nortrax Canada Inc. (Stoney Creek) for the purchase of a used Grader at 
an upset limit of $229,600 plus applicable taxes, attached hereto as 
Schedule “A” and forming part of this by-law. 

2. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to 
make minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical 
nature to the by-law and schedule, after the passage of this by-law, where 
such modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law or its 
associated schedule. 

Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 7th day of May, 
2019. 

 
__________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 

 
 
__________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



 
 

Schedule “A” to 

By-law 2019-071 

Equipment Purchase Agreement between  

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

and 

Nortrax Canada Inc. (Stoney Creek) 

For the supply and delivery of a used Grader 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Grader - Nortrax By-law No. 2019-071 

 

 

This agreement made in duplicate this 7th day of May, 2019. 
 
Between: 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
(hereinafter called “the Owner”) 

 
and 

Nortrax Canada Inc. 
(hereinafter called “the Supplier”) 

Witnesseth: 

That the Owner and the Supplier shall undertake and agree as follows: 

Article I: 

The Supplier will: 

a) Provide one (1) used Grader in accordance to Appendix 01 attached hereto and 
forming part of this agreement. 

Article II: 

The Owner will: 

a) Pay the Supplier in lawful money of Canada for the supply and delivery of one (1) 
used Grader in the amount of Two Hundred and Twenty-Nine Thousand, Six 
Hundred Dollars and Zero cents ($229,600.00) plus applicable taxes; 

b) Make payment on account thereof upon delivery and completion of the said work 
and receipt of invoice, in accordance with the City of Temiskaming Shores 
Purchasing Policy, and with terms of Net 30 days after receiving such invoice. 

Article III: 

All communications in writing between the parties shall be deemed to have been 
received by the addressee if delivered to the individual or to a member of the firm or to 
an officer of the Owner for whom they are intended or if sent by hand, Canada Post, 
courier, facsimile or by another electronic communication where, during or after the 
transmission of the communication, no indication or notice of a failure or suspension of 
transmission has been communicated to the sender. For deliveries by courier or by 
hand, delivery shall be deemed to have been received on the date of delivery; by 
Canada Post, 5 days after the date on which it was mailed. A communication sent by 
facsimile or by electronic communication with no indication of failure or suspension of 
delivery, shall be deemed to have been received at the opening of business on the next 
day, unless the next day is not a working day for the recipient, in which case it shall be 
deemed to have been received on the next working day of the recipient at the opening of 
business. 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Grader - Nortrax By-law No. 2019-071 

 

 

The Supplier: The Owner: 

Nortrax Canada Inc. City of Temiskaming Shores 
760 South Service Road 325 Farr Drive 
Stoney Creek, Ontario P.O. Box 2050 
L8E 5M6 Haileybury, Ontario 
 P0J 1K0 

Attn.:  Peter Simpson Attn.:  Mitch Lafereniere 

Remainder of Page left Blank Intentionally 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Grader - Nortrax By-law No. 2019-071 

 

 

In witness whereof the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first 
above written. 

Signed and Sealed in ) Notrax Canada Inc. 
the presence of ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Peter Simpson 

 )  

 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Witness - Signature 

 ) Print Name:  ______________________ 

 ) Title: __________________________ 

 ) 
Municipal Seal ) Corporation of the City of  
 ) Temiskaming Shores 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Clerk – David B. Treen 

 



 

 

 

 

Appendix 01 to 

Schedule “A” to 

By-law No. 2019-071 

Form of Agreement 
Grader 











 

 

 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF TEMISKAMING SHORES 

BY-LAW NUMBER 2019-072 

A BY-LAW TO AUTHORIZE CERTAIN NEW CAPITAL WORKS 

OF THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF TEMISKAMING 

SHORES (THE “MUNICIPALITY”); TO AUTHORIZE THE 

SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION TO ONTARIO 

INFRASTRUCTURE AND LANDS CORPORATION (“OILC”) FOR 

FINANCING SUCH CAPITAL WORKS; TO AUTHORIZE 

TEMPORARY BORROWING FROM OILC TO MEET 

EXPENDITURES IN CONNECTION WITH SUCH WORKS; AND 

TO AUTHORIZE LONG TERM BORROWING FOR SUCH 

WORKS THROUGH THE ISSUE OF DEBENTURES TO OILC 

WHEREAS the Municipal Act, 2001 (Ontario), as amended, (the “Act”) provides 

that a municipal power shall be exercised by by-law unless the municipality is specifically 

authorized to do otherwise; 

AND WHEREAS it is now deemed to be expedient to authorize for the purposes 

of the Municipality the new capital work(s) described in column (2) of Schedule “A” (individually 

a “Capital Work”, collectively the “Capital Works”, as the case may be) attached hereto and 

forming part of this By-law (“Schedule “A”) in the amount of the respective estimated expenditure 

set out in column (3) of Schedule “A”, subject in each case to approval by OILC of the financing 

for such Capital Work(s) that will be requested by the Municipality in the Application as 

hereinafter defined; 

AND WHEREAS in accordance with section 4 of Ontario Regulation 403/02 (the 

“Regulation”), the Council of the Municipality had its Treasurer calculate an updated limit in 

respect of its most recent annual debt and financial obligation limit received from the Ministry of 

Municipal Affairs and Housing (as so updated, the “Updated Limit”), and, on the basis of the 

authorized estimated expenditure for the Capital Work or each Capital Work, as the case may be, 

as set out in column (3) of Schedule “A” (the “Authorized Expenditure” for any such Capital 

Work), the Treasurer calculated the estimated annual amount payable in respect of the Capital 

Work or each Capital Work, as the case may be, (collectively the “Estimated Annual Amount 

Payable”) and determined that the Estimated Annual Amount Payable does not cause the 

Municipality to exceed the Updated Limit, and accordingly the approval of the Ontario Municipal 

Board pursuant to the Regulation, is not required before any such Capital Work is authorized by 

the Council of the Municipality; 

AND WHEREAS subsection 405(1) of the Act provides, amongst other things, that 

a municipality may authorize temporary borrowing to meet expenditures made in connection with 

a work to be financed in whole or in part by the issue of debentures if, the municipality is an upper-

tier municipality, a lower-tier municipality in a county or a single-tier municipality and it has 

approved the issue of debentures for the work; 

AND WHEREAS subsection 401(1) of the Act provides that a municipality may 

incur a debt for municipal purposes, whether by borrowing money or in any other way, and may 

issue debentures and prescribed financial instruments and enter prescribed financial agreements 

for or in relation to the debt; 



 - 2 -  

 

 

 

AND WHEREAS the Act also provides that a municipality shall authorize long 

term borrowing by the issue of debentures or through another municipality under section 403 or 

404 of the Act; 

AND WHEREAS OILC has invited Ontario municipalities desirous of obtaining 

temporary and long-term debt financing in order to meet capital expenditures incurred on or after 

January 1, 2004 in connection with eligible capital works to make application to OILC for such 

financing by completing and submitting an application on the form provided by OILC; 

AND WHEREAS the Municipality has completed and submitted an application to 

OILC (the “Application”) to request financing for the Capital Work(s) by way of long term 

borrowing through the issue of debentures to OILC and by way of temporary borrowing from 

OILC pending the issue of such debentures; 

AND WHEREAS OILC has accepted and has approved the Application; 

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY 

OF TEMISKAMING SHORES ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Council of the Municipality hereby confirms, ratifies and approves the execution by 

the Treasurer of the Application and the submission by such authorized official of the 

Application, duly executed by such authorized official, to OILC for the financing of the 

Capital Work(s) in the maximum aggregate principal amount of $820,275 substantially in 

the form of Schedule “B” hereto and forming part of this By-law, with such changes 

thereon as such authorized official may hereafter approve, such execution and delivery to 

be conclusive evidence of such approval. 

2. (a)  The undertaking of the Capital Work or of each Capital Work, as the case may be, 

in the amount of the respective estimated Authorized Expenditure set out in column 

(3) of Schedule “A” is hereby approved and authorized; 

(b) any one or more of the Mayor and the Treasurer are hereby authorized to conclude 

contracts on behalf of the Municipality for the undertaking of the Capital Work or 

of each Capital Work, as the case may be, in accordance with the Municipality’s 

usual protocol; 

(c) where applicable, the Engineer of the Municipality will forthwith make such plans, 

profiles and specifications and furnish such information as in the opinion of the 

Engineer are necessary for the undertaking of the Capital Work or of each Capital 

Work, as the case may be; and 

(d) where applicable, the undertaking of the Capital Work or of each Capital Work, as 

the case may be, shall be carried on and executed under the superintendence and 

according to the direction and orders of such Engineer. 

3. The Mayor and the Treasurer are hereby authorized to negotiate and enter into, execute 

and deliver for and on behalf of the Municipality a financing agreement (a “Financing 

Agreement”) with OILC that provides for temporary and long term borrowing from OILC 



 - 3 -  

 

 

 

in respect of the Capital Work(s) on such terms and conditions as such authorized officials 

may approve, such execution and delivery to be conclusive evidence of such approval. 

4. The Mayor and/or the Treasurer are hereby authorized, pending the substantial completion 

the Capital Work or each Capital Work, as the case may be, or as otherwise agreed with 

OILC, to make temporary borrowings pursuant to section 405 of the Act in respect of the 

Capital Work or of each Capital Work, as the case may be, on the terms and conditions 

provided in the Financing Agreement and on such other terms and conditions as such 

authorized officials may agree, and to sign such evidence of indebtedness as OILC may 

require (the “Note”) and to deliver the Note to OILC, such execution and delivery to be 

conclusive evidence of such agreement; and the Treasurer is authorized to sign such 

certifications as OILC may require in connection with such borrowings in respect of the 

Capital Work(s); provided that the amount of borrowings allocated to the Capital Work or 

to each Capital Work, as the case may be, does not exceed the Authorized Expenditure for 

such Capital Work and does not exceed the related loan amount set out in column (4) of 

Schedule “A” in respect of such Capital Work. 

5. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Financing Agreement and such other terms and 

conditions as OILC may otherwise require, the Mayor and the Treasurer are hereby 

authorized to long term borrow for the Capital Work(s) and to issue debentures to OILC 

on the terms and conditions provided in the Financing Agreement and on such other terms 

and conditions as such authorized officials may agree (the “Debentures”); provided that 

the principal amount of the Debentures issued in respect of the Capital Work or of each 

Capital Work, as the case may be, does not exceed the Authorized Expenditure for such 

Capital Work and does not exceed the related loan amount set out in column (4) of Schedule 

“A” in respect of such Capital Work. 

6. In accordance with the provisions of section 25 of the Ontario Infrastructure and Lands 

Corporation Act, 2011, as amended from time to time hereafter, as security for the payment 

by the Municipality of the indebtedness of the Municipality to OILC under the Note and/or 

the Debentures, as the case may be (the “Obligations”), the Municipality is hereby 

authorized to agree in writing with OILC that the Minister of Finance is entitled, without 

notice to the Municipality, to deduct from money appropriated by the Legislative Assembly 

of Ontario for payment to the Municipality, amounts not exceeding the amounts that the 

Municipality fails to pay OILC on account of the Obligations and to pay such amounts to 

OILC from the Consolidated Revenue Fund. 

7. For the purposes of meeting the Obligations, the Municipality shall provide for raising in 

each year as part of the general levy, the amounts of principal and interest payable in each 

year under the Note and/or any outstanding Debenture, to the extent that the amounts have 

not been provided for by any other available source including other taxes or fees or charges 

imposed on persons or property by a by-law of any municipality. 

8. (a) The Mayor and/or the Treasurer are hereby authorized to execute and 

deliver the Note, the Mayor and the Treasurer are hereby authorized to enter into, 

execute and deliver the Financing Agreement, and to issue the Debentures, one or 

more of the Clerk and the Treasurer are hereby authorized to generally do all things 

and to execute all other documents and papers in the name of the Municipality in 



 - 4 -  

 

 

 

order to perform the Obligations of the Municipality under the Financing 

Agreement and to execute and deliver the Note and to issue the Debentures, and 

the Treasurer is authorized to affix the Municipality’s municipal seal to any such 

documents and papers. 

(b) The money realized in respect of the Note and the Debentures, including any 

premium, and any earnings derived from the investment of that money, after 

providing for the expenses related to the execution and delivery of the Note and to 

the issue of the Debentures, if any, shall be apportioned and applied to the 

respective Capital Work and to no other purpose except as permitted by the Act. 

9. This By-law takes effect on the day of passing. 

ENACTED AND PASSED this 7th day of May, A.D. 2019. 

________________________________________  ___________________________________________ 

Carman Kidd      David B. Treen 

Mayor       Municipal Clerk



 

 

 

Schedule “A” 

to By-Law Number 2019-072 

(New Capital Work(s)) 

 

(1) (2) (3) (4) 

Capital Work 

Number 

Description of Capital Work Estimated 

Expenditure 

Loan Amount 

1 NL Library Relocation $1,700,000 $1,700,000 

2 Fleet Replacement $600,000 $600,000 



   

 

 

 

Schedule “B” 

 

Please insert the OILC Application into Schedule “B”. 



Webloans Loan Application PDF

Projects

ID
SIT Project
ID Project Name

Construction/Purchase
Start

Construction/Purchase
End Project Cost OILC Loan Amount

866 1
New Liskeard Library
Relocation

07/01/2019 12/31/2019 $1,700,000.00 1,700,000.00

867 2 Fleet Replacement 05/01/2019 05/30/2019 $600,000.00 600,000.00

Details of Project New Liskeard Library Relocation

Project Financial Information

Required Date Amount Term Type  

FA Number 1380

Application for Temiskaming Shores, The Corporation of The City of

Project Category Municipal Other Infrastructure

Work Type Others

Other Description Relocation of Library

Project Name New Liskeard Library Relocation

Construction/Purchase Start 07/01/2019

Construction/Purchase End 12/31/2019

Energy Conservation

Project Address 1 285 Whitewood Avenue

Project Address 2

City / Town New Liskeard

Province ON

Postal Code P0J 1K0

Description Renovate former Medical Centre to accommodate Library Services.  
Natural gas will be brought into the building and a new boiler system 
installed.  LED lights and occupancy sensors will also be installed 
throughout the building.

Comments and/or Special
Requests

Project Life Span (Years) 50

Project Cost (A) $1,700,000.00

Other Project Funding / Financing (B):

Other Project Funding/Financing Total (B) $0.00

OILC Loan Amount (A-B) $1,700,000.00

Only include long-term borrowing in this section. If you anticipate that you will require short-term financing during the construction phase of the
project, the information will be gathered as part of the Financing Agreement.

https://webloans.infrastructureontario.ca/Loan/Index


01/01/2020 $1,700,000.00 20 Serial

Details of Project Fleet Replacement

Project Financial Information

Required Date Amount Term Type  

06/01/2019 $600,000.00 10 Serial

Debt and Re-payments Summary

Non Re-payments of Loans or Debenture

Long-term Borrowing Total $1,700,000.00  

Project Category Municipal Other Infrastructure

Work Type Others

Other Description replacement of plow truck and grader

Project Name Fleet Replacement

Construction/Purchase Start 05/01/2019

Construction/Purchase End 05/30/2019

Energy Conservation

Project Address 1 200 Lakeshore Road

Project Address 2

City / Town New Liskeard

Province Ontario

Postal Code P0J 1K0

Description Replacement of plow truck and grader as per approved fleet 
replacement plan.

Comments and/or Special
Requests

Project Life Span (Years) 20

Project Cost (A) $600,000.00

Other Project Funding / Financing (B):

Other Project Funding/Financing Total (B) $0.00

OILC Loan Amount (A-B) $600,000.00

Only include long-term borrowing in this section. If you anticipate that you will require short-term financing during the construction phase of the
project, the information will be gathered as part of the Financing Agreement.

Long-term Borrowing Total $600,000.00  

Has there been any new/undisclosed debt acquired since last FIR was
submitted?

 Yes      No

Please describe any re-financing plans for any existing "interest only"
debt, if applicable.

In the last 10 years, has the borrower ever failed to make a loan payment or debenture repayment on time to any lender, including the Provincial
Government?



OILC Loan Repayment Information

Documentation and Acknowledgements

Please ensure all required documents are submitted with the signed application. OILC requires originals as noted below to be mailed or couriered. Also, please retain a
copy of all documents submitted to OILC for your records. 

To obtain templates for documents see listed below. 

Loan Application Signature Page signed and dated by the appropriate individual (original to be submitted)
Certificate and sealed copy of OILC template By-Law authorizing project borrowing and applying for a loan (original with seal)
Certificate of Treasurer Regarding Litigation using the OILC template (original, signed & sealed)
Updated Certified Annual Repayment Limit Calculation (original)

 I acknowledge and agree that all of the above referenced documents must be submitted in the form required by OILC and understand that the application will not be

processed until such documents have been fully completed and received by Infrastructure Ontario.

Please note: OILC retains the right to request and review any additional information or documents at its discretion.

Confidential Information
OILC is an institution to which the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (Ontario) applies. Information and supporting documents submitted by the
Borrower to process the loan application will be kept secure and confidential, subject to any applicable laws or rules of a court or tribunal having jurisdiction. 

Infrastructure Ontario, Copyright © Queen’s Printer for Ontario, 2019

If yes, please provide details.

Please indicate the source(s) of revenue you plan to use to repay the OILC Loan

Taxation 100.00

User Fees 0.00

Service Charges 0.00

Development Charges 0.00

Connection Fees 0.00

Repayment Subsidies 0.00

Other  

Total 100.00% 



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2019-073 

Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with Pollard 
Distribution Inc. for the Supply and Application of 

Liquid Dust Suppressant at various locations within the 
City of Temiskaming Shores 

  
Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, the powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to 
govern its affairs as it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s 
ability to responds to municipal issues; 
 
And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a 
natural person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other 
Act; 
 
And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, 
as amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public;  
 
And whereas Council considered Administrative Report No. PW-014-2019 at the 
May 7th, 2019 Regular Council meeting and directed staff to prepare the 
necessary by-law to enter into an agreement with Pollard Distribution Inc. for the 
Supply and Application of Liquid Dust Suppressant for consideration at the May 
7th, 2019 Regular Council meeting; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming 
Shores hereby enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That Council authorizes the entering into an agreement with Pollard 
Distribution Inc. for the Supply and Application of Liquid Dust Suppressant at 
various locations in the City of Temiskaming Shores, at a unit cost of $0.305 
plus applicable taxes per litre, a copy of which is attached hereto as 
Schedule “A” and forming part of this by-law; 

2. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to 
make minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical 
nature to the by-law and schedule, after the passage of this by-law, where 
such modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law or its 
associated schedule. 

Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 7th day of May, 
2019. 

 
________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 

 
 
________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



 

 
 

Schedule “A” to 

By-law 2019-073 

Agreement between  

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

and 

Pollard Distribution Inc. 

for the Supply and Application of Liquid Dust Suppressant 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Liquid Calcium – Pollard By-law 2019-073 

 

 

This agreement made in duplicate this 7th day of May 2019. 

Between: 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
(hereinafter called “the Owner”) 

 

And: 

Pollard Distribution Inc. 
(hereinafter called “the Contractor”) 

Witnesseth: 

That the Owner and the Contractor shall undertake and agree as follows: 

Article I: 

The Contractor will: 

a) Provide all material and perform all work described in the Contract Documents 
entitled: 

Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
Supply and Application of Liquid Dust Suppressant 

Tender No. PWO-RFT-004-2019 

b) Do and fulfill everything indicated by this Agreement and in the Form of 
Agreement, attached hereto as Appendix 01; 

c) Complete, as certified by the Director of Public Works, all the work by September 
30th, 2019. 

Article II: 

The Owner will: 

a) Pay the Contractor in lawful money of Canada for the material and services 
aforesaid Zero Dollars and Thirty and One-Half Cents ($0.305) plus 
applicable taxes per litre, subject to additions and deductions as provided in the 
Contract Documents. 

b) Make payment on account thereof upon delivery and completion of the said work 
and receipt of invoice, in accordance with the City of Temiskaming Shores 
Purchasing Policy, and with terms of Net 30 days after receiving such invoice. 

 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Liquid Calcium – Pollard By-law 2019-073 

 

 

Article III: 

All communications in writing between the parties, or between them and the Engineer 
shall be deemed to have been received by the addressee if delivered to the individual or 
to a member of the firm or to an officer of the Owner for whom they are intended or if 
sent by hand, Canada Post, courier, facsimile or by another electronic communication 
where, during or after the transmission of the communication, no indication or notice of a 
failure or suspension of transmission has been communicated to the sender. For 
deliveries by courier or by hand, delivery shall be deemed to have been received on the 
date of delivery; by Canada Post, 5 days after the date on which it was mailed. A 
communication sent by facsimile or by electronic communication with no indication of 
failure or suspension of delivery, shall be deemed to have been received at the opening 
of business on the next day, unless the next day is not a working day for the recipient, in 
which case it shall be deemed to have been received on the next working day of the 
recipient at the opening of business. 

The Contractor: The Owner: 

Pollard Distribution Inc. City of Temiskaming Shores 
P.O. Box 280 P.O. Box 2050 / 325 Farr Drive 
Harrow, Ontario Haileybury, Ontario 
N0R 1G0 P0J 1K0 
 

Remainder of page left blank intentionally 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Liquid Calcium – Pollard By-law 2019-073 

 

 

In witness whereof the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first 
above written. 

Signed and Sealed in ) Pollard Distribution Inc. 
the presence of ) 
 ) 
Contractor / Tenant / ) __________________________________ 
Consultant’s Seal ) President – Kevin Pollard 

(if applicable) )  
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Witness - Signature 

 ) Print Name:  ______________________ 

 ) Title: __________________________ 

 ) 
Municipal Seal ) Corporation of the City of  
 ) Temiskaming Shores 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Clerk – David B. Treen 

 



 

 

 

 

Appendix 01 to 

Schedule “A” to 

By-law No. 2019-073 

Form of Agreement 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores Liquid Calcium Chloride
PWO-RFT-004-2019

Form of Tender

Each FORM OF TENDER should contain the legal name under which the Bidder carries on business,

telephone number and fax number, as well the name or names of appropriate contact personnel

which the City may consult regarding the Tender.

I/We, the undersigned, have carefully examined the attached documents and conditions of the

Tender. I/We understand and accept those specifications, conditions, and details as described herein,

and, for these rates/prices offer to furnish all equipment, labour, apparatus and documentation as are

required to satisfy this Tender.

NOTE: All portions of “Form of Tender” must be accurately and completely filled out.

Section 1

Location Quantity Unit Price Sub Total H.S.T. Total, $
L

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to
78,000 3Q5 O

•various locations Township of Harley

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to

various locations Township of 26,000 3O 3O

Evanturel

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to 478,000 3 0
various locations Township of Kerns 3 7O

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to
;

various locations, Township of 52,000 ‘jç’ X(o. i9i

Chamberlain

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to .0
.5

various locations, Township of 78,000 39’tO. ¶3O’c.

Hudson

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to ‘1

various locations City of 156,000 ZSD 5.3 -(&

Temiskaming Shores

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to
. 90

S ¶.7ct3c %?D. 9%O.various locations, Township of 26,000

Hilliard

Page 1 of 6 to be submitted

‘0

0

City of Temiskaming Shores// PWO-RFT-004-2019 // PAGE 27



City of Temiskaming Shores Liquid Calcium Chloride
PWO-R FT-004-2019

Location Quantity Unit Price Sub Total H.S.T. Total, $
L

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to c
52,000 3t! j9O. cOCD1various locations, Brethour Twp.

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to
28,000

$J)
various locations Township of Casey

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to
31Ovarious locations Township of 78,000

Armstrong

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to

various locations Township of 52,000 s /I3. X4I. ? 2I.
Chariton — Dack

F.O.B. Delivered and Applied to ct,t
26,000

various locations Township of Harris

F.O.B. Delivered and applied to

various locations within the 378,000
boundaries of the Township of

Temagami

Page 2 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores// PWORFT-OO4-2O19 /1 PAGE 28



City of Temiskaming Shores Liquid Calcium Chloride
PWO-RFT-004-2019

lme )C. offer to supply the requirements stated within.

lIWe hold the prices valid for 30 (thirty) days from submission date.

The specifications have been read over and agreed to this 5 day of

Page 3 of 6 to be submitted

2019

(‘04?

Company Name Contact name (please print)

,çrTio

Mailing Address Title

8O

o )rA 1 0 C3t N7

I

Postal Code Authorizing signature

‘t) I &T 0 CJ
I have the authority to bind the

com pa ny/corporation/partnership.”

Telephone Fax

I- 7-3- ‘:-i 38 -2(

Cell Phone if possible Email

cc1/L( )(p0poc(J4I

City of Temiskaming Shores/I PWO-RFT-004-2019 I/PAGE 29



City of Temiskaming Shores Liquid Calcium Chloride
PWO-RFT-004-2019

City of Temiskaming Shores

PWO-RFT-004-2019

Liquid Calcium Chloride

Non Collusion Affidavit

I/We fC the undersigned, am fully informed respecting

the preparation and contents of the attached Tender and of all pertinent circumstances respecting

such Bid.

Such Bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham Bid.

Neither the Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees or

parties of interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed

directly or indirectly with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collective or sham Bid in

connection with the work for which the attached Bid has been submitted nor has it in any manner,

directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communication or conference with any

other Bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached Bid or of any other Bidder, or to

fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the Bid price or the price of any Bidder, or to secure

through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement any advantage against the City

of Temiskaming Shores or any person interested in the proposed Bid.

The price or prices quoted in the attached Bid are fair and proper and not tainted by any collusion,

conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents,

representatives, owners, employees, or parties in interest, including this affiant.

The Bid, Tender or Proposal of any person, company, corporation or organization that does attempt to

influence the outcome of any City purchasing or disposal process will be disqualified, and the person,

company, corporation or organization may be subject to exclusion or suspension.
n 7(f

Dated at ?74s0 this day of

_____________________,

2019

Signed

___________________________________________

Company Name

__________________________________

Title 7

Page 4 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores II PWO-RFT-004-2019 // PAGE 30



City of Temiskaming Shores Liquid Calcium Chloride
PWO-RFT-004-2019

City of Temiskaming Shores
PWO-RFT-004-2019

Liquid Calcium Chloride

Conflict of Interest Declaration

I/we hereby confirm that there is not nor was there any actual or perceived conflict of interest

in our quotation submission or performing/providing the Goods/Services required by the

Agreement.

fl The following is a list of situations, each of which may be a conflict of interest, or appears as

potentially a conflict of interest in our Company’s quotation submission or the contractual

obligations under the Agreement.

List Situations:

In making this quotation submission, our Company has / has no (strike out inapplicable portion)
knowledge of or the ability to avail ourselves of confidential information of the City (other than

confidential information which may have been disclosed by the City in the normal course of the

quotation process) and the confidential information was relevant to the Work/Services, their pricing

or quotation evaluation process.
1tq

this of tq ‘-‘ L
, 2019.

Ic.

L41

R2c

Signature

Page 5 of 6 to be submitted

Please check appropriate response:

V

Dated at

________________

Firm Name

Bidder’s Authorization Official

Title

City of Temiskaming Shores// PW0RFT-OO4-2O19 // PAGE 31



City of Temiskaming Shores Liquid Calcium Chloride
PWO-RFT-004-2019

City of Temiskaming Shores
PWO-RFT-004-2019

Liquid Calcium Chloride

Schedule “A”- Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005 Compliance
Agreement

I/We, by our signature below, certify that we are in full compliance with Section 6 of Ontario
Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service made under the Accessibilityfor
Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005. If requested, we are able to provide written proof that all
employees have been trained as required under the act.

This regulation establishes accessibility standards for customer service as it applies to every
designated public sector organization and to every person or organization that provides goods or
services to members of the public or other third parties and that have at least one employee in
Ontario.

Name Eompany Name

Phone Number Address

I, r / VLtJDr/2
, declare that I, or my company, are in full compliance with

Section 6 of Ontario Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service under the

Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005.

I,

_______________________________

, declare that I, or my company, are not in full compliance

with Section 6 of Ontario Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service under the
Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005, yet fully agree to meet the required compliance
training standards on or before the delivery of the required goods and/or services. In an effort to assist
non-compliant vendors, a link to a free e-learning course module called Serve-Ability, Transforming
Ontario’s Customer Service is available at www.gov.on .ca/mcss/serveability/splash.htm I.

Date: W&(L

Page 6 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores // PWO-RFT-004-2019 // PAGE 32



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2019-074 

Being a by-law to enter into a Purchase Agreement with 
Winslow Gerolamy Motors for the purchase of a Plow 

Truck 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, the powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to 
govern its affairs as it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s 
ability to responds to municipal issues; 

And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a 
natural person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other 
Act; 

And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, 
as amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public;  

And whereas Council considered Administrative Report No. PW-013-2019 at the 
April 16, 2019 Regular Council meeting and directed staff to prepare the 
necessary by-law to enter into an agreement with Winslow Gerolamy Motors for 
the purchase of an in-stock Plow Truck at an upset limit of $244,569 plus 
applicable taxes as well as vehicle appurtenances at an upset limit of $15,000 
plus applicable taxes for consideration at the May 7, 2019 Regular Council 
meeting; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming 
Shores hereby enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That Council authorizes the entering into a purchase agreement with 
Winslow Gerolamy Motors for the purchase of an in-stock Plow Truck at an 
upset limit of $244,569 plus applicable taxes as well as vehicle 
appurtenances at an upset limit of $15,000 plus applicable taxes for 
consideration, attached hereto as Schedule “A” and forming part of this by-
law. 

2. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to 
make minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical 
nature to the by-law and schedule, after the passage of this by-law, where 
such modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law or its 
associated schedule. 

  



Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 7th day of May, 
2019. 

 

__________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 

 
 
 
__________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



 
 

Schedule “A” to 

By-law 2019-074 

Equipment Purchase Agreement between  

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

and 

Winslow Gerolamy Motors 

For the supply and delivery of an in-stock Plow Truck 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Plow Truck - Winslow By-law No. 2019-074 

 

 

This agreement made in duplicate this 7th day of April, 2019. 
 
Between: 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
(hereinafter called “the Owner”) 

 
and 

Winslow Gerolamy Motors 
(hereinafter called “the Supplier”) 

Witnesseth: 

That the Owner and the Supplier shall undertake and agree as follows: 

Article I: 

The Supplier will: 

a) Provide one (1) in-stock Plow Truck in accordance to Appendix 01 attached hereto 
and forming part of this agreement; 

b) Provide vehicle appurtenances in the amount of $15,000 plus applicable taxes. 

Article II: 

The Owner will: 

a) Pay the Supplier in lawful money of Canada for the supply and delivery of one (1) 
in-stock Plow Truck in the amount of Two Hundred and Forty-Four Thousand, 
Five Hundred and Sixty-Nine Dollars and Zero cents ($244,569.00) plus 
applicable taxes; 

b) Pay the Supplier in lawful money of Canada for the supply and delivery of vehicle 
appurtenances in the amount of Fifteen Thousand Dollars and Zero cents 
($15,000.00) plus applicable taxes; 

c) Make payment on account thereof upon delivery and completion of the said work 
and receipt of invoice, in accordance with the City of Temiskaming Shores 
Purchasing Policy, and with terms of Net 30 days after receiving such invoice. 

Article III: 

All communications in writing between the parties shall be deemed to have been 
received by the addressee if delivered to the individual or to a member of the firm or to 
an officer of the Owner for whom they are intended or if sent by hand, Canada Post, 
courier, facsimile or by another electronic communication where, during or after the 
transmission of the communication, no indication or notice of a failure or suspension of 
transmission has been communicated to the sender. For deliveries by courier or by 
hand, delivery shall be deemed to have been received on the date of delivery; by 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Plow Truck - Winslow By-law No. 2019-074 

 

 

Canada Post, 5 days after the date on which it was mailed. A communication sent by 
facsimile or by electronic communication with no indication of failure or suspension of 
delivery, shall be deemed to have been received at the opening of business on the next 
day, unless the next day is not a working day for the recipient, in which case it shall be 
deemed to have been received on the next working day of the recipient at the opening of 
business. 

The Supplier: The Owner: 

Winslow Gerolamy Motors City of Temiskaming Shores 
1018 Landsdowne St. W. 325 Farr Drive 
Peterborough, Ontario P.O. Box 2050 
K9J 6Y5 Haileybury, Ontario 
 P0J 1K0 

Remainder of Page left Blank Intentionally 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Plow Truck - Winslow By-law No. 2019-074 

 

 

In witness whereof the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first 
above written. 

Signed and Sealed in ) Winslow Gerolamy Motors 
the presence of ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Authorized Signature 

 ) Print Name:  ______________________ 

 ) Title: __________________________ 

 )  

 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Witness - Signature 

 ) Print Name:  ______________________ 

 ) Title: __________________________ 

 ) 
Municipal Seal ) Corporation of the City of  
 ) Temiskaming Shores 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Clerk – David B. Treen 

 



 

 

 

 

Appendix 01 to 

Schedule “A” to 

By-law No. 2019-074 

Form of Agreement 
Plow Truck 



INTERNA1IONAL Financial Summary April 04, 2019
2019 HV613 SBA (HV613)

(CANADIAN DOLLAR)
Description

Net Sales Price: $244569.00

Please feel free to contact me regarding these specifications should your interests or needs change. I am confident you will be
pleased with the quality and service of an International vehicle.

Approved by Seller: Accepted by Purchaser:

OfficIal Title and Date Firm or Business Name

Authorized Signature Authorized Signature and Date

WINSLOW GEROLAMY MOTORS
1018 LANSDOWNE ST. W.
PETERBOROUGH ON K9J 6Y5
(705)742-3411

This proposal is not binding upon the seller without
SeIlers Authorized Signature

Official Title and Date

The TOPS FET calculation is an estimate for reference purposes only. The seller or retailer is responsible for calculating
and reporting/paying appropriate FET to the IRS.

The limited warranties applicable to the vehicles described herein are Navistar, Inc.’s standard printed warranties which
are incorporated herein by reference and to which you have been provided a copy and hereby agree to their terms and
conditions.

12 Proposal: 9787-01



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2019-075 

Being a by-law to enter into a lease agreement with the 
New Liskeard Lion’s Club for cold storage space within 

Quonset Hut on May Street 
  
Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, the powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to 
govern its affairs as it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s 
ability to responds to municipal issues; 
 
And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural 
person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; 
 
And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public;  
 
And whereas the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
considered Administrative Report No. CS-017-2019 at the May 7, 2019 Regular 
Council meeting and directed staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into a 
five (5) year lease agreement with the New Liskeard Lion’s Club for cold storage 
space within the Quonset Hut located on May Street for consideration at the May 
7, 2019 Regular Council meeting; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
hereby enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That Council authorizes the entering into a five (5) year lease agreement with 
the New Liskeard Lion’s Club for cold storage space within the Quonset Hut 
located on May Street at an annual rate of $1,500, a copy of which is attached 
hereto as Schedule “A” and forming part of this by-law. 

2. That By-law No. 2014-036 being a lease agreement with the Biker’s Reunion 
Committee be hereby repealed effective June 1, 2019. 

3. That By-law No. 2014-037 being a lease agreement with the New Liskeard 
Lions Club be hereby repealed effective June 1, 2019. 

4. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to make 
minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical nature to 
the by-law and schedule, after the passage of this by-law, where such 
modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law or its associated 
schedule. 



Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 7th day of May, 2019. 
 

 
__________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 

 
__________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



 
 

Schedule “A” to 

By-law 2019-075 

Lease Agreement between 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

and 

The New Liskeard Lions Club 

For cold storage space within Quonset Hut 
Located on May Street 

 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Quonset Hut Lease - Lions Club By-law No. 2019-075 

 

This agreement made in duplicate this 7th day of May 2019. 

Between: 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
(hereinafter called “the City”) 

And: 

New Liskeard Lion’s Club 
(hereinafter called “the Tenant”) 

 
Witnesses that in consideration of the covenants and provisos herein 
contained, the City hereby permits the tenant to occupy and use a portion of 
certain lands known as the Quonset Hut located at 21 May Street south, in the 
City of Temiskaming Shores, District of Timiskaming, for a term commencing 

on the 1st day of June, 2019 and ending on the 31st day of May, 2024. 
 

Whereas the City is the owner of the property located at, 21 May Street South; 
 
And whereas the New Liskeard Lion’s Club is a not for profit organization of 
persons dedicated to serving our community; 

 
Now therefore, in consideration of the sum of $1,500/year plus applicable taxes 
(prorated in 2019) due on the 1st of November, and other good and valuable 
consideration paid by the New Liskeard Lion’s Club to the City, the parties hereto 
do hereby agree as follows: 

 

Section One – New Liskeard Lion’s Club Covenants: 

The New Liskeard Lion’s Club covenants with the City as follows: 

1. Improvements – The tenant shall be entitled to improve the facility from 
time to time provided such improvements are set out in detail to the City 
prior to commencement of construction of same, and approval of 
Council is obtained prior to commencement of construction. All proposals 
to the City for improvements shall set out the costs to be incurred and the 
means by which the tenant shall pay for same.  All improvements once 
installed or constructed at the facility shall become the property of the 
City. 

2. Equipment - The equipment and fixtures, which are owned by the City and 
which are situated at, 21 May Street South shall not be removed without 
the prior written consent of the City. 

3. Cleanliness - The Tenant shall maintain the facility in a clean and orderly 
condition. 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Quonset Hut Lease - Lions Club By-law No. 2019-075 

 

4. Use of Building – not to permit the space at 21 May Street south to be 
used for any purpose other than dry storage for the tenant.  The Tenant will 
not permit the storage of any flammable items.  

5. Insurance – The Tenant shall provide the City proof of insurance, and identify 
the City as an additional insured. 

6. Taxes – In the event the property at 21 May Street becomes assessable the 
Tenant acknowledges and agrees that it shall be responsible for the payment 
of any property and education tax levied. 

7. Right of Renewal – The tenant shall be required to give written notice 
of its intention to renew the agreement at least (90) days prior to the 
termination of this agreement. 

Section Two – City’s Covenants 

The City covenants with the New Liskeard Lion’s Club as follows: 

1. Utilities - The City shall provide hydro to the said facility; there will be no 
heat provided in the winter months; 

2. Fire Safety/Protection – The City shall be responsible for the development 
and maintenance of the Fire Safety Plan for the building, and for the 
provision and maintenance of all fire protection equipment as outlined in the 
building’s Fire Safety Plan. The Tenant will be responsible to ensure a copy 
of the Fire Safety Plan is posted at all times, and to ensure all members of 
the Tenant are made familiar with the Fire Safety Plan and its requirements. 

Section Three – Notices 

1. Notice to Terminate – either party may withdraw or terminate from this 
agreement by providing at least 90 days notice in the appropriate form. 

2. General – All notices given pursuant to this agreement are sufficiently 
given if mailed, prepaid and registered, in the case of the City, addressed 
as follows: 

City of Temiskaming Shores 
P.O. Box 2050  
Haileybury, Ontario 
P0J 1K0  

and in the case of the New Liskeard Lion’s Club addressed as follows: 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Quonset Hut Lease - Lions Club By-law No. 2019-075 

 

 

New Liskeard Lion’s Club 
P.O. Box 308 
New Liskeard, Ontario 
P0J 1P0 

unless either party gives notice to the other of a change of address by 
registered mail. The date of receipt of any notice is deemed to be seven days 
after mailing. 

Default - In the event that either party believes that the other is in default of its obligation 
under the terms of this agreement, it shall be obliged to give to the other party 30 days 
notice of the alleged default. The defaulting party shall have the said 30 days to remedy 
the default, failing which, this agreement shall be null and void and the parties’ obligations 
hereunder terminated. 

Remainder of Page left Blank Intentionally



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Quonset Hut Lease - Lions Club By-law No. 2019-075 

 

 

In witness whereof the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first above 
written. 
 
Signed and Sealed in ) New Liskeard Lions Club 
the presence of ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Signature 

 ) Name: ______________________ 

 ) Title: ______________________ 

 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Witness - Signature 

 ) Name:  __________________________ 

 ) Title: __________________________ 

 ) 
Municipal Seal ) Corporation of the City of  
 ) Temiskaming Shores 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Clerk – David B. Treen 

 



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2019-077 

Being a by-law to confirm certain proceedings of Council of The 
Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores for its Regular 

meeting held on May 7, 2019 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, the 
powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to govern its affairs as it 
considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s ability to respond to municipal 
issues; 

And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, 
a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural person for the 
purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; 

And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the municipality 
considers necessary or desirable for the public;  

And whereas it is the desire of the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming 
Shores to confirm proceedings and By-laws; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That the actions of the Council at its Regular meeting held on May 7, 2019 with respect 
to each recommendation, by-law and resolution and other action passed and taken or 
direction given by Council at its said meeting, is, except where the prior approval of the 
Ontario Municipal Board is required, hereby adopted, ratified and confirmed. 

2. That the Mayor, or in his absence the presiding officer of Council, and the proper 
officials of the municipality are hereby authorized and directed to do all things 
necessary to give effect to the said action or to obtain approvals where required, and 
except where otherwise provided, the Mayor, or in his absence the presiding officer, 
and the Clerk are hereby directed to execute all documents required by statute to be 
executed by them, as may be necessary in that behalf and to affix the corporate seal 
of the municipality to all such documents. 

Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 7th day of May, 2019. 

  

______________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 

 
 
 
______________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 


	4 a) 19 05 07 Agenda
	06 a) 19 04 16 Mts
	10 a) Minto Support
	10 b) AMO Update
	10 c) Cell Tower
	10 d) Hillard ERTAA
	10 e) Englehart Fall Fair
	10 f) Graduation
	10 g) ETRAA Ltr
	10 h) NL Dump Approval
	Proponent Letter- Signed
	Notice of Approval- Signed- English

	10 i) Evanturrel ONR Issue
	10 i) 1
	10 i) Evanturrel ONR Issue

	10 j) More Homes Action Plan
	12 a) 19 03 11 Rec Mts
	15 d) Memo RS-011-2019
	011-19-RS Hlby Museum Request
	App 01 Request

	15 e) Report PW-010-2019
	PW-010-19 ICIP Joint Bridge Application
	App 01 ICIP Guide
	App 02 Insp Report

	15 f) Report PW-014-2019
	PW-014-2019 Agt Pollard Liquid Calcium
	App 01 Opening Results
	App 02 Dft By-law
	App 02 Dft Agt
	App 03 Form of Agt


	15 g) Report PW-015-2019
	PW-016-2019 Phase 2 & 3 Dym Linking
	App 01 EXP Quote
	App 02 Justification

	15 h) Report CS-017-2019
	CS-017-2019 Lions Club Lease
	App 01 Lease Agt

	15 i) Report CS-018-2017
	16 a) 19-065 Agt Grant Fuels
	2019-065 Agt Pakrland Bulk Fuel
	App 01 Form of Agt

	16 b) 19-071 Agt Nortrax Grader
	2019-071 Agt Nortrax Grader
	Form of Agt

	16 c) 19-072 OILC Library Relocate
	2019-072 OILC Library Relocate
	Sch B Loan Application

	16 d) 19-073 Pollard Calcium
	2019-073 Agt Pollard Liquid Calcium
	App 03 Form of Agt

	16 e) 19-074 Winslow Plow Truck
	2019-074 Agt Winslow Plow Truck
	Form of Agt

	16 f) 19-075 Lease Lions
	20 a) 19-077 Confirm May 7 19

